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Milestones in 2022
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Stable development leads to long-lasting success
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OUTSTANDING PROJECTS

KETREEEESITH BRABF AR TERBH D
Commercial Pedestrian Street at Tianjin Street, Dalian NIO Automotive Service Center in Ningbo Region
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Jiaxmg Smart Industry Innovation Park China Guangfa Bank Jiaxing Branch
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Bengbu First People’s Hospital Jiaxing International Financial Plaza
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An award-winning brand
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2022 Leading 2022 China Property
AL i UL 65 No. 9 of 2022 China 2022 China Company in Services
No. 9 0f 2022 China = No.7 0f 2022 China = Excellent Property Leading Property Property Service Brand Featured
Top 10 Listed Top 10 Listed Management Management Satisfaction Enterprise
Property Property Companies Companies in Terms

Management Management in Terms of ESG of Characteristic
Companies in Companies in Development Services —

Terms of Community Terms of Non- Diversified Smart

Value-added Service residential Businesses
Capabilities Property Services
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Diversified services and premium quality

BB EMRYE Awarding Unit: CRIC Property Management
WNEENLEFTDERERE - RIE In 2022, Kaisa Prosperity focused on service quality and a series of quality
EERTIERAZE]  [ElsE] [ improvement actions were carried out in various projects, such as “Kaisa in
1| [ERERE T — %5 QEe  Spring Breeze” (FRUALE), “Kaisa's Craftsmanship” (I /0\S&£E), “Beautiful
F478) - Wit E 2RI - LB R  Renovation” (SSEFHRFT) and “Happy Road Home” (3248 [ 2K %) to renovate the
MEME - W RETREBRY 28 community from the dimensions of community space renovation and community
19T A RIBES o service upgrade, in order to continuously improve the living environment.
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Fire safety Greening and planting

Rejuvenated 15,1271 facilities
Replanted a greening area of 370,000 m?

LERE e
Safety patrol Community evening party
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Upgrade of K Series Living Brand

v

MEFEERERBRLE BN - BHEE D
SEHERLERRY  BELBOEN R - | !
RERE - KA R — B R 2R - IKEIE.
TE . ERRMELE  LERIBEEE I HE g
B BBEE BEIHHIAARPRHAER E?ﬁ 2kun
% BHRE  EELERETTRE (50 [t
BB AU R RE A RS - :

20227.20-318

i

@KL

Ever since its launch, our community value-added service
brand of “K Series Living”(/N\K4)&) has gradually
deepened its multiple business portfolios and services,
demonstrating its business potential and resilience. During
the year, the existing businesses of space, retail, decoration
as well as lease and sale extended under K Series Living
services have been further optimized and a new business
scope of live broadcast in the neighborhood (%8 E2 & &)
has been launched to provide more convenient and efficient
services to users through new channels such as live
broadcast and group buying, in order to promote a better
development of community economy, and upgrade from a
“spatial resource provider” to a “space operation service
provider”.
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Jiake Intelligent brings smart living

»
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Jiake Intelligent has always adhered to the development concepts of “customer first, quality first and innovation” and focused on deepening the
third-party market to further diversity revenue sources, laying a solid foundation and reputation for providing smart city solutions to more cities in
the future and creating shared value with business partners. Currently, Jiake Intelligent has been on the list of qualified suppliers by 335 real estate
developers. At the same time, Jiake Intelligent further upgraded and expanded its intelligent products and is developing in the direction of innovative
technology enterprises to enhance the quality of property management through technological empowerment.
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Social welfare, responsibilities and commitments
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Held 62 charity activities under the “Firefly Plan”

disaster relief for 5 times

We take action to fulfill social responsibility, and
highlight the brand value through public welfare.
Since Kaisa Prosperity proposed the”Serving
Beautiful China - Firefly Plan” in 2012, the Group
has over the years organized more than 920
public welfare activities in various forms, such as
supporting education, supporting the elderly, precise
poverty alleviation and environmental protection, to
encourage every employee to participate in social
welfare activities and to do small good deeds to
achieve great love, and to drive more people to pay
attention to social welfare with practical actions and
make the future of our country even better.
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48 April 2022
2022 B RIS B oR b 3
2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China

FR35#FZERE China Index Academy

4R April 2022

2B EMERBERLEE-ZTEEER
2022 China Leading Property Management
Companies in terms of Characteristic Services —
Diversified Smart Businesses

FR 15 #FZEEx China Index Academy

48 April 2022

20220 B RISESGE R ER B
2022 China Excellent Property Management
Companies in Terms of ESG Development

F#EFAZEB China Index Academy

58 May 2022
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No. 9 of 2022 China Top 10 Listed Property
Management Companies in Terms of Community
Value-added Service Capabilities

FR3EHFZERE China Index Academy

58 May 2022

2022 B EE AR TS E TR RISEE =Y E MRS
TOP10E+4

No. 7 of 2022 China Top 10 Listed Property
Management Companies in Terms of Non-
residential Property Services

FR#EFAZEB China Index Academy

58 May 2022

02 B ERBESCEREFCEENE
No. 9 of 2022 China Excellent Property Management
Companies in Terms of ESG Development

F#E®HZEB% China Index Academy

58 May 2022
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2022 China Top 20 Listed Property Management
Services Companies

i85 EHEM 3BT Shanghai E-house Real
Estate Research Institute

68 June 2022
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“Digital Technology - Quality Service” Excellent
Case Model Companies

HEBETEBE

China Communications Industry Association

68 June 2022
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“Digital Intelligence - Refined Control” Excellent
Case Model Companies
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China Communications Industry Association
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68 June 2022

[E325]48 « KRR BARNIHEE
“Guided by Party Building - Community Governance”
Excellent Case Model Companies

HEEE TEGE

China Communications Industry Association

78 July 2022

2022 % FRI% I E5R (2 TOP18
2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in
Terms of Service Capabilities (Top18)

RMENE LS EERTRR
CRIC Property Management/Shanghai E-house

78 July 2022

20225 NI IR T HTOP201R 5
2022 Top 20 Office Property Management
Companies in Terms of Service Capabilities

RMEYE LiESEHERFR
CRIC Property Management/Shanghai E-house

78 July 2022
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2022 Leading Company in Property Service
Satisfaction

RMEWE  Li§5EHERER
CRIC Property Management/Shanghai E-house
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2022 Benchmark Enterpnse in Terms of Service
Capabilities (Huizhou Kaisa Center)

RMEWE LS5 EHERTER
CRIC Property Management/Shanghai E-house
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20227 BIY) ARIG (b ¥ AR AR(E(E 10058
2022 China Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in
Brand Value

RMRYE PG
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

118 November 2022

2022 E RS B 3038
2022 Top 30 Property Service South China Brand
Enterprises

RMHWE RS
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI

118 November 2022

2022F BEIME RS MR
2022 China Property Services Brand Featured
Enterprise

RMRME PG
CRIC Property Management and CPMRI
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa Prosperity” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the"Group”), | hereby present to you the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The year of 2022 was a year of significant changes for the PRC property management
industry. After three years of implementation of comprehensive combat measures
against COVID-19, a light was finally seen at the end of the tunnel and the policies
have been loosening gradually. It is widely expected that the lifting of lockdown in
China, being the second largest economy in the world, will play a vital role in boosting
the macroeconomy. At the same time, the real estate market has undergone in-depth
adjustment throughout the year, lasting for a prolonged time and at an unprecedented
rate. In particular, in March 2022, a number of real estate companies encountered
liquidity risk and the high turnover model of the real estate industry experienced
challenges. As the development logic of the real estate industry changes, property
management companies will also need to recalibrate their development path to focus
on quality service and product and adhere to the principle of long-termism.

Under such influences, the property management industry has also experienced ups
and downs in the capital market. Since 2018, a number of PRC property management
companies have been listed successively and highly sought after by capital. At present,
property management companies are cooling down in the capital market and gradually
returning to rationality. The fundamental operation and performance of the property
management companies is the core element of healthy and long-term development.
When the capital bubble is exhausted, companies with strong growth and excellent
operational ability shall be certain to experience the return of value.

At the same time, as an important industry closely related to people’s well-being,
property management undertakes the strategic mission of building a better community.
As the economic development mode of China is shifting from extensive development
to refined development, the industry potential and market value of the property
management industry will be released continuously. In December 2022, Mr. Ni Hong,
minister of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development pointed out that
property management is an important industry for people’s livelihood and an important
field for the implementation of the concept of “30% of construction and 70% of
management in cities”, which further proves the long-term opportunities brought by
the social attribute of property management services.
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In the face of the complicated industry situation, Kaisa Prosperity adheres to its
aspiration and reviews the prevailing situation to operate steadily and forge ahead.
At the same time, we shall continue to optimize our management model, take various
measures, improve operational quality and efficiency, and make swift and proactive
responses to cope with the changing external environment.

In respect of quality improvement, Kaisa Prosperity focused on developing the “whole
cycle + whole portfolio” (% J& B+2 4 8) high-quality service scenarios in 2022. We
conducted in-depth research on enhancing quality of our services and at the same time
expanding our geographical reach. Through our efforts in upgrading and diversifying
our product portfolios, we launched property management services for seven types of
properties, including high-end sales offices, residential, commercial, office buildings,
schools, recreation and hospitals. Four major product IPs, namely “Prosperity Life”
(F=4FAEJE), “Prosperity Commerce” (SE4F 7%), “Prosperity Recreation” (3£ 4F
S BE) and “Prosperity City” (SE4F3 1), and two empowerment segments, namely
“Prosperity Wisdom” (3E4F %5 %) and “Prosperity FUN" (3£4FFUN), were released
and a business brand matrix of “Grand Property” (X ¥ %) was established, which will
facilitate our market expansion and brand value enhancement.

In respect of business expansion, the Group actively sought opportunities to cooperate
with professional and comprehensive service companies. In addition to external
expansion of comprehensive service projects, the Group also attaches great importance
to specialized services and actively explores opportunities to undertake professional
service projects. Meanwhile, with our established strategic regional presence, the
Group shall continue to realise complementary cross-regional advantages, enabling
cross-region communication and information flow to facilitate cooperation in launching
expansion projects, so as to unleash its vitality of expansion and explore diversified
and flexible cooperation mechanisms. In terms of partners, we will strengthen the
cooperation with enterprises with state-owned background or private enterprises with
established operations or property enterprises with no property holding in exploiting
the second and third-tier cities surrounding the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater
Bay Area and Yangtze River Delta Economic Rim, such as high ranking counties or
certain county-level units with higher fiscal income. In terms of cooperation approach,
we will take collaborative operation as our key approach and proactively look for
private enterprises or government cooperation platforms with scalable asset for in-
depth strategic cooperation. We will give priority to provide comprehensive urban
service packages for local cities to expand into the local urban services market.



3R ANNUAL REPORT 2022

HEWNFNZANALFE @ AEEZEZE W=
TRHOARKBEETEARKI3IEE
TC R0 FE W PRIBA33.1% 0 EEMH
REAZLBERZBEEBCR - BHEMISIT
BREBHFE  BRYVEREEERSEH
FEXRBELD c EPYEEBRRBEEAAR
¥12482B 870 RETBIRBERRBEKEBA
R¥23995 8T : L @IEERBUREBARE
1555 A &L HRERR T RRB R EBARE
14038 & 7T °

HE202F12AN A IEFEHSFFEIERL
ARBBIEEILEARKEI0668ET © #2021
OF [B) B % A1) B 12 18 4956.5% © & 22022412 A 31
BIEFESESAQNRESABRGFBIEZROA
REBASTEAREBIFTET @ B20214F
EHIAR A R A A (G 5 F 3L 18 £964.4% » AN
RIEA A FE(RF) B LG AN T 2 TR I £ (i)20214F
REEZEAFELERARNEREEMEE
REE RN FREIERERIMELERN
518 -

EHRERA - AEERFBRBEETE L X
FER » 2022F AT s@ AN - F AR U | 7 575

IR BT REmE - BIERER -
RIBARGmE - AEEAEHFEEEE IR

RIEEL  ARTEER - BEAEFNZES
o BT SE - RESEESNEEE
BEEE  FEMNSEESIHEAER
REXR MERETR  SREMIP -

EIRZEEIFEBARA R KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 11

FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's revenue decreased by
approximately RMB882.6 million to RMB1,783.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 33.1% as compared with that in 2021, which was primarily attributable
to the impact of national macro economic policies, market conditions in the real
estate industry and COVID-19 pandemic during the year, which reduced the demand of
services from property developers. In particular, revenue from property management
services amounted to RMB1,248.2 million; revenue from pre-delivery and consulting
services amounted to RMB239.9 million; revenue from community value-added services
amounted to RMB155.5 million; and revenue from smart solution services amounted to
RMB140.3 million.

The net profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 increased by approximately
RMB38.5 million to RMB106.6 million, representing an increase of approximately
56.5% as compared with the net profit in the corresponding period in 2021. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 increased
by approximately RMB36.6 million to RMB93.4 million, representing an increase
of approximately 64.4% as compared with the profit attributable to owners in the
corresponding period in 2021. The increase in profit attributable to the owners of the
Company was mainly attributable to the absence of (i) the loss on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss in 2021; and (ii) the loss on termination of an
acquisition transaction in 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the Group upheld its corporate vision of “Serving Beautiful
China”. In 2022, the Group took “Strengthening Foundation, Reducing Cost and
Increasing Revenue” as the main operation principle to maintain service quality while
strictly control risks.

In order to enhance service quality, the Group took “Prosperity is underway” (34
IETE %) as the main service principle. By gaining an insight into the diversifying
needs of customers of different types and from different levels, and focusing on the
value creation from four-dimensions including: space, atmosphere, service and linkage,
the Group launched Gong Housekeeping (Z5& %), Tai Housekeeping (32 %& %), Vi
Housekeeping (16& %) as well as T-series and S-series product IPs for its residential
projects and commercial and office building projects respectively.
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In respect of connection with the community, the Group comprehensively upgraded
the “Prosperity FUN"(3E4FFUN) Series Customer Caring Scheme, and extended the
community service portfolios including “Prosperity Convention” (FE&F A 47), “Firefly
Program” (% ‘A =12, “Kaisa's Neighbors” (E#F1£E%8) and “Starry Shining
Community” (P94 2 2 41 &), fostering the Kaisa-exclusive humanistic features
within the community and establishing brand image in all aspects.

In respect of energy conservation and consumption reduction, in 2022, through the
formulation of system and standards including the Guidelines on Management and
Control of Energy Saving ((BEJRERBE B 1R VEFESI)) and the Assessment Method
for Control of Energy Consumption ( 88 FE & 12 18 & #Z 9% )% D) as well as the
adoption of a multi-pronged approach underpinning “management + technology +
policy”, with the utilization of energy-saving renovation technologies with regard to
lighting, water pumps and air conditioners etc., the Group significantly reduced energy
consumption throughout the year.

Smart property management has become the next important growth area of
property management services. According to the “Opinions on Further Promoting the
Construction of Smart Communities” ((BEFOFAHEER EL REZNER))
jointly issued by 9 departments including the Ministry of Civil Affairs in May 2022, by
2025, an intelligent community service platform featuring grid management, refined
services, information technology support, and open sharing will be basically built up;
a new digital community of intelligent sharing and harmonious co-governance will be
preliminarily created. As a property management company that has been committed to
the field of intelligent property in early stage, Shenzhen Jiake Intelligent Technology
Co., Ltd.* (the “Jiake Intelligent”) (= Y1l T = FL 2 GEBL L B R A 7)), a smart
solution service provider under the Group, has established a good brand image in the
industry, and currently has been included on the list of qualified suppliers by 335 real
estate developers.

In February 2022, Jiake Intelligent successfully contracted with Qianhai China
Resources Financial Center, Shenzhen for the intelligent works of the T3 Hotel Project™
CRIIpTEE RSP OTIEETE B 2 85{L TH2). The signing of this contract
broadened the business scope of Jiake Intelligent in respect of high-end business
development in first-tier cities.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

In March 2022, the Tang Health Townlet* (K& % 4 //\8H) project, in which Jiake
Intelligent and Rongmin Holdings, a leading local enterprise in Shaanxi Province,
cooperated with each other, was successfully launched. The said cooperation
accelerated Jiake Intelligent’s penetration into the northwest market.

In April 2022, following the Zhanjiang RiseSun Central Plaza* (5T 48 8% s &
) project, Jiake Intelligent cooperated with RiseSun Group* (585X ££[&) again
and jointly developed the Cultural Mansion Project in Foshan® ({1 X B fFIE B ).
This cooperation further demonstrates the consensus by both parties in progressing
strategic cooperation and greatly enhanced the brand influence of Jiake Intelligent
through the replication of success.

In October 2022, Jiake Intelligent established a partnership with Shanghai Guoyu (_E
& B81) and entered into the 2022-2023 Intelligent Annual Procurement Agreement
for Xingyi Region (Zunyi and Guiyang), to further expand its business coverage.

In November 2022, Jiake Intelligent was awarded the contract for “Dalong Bay Habitat
Style” (AFE/&-#2 B.3X), an innovative model project for social elderly care and an
ancillary construction of a smart city, laying a solid foundation in the field of our smart
city ancillary services.

Jiake Intelligent has always adheres to the development concepts of “Customer first,
Quality first and Brave to Innovate”, and will strive to develop as an overall solution
service provider for smart cities with agglomerating efforts.



FERE
Chairman’s Statement

RImERA - BARAREORERFEHETER
B RNT BRI EREOEESRRT — 22
B EREEEEREGEHKE - Ham5
HENAERFBARRE - BBAKAEE - [F
AIEMEL B - HIBAT - K =HER
BRI EREEREE ] -

KR R IR A RS R i B M A - &
hRMBERENRE  BEEBHELE
e RER - PIKEFERBE-TEBILRAN
=i TE  XEREEEY  WIERIBE
HERIHEE BAEE BEREIHRESR
PRREERERE S8R  (RELREEE L
TR o AR RAIBBAORETHEEEE RS
BIERRINERIEE B - LHEER(/KBIR
MKEESEHER - REBIRIN - Ef
E— T INRRIEREER - FTARNKEERER
RIGIFEER - R EMELEE -

EIKZEXHFEBBPR/A R KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

During the Reporting Period, although the recurrence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and the fluctuation of the real estate industry have brought some difficulties to the
promation of value-added business, the management team proactively responded to
the challenges, and proactively adjusted strategies based on the market conditions
and the actual situation of the Company. We strive forward through multiple initiatives
such as revenue transformation, cost reduction and efficiency enhancement, and
upgraded ourselves from a “spatial resource provider” to a “space operation service
provider”.

Ever since its launch, our community value-added service brand of “K Series Living” (/]
K4 &) has gradually expanded its business portfolios and services, demonstrating
its business potential and resilience. During the year, the existing businesses of
space, retail, decoration as well as lease and sale extended under K Series Living
services have been further optimized and a new business scope of live broadcast in the
neighborhood (#6522 & ) has been launched to provide more convenient and efficient
services to users through new channels such as live broadcast and group buying, in
order to promote a better development of community economy. In the future, we will
strive to enhance the penetration rate of value-added business services and strengthen
project linkages, especially to strengthen key businesses such as K-Delivery® (/]\KZ|
%) and K-Lease & Sale* (/)\KFE & ). In addition to business expansion, we will further
strengthen the construction of service portfolios, upgrade the standardized system of
products and services of K Series Living, and build a community neighborhood living
circle.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

Over the past year, the property management industry has continued to evolve and
iterate under the dual impacts from the external environment and endogenous dynamics.
Property management services cover a wide range of residents, and are related
to social harmony and stability. In addition to market-oriented industry attributes,
property management enterprises also need to take on social responsibilities. These
factors impose a higher level of expectation upon the development of property
management enterprises. As a leading operator of urban integrated services in China,
Kaisa Prosperity will continue to meet the growing needs of residents with refined
services, and promote the development standard of the industry at the same time. We
believe that the industry will continue its trend of rapid growth in the future under two
major channels, i.e the expansion of new customers and further exploration on existing
customers. With the relaxation of COVID-19 pandemic control measures and the
release of favorable policies, the overall economic and market situation is expected to
gradually improve, and the value of the property management industry will be further
reflected.

Focusing on the present conditions, Kaisa Prosperity embraces its responsibilities
and missions endowed by this era and stands firmly in the forefront of the industry
development. With its dedication to working hard and making breakthroughs, the Group
puts its corporate mission of “Serving Beautiful China” into practice by working hand in
hand with its partners to create greater value for the society, and gradually becoming
a comprehensive community operation service provider with core competitiveness, an
urban integrated services provider with first-class standard, and a smart city service
provider with comprehensive solutions.

In the future, we will continue to operate solidly and steadily. In a continuously
evolving environment, we are confident in performing our corporate responsibilities
and giving back to the society through various means to bring returns to shareholders
with better performance.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my wholehearted gratitude to all of our
staff members for their dedication and contribution, as well as our business partners
for their full support.

Chairman
LIAO Chuangiang

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Overall Performance

Total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 decreased by
approximately 33.1% to approximately RMB1,783.9 million from approximately
RMB2,666.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 increased by approximately 56.5%
to approximately RMB106.6 million from approximately RMB68.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 increased by approximately 64.4% to approximately RMB93.4 million from
approximately RMB56.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the total contracted GFA and the total GFA under
management amounted to approximately 132.7 million sq.m. and 94.5 million
sg.m. respectively, representing an increase of approximately 4.6% and an
increase of approximately 4.7%, respectively, as compared to approximately
126.9 million sg.m. and 90.3 million sq.m. as at 31 December 2021 respectively.
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BEENWE DN
Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

As one of the leading comprehensive property management service providers in China,
the Group specializes in providing comprehensive urban integrated services to mid- to
high-end properties and focuses on the metropolitan cluster regions that are supported
by the national macro-strategic policies and have high economic development vitality.
The Group has been providing property management services for 23 years since 1999,
and since then has established a strong footprint in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta, Bohai Economic Rim, Western and Central China with
enormous potential for economic growth, covering a wide range of properties and
providing property owners and residents with tailored quality services through the one-
stop service platform to enhance their quality of life and satisfaction.

The Group’s four main business lines, namely, property management services, pre-
delivery and consulting services, community value-added services and smart solution
services, form an integrated service spectrum encompassing the upstream and
downstream segments and covering the entire value chain of property management.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's property management services covered 65 cities
across 17 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China, with a total GFA
under management reaching 94.5 million sq.m. and a total of 673 managed properties
projects, comprising 314 residential communities and 359 non-residential properties,
showing strong momentum in market expansion and diversified property portfolio. We
focused on public urban services and moved towards holistic management services.

The table below sets forth (i) the contracted GFA, (i) the GFA under management, and
(iii) the number of managed property projects, as of the dates indicated:

HE12A31R
As of 31 December
20224 2014
2022 2021
132,746 126,894
94,518 90,267




20 EIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SRSl
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IR B EEE Geographic Coverage
AT E 28R 20224512 A3 B R FINES Y The map below illustrates the geographic coverage of our managed properties as of 31
FKHHMIREEHE December 2022:
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The table below sets forth the breakdowns of (i) the total GFA under management,
and (ii) the number of managed property projects by geographic region as of the dates
indicated:

M2A31H
As of 31 December
025 20216
2022 2021

EEREEE HEYE =EEEFEE HEYAE
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects

(FFAK) (FEAXK)

('000 sq.m.) ('000 sg.m.)
BERKNER Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Bay Area 19,409 108 17,809 9
R=AitE Yangtze River Delta 57,066 477 53,744 481
REBEE Bohai Economic Rim 4,823 35 6,192 42
kit Western China 8,575 3 8,309 30
FEH Central China 4,645 20 4213 20
#st Total 94,518 673 90,267 672

AEBEFBNEERIFARBLIE=TT5E
RS -

TREIAKEW()BETRERSE  RiilE
EMEBERATRAMNES

The Group continued to expand its business through organic growth and independent
third party market development.

Set out below are the changes in (i) the total GFA under management and (ii) the
number of managed property projects as of the indicated date:

20225 0215
2022 2021

EEREER HEAYE *“EEEEEE HH¥H
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects  management projects

(FFERHK) (F¥ERK)

(000 sg.m.) ('000 sg.m.)
®1A18 As of 1 January 90,267 672 57,494 435
nLE New engagement 15,934 107 28,639 198
g Acquisition - - 10,925 84
KR IE Termination (11,683) (106) (6,791) (45)
WM2A318 As of 31 December 94518 673 90,267 672
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Types of Properties Managed

The Group managed a diversified portfolio of properties covering mid- to high-
end residential communities and non-residential properties, including commercial
properties, office buildings, hospitals, schools, arenas and stadiums, government
buildings, public facilities and industrial parks. Starting from Guangxi, Handan,
Yancheng, Yangzhou and Jiaxing, we expanded the cooperation with government
platforms and our urban services business. Regarding the property management
services, the Group adopted two revenue models under which property management
fees are charged on either a lump-sum basis or commission basis. For lump-sum basis,
the Group recorded all the fees as revenue and all the expenses incurred in connection
with providing the property management services as cost of services. For commission
basis, the Group essentially acted as the agent of the property owners and therefore
records only a pre-determined percentage of the property management fees or cost
of services as set out in the property management service contracts as revenue.
By adopting these two revenue models, the Group managed to cover the expenses
incurred in connection with providing property management services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of (i) the property management services
revenue, (i) the total GFA under management, and (iii) the number of managed property
projects by type of properties for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BZNANALEE/MAYA

Year ended/as of 31 December

k3 WE
mn m
EERETR HE&A EEEEAR HRYA
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects
(AR ( ) i )
(RMB 000} (RMB000) (000sgm)
i Residential communites 615355 0 5,38 586 3 snm i1 np 185 0
Hrznz Norvesientl ppertes 6% 99 By 4 it 5298 i3 48 45 m
it Total 1208191 1000 9518 1000 i3 1196469 100 027 1000 i1
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The table below sets forth the breakdown of (i) the property management services
revenue, (i) the total GFA under management, and (iii) the number of managed property
projects by revenue model for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BENANALEE/MAYA
Year ended/as of 31 December
i
bl
RERETR
GFA under
management

REREER ELE hi

Number of
projects

HREA
Number of
projects

GFA under
Mmanagement

(FFR (ARETR) G

Revenue

(00 sqm) (RMB 00 b [000sgm)

VEEI ) Praperty management sevies
(aa) {lump-sum hasis| 119305 %8 10816 3 Gl 1135059 %9 64766 n8 Hl6
WEEERE Property management senices
(a4 {commisson basis| 5,13 i B Bl % §1.410 b bA B2 15
&t Total 1208191 100 5ie 100 i3 1,196,469 100 0267 100 i
TEFIBENR MBS HIEEmME - HFYE  Itis important to note that for projects on commission basis, the Group recorded only

AEEMNYEERREER LNBELEEED
EEEBLRBRAE DL (—RB10%) 1EIR
@ MERHEEME - WA EMERERE
Bt -

NEEEEFHBIE = EREEHEY
¥ o R202F - BIFE— P MAREBILE
ZHMEMEEAAEMENSIELS - K
EER2NFNANHEERBIYE =T
AENHAENYEREMBELNANIBEETH
K 0 BR20214812 31 HAY4956.6 & £ F 5 K0
#93% ; BHN - BBY B = A YEREERED
HHWRFEHEE2021F12ANBEFEEHAR
k66698 ELIEMEEE202F 124318 IEF
EHARBEBIEET - MEEEHBENE
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a pre-determined percentage, typically 10%, of the property management fees or cost
of services as set out in the property management service contracts as revenue, while
all the property management fees are recorded as revenue under projects on lump-sum
basis.

The Group continued to explore the properties developed by independent third-party
property developers. We further increased the proportion of cooperation on properties
developed by independent third-party property developers in 2022. As of 31 December
2022, the Group managed approximately 58.3 million sq.m. of GFA of properties
developed by independent third-party property developers, representing an increase of
approximately 3% from approximately 56.6 million sq.m. as of 31 December 2021. In
addition, the revenue of projects for properties developed by independent-third party
developers increased from approximately RMB666.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMBG698.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. With a reasonable layout of the property industry, the Group has been able to
undertake engagement of a wide range of property projects and provide competitive
services and products. The overall development of the Group is promising.
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The table below sets forth the breakdowns of (i) the property management services
revenue, (i) the total GFA under management, and (iii) the number of managed property
projects by type of developers for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BZNANALEE/MAYA

Year ended/as of 31 December

nE unE
an Pl
REREER HRYA EEEEAR UELE
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects
AR (FFAK) (FFAx)
(RMB 000} (000sqm) (000sgm)
hEREETERNNE Praprtes developed by the Kisa
(roup w8807 uo 3,206 33 n h19608 U3 336 3 1%
HELESHERYE Propetesdevelopd by independent
BRHE i party proerty developers 38 334 Gl 531 617 0 665,861 %1 %64 617 il
ot Total 1248191 100 9518 100 i 11969 100 0261 1000 i1
RS AT AR PR 7S PRE-DELIVERY AND CONSULTING SERVICES
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Leveraging the Group's property management expertise, the Group offered a wide
range of pre-delivery and consulting services to address the issues arising during each
major stage of a property development project. The Group deployed onsite staff to
provide security, cleaning, concierge and maintenance services to property developers
for property construction sites, pre-sale display units and property sales venues at the
early stages of a property development project. Meanwhile, it also provided consulting
services to other property management companies with respect to the management of
properties.

In 2022, the Group's revenue generated from providing pre-delivery and consulting
services amounted to approximately RMB239.9 million, which accounted for
approximately 13.4% of the total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of approximately 77.6% as compared to approximately
RMB1,072.1 million in 2021. The decrease was primarily attributable to the impact
of national macro economic policies, market conditions in the real estate industry
and COVID-19 pandemic during the year, which reduced the demand of services from
property developers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Service Types
Pre-delivery Services
Pre-delivery services include the following categories:

e  Construction sites management services. The Group provided primarily
security services and to a lesser extent management services, such as cleaning
and maintenance services, for the construction sites of property development
projects. During the early stages of projects, the Group deployed security staff
to the construction sites to guard and maintain order at the sites and assigned
cleaning staff to the construction sites to keep them clean and maintain the
environment of the construction sites. The Group charged a fixed fee which is
payable by the property developers in installments over the course of the service
contracts; and

e Display units and property sales venues management services. The Group
deployed personnel onsite to assist property developers with their property
marketing and selling activities. When the property developers market their
property development projects, they typically set up display units to showcase
their properties to potential buyers. Given the high foot traffic at the display units
and the needs to secure, manage and maintain the display units, the property
developers usually engage property management service providers to provide
these specialised services. The Group also assisted property developers with
responding to general enquiries at front desk and maintaining order at property
sales venues. The Group assigned dedicated and experienced teams to these
work sites to address customers’ needs and is paid for a fixed service fee in
return.

Consulting Services

As an experienced property management company, the Group provided general daily
property management consulting services to other property management companies.
Consulting services are a cooperation model in which the Group assists other property
management companies in achieving growth and building their reputations by
implementing the Group’s management philosophy and successful operation models
in their businesses. Through providing consulting services, the Group is able to expand
into new markets and demonstrate its services quality and capabilities to wider
audiences.
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The Group's community value-added services continued to develop during the
Reporting Period. In 2022, “K Series Living” adopted new channels for business such
as live broadcast and group buying to provide better services for happy living in the
community.

During the Reporting Period, the Group devoted effort in developing K Series Living
(/]NKAEJE) and increased our business visibility and penetration rate in a number of
ways. By successfully holding the “Kaisa Prosperity 1st National Anchor Competition”,
we selected the top ten and top 30 anchor groups in China and nurtured our own
anchor matrix. At the same time, we developed and launched our own live broadcast
program “K-Live Broadcast” (/J\KE f&). We have organized a number of live streaming
e-commerce events with viewers exceeding 10,000 for each event.

“K-Live Broadcast” focused on developing a new business form of community live
e-commerce. Taking the community as the backbone, we integrated the community’s
idle spatial and advertising resources to enable community businesses and KOL
residents to join and start broadcasting, which efficiently connected the supply and
demand sides of local goods/services and created a diversified live broadcasting
platform for public participation. We provided users with more convenient and efficient
services, responded to the new initiative of cultivating a 15-minute convenient urban
living zone, and promoted better development of community economy. In 2022, K Series
Living Platform launched 12 “Kaisa Enjoy Group” activities, which promoted more
than 100 hit items and had more than 10,000 registered distributors on the platform,
accumulating more than 300,000 followers and covering more than 300 communities
across the country, with a cumulative GMV of more than RMB10 million.
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In 2022, we continued to expand the services of K-Commercial and Office Buildings™
(/K7 %) and focused on enhancing 9 major capabilities in commercial and office
building service, including water delivery to properties, cleaning and maintenance,
rental and sale of green plants, physical examination for employees, air purification,
broadband service, canteen service, office decoration and rental and sale of offices.
Our services have covered various cities including Guangzhou, Shanghai, Huizhou,
Chongging, Shenyang and Liuzhou, serving over 150 company users.

Businesses such as K-Parking® (/\K#2E) and K-Space* (/J°\KZ= &) remained
stable and will bring incremental revenue in the future with the increase in resource
points. There were no significant change in the fundamentals and basic channels of
development of businesses such as K-Lease & Sale* (/N\KTH &) and K-Retail* (/°K
Z45) and the service coverage of K-Lease & Sale expanded against the unfavorable
conditions. The market situation of K-Decoration® (//\K3E /&) business was gradually
improving.

In 2022, the Group's revenue generated from community value-added services
amounted to approximately RMB155.5 million, representing a decrease of 14.6%. Such
decrease was primarily due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic during the period, and
the provision of our community value-added services had therefore been affected.

Jiake Intelligent has always focused on deepening exploration of the third-party market
to diversify the Group's revenue sources. This laid a solid foundation and developed a
strong brand reputation for us in providing smart city solutions for more cities in the
future, thereby creating shared values with our business partners.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to make efforts in the intelligent
third-party market. Jiake Intelligent has been included on the list of qualified suppliers
by 335 real estate developers. At the same time, with further upgrade and expansion
of products, Jiake Intelligent has been developing towards an innovative technology
company and has enhanced its property management quality with technological
empowerment.

Since 2022, Jiake Intelligent has introduced the unmanned car park system and related
products, which helped to achieve cost reduction and efficiency enhancement in
property management. Such system and products also realized unmanned management
in a more convenient manner and made significant contributions to safety and
pandemic prevention during the pandemic. At the same time, products relating to the
self-developed high-altitude parabolic intelligent monitoring system and door lock
products of Jiake Intelligent have been further developed and upgraded from their
original versions, which have been installed and used in more projects. With great
enhancement in the service level and safety coefficiency, the wellbeing of property
owners has been safeguarded.

As the introduction of the concept of “new infrastructure”, research and development
of innovative infrastructure is indispensable. In the future, Jiake Intelligent will focus
on the development of intelligent products. Through diversified cooperation with
scalable intelligent product enterprises with independent research and development
capabilities and software development capabilities, Jiake Intelligent will strive to
complete the technological transformation as soon as possible and enhance the market
competitiveness of products offered by it.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group derived revenue from: (i) property management services; (ii) pre-delivery
and consulting services; (iii) community value-added services; and (iv) smart solution
services. Revenue decreased by approximately 33.1% from approximately RMB2,666.4
million in 2021 to approximately RMB1,783.9 million in 2022.

The revenue contribution by each business segment for the years indicated is set forth
in the table below:

BENRANBLEE
Year ended 31 December
A2E ANE 25
2022 2021 Changes

ARETT ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEEBRE Property management services 1248191 700 1,196,469 49 51722 43
GG Pre-delivery and consulting services 239,941 134 1,072,147 402 (832,206) (776)
HRIBERE Community value-added services 155,495 87 182,164 6.8 (26,669) (1458)
B R =R Smart solution services 140,256 79 215,660 8.1 (75,404) (35.0)
@t Total 1,183,883 100.0 2,666,440 100.0 (882,557 (33.1)

o WETERBUKZ  FTEAEAXEM
& FEDERQDLRERENK T4
EERRBEBRARMERE R EER
HBHMEETIEE - BEKEHA2021FLA
R¥119%58 BT ME202FHARE
124825 87T - HIBAI43% - ZEMEE
HREBREERMARBLE=AT5
EREFERAEEEREABIEMATE -

e Revenue from property management services, which primarily include property
management fees for providing security, cleaning and gardening and property
repair and maintenance services to residential communities, commercial
properties and public facilities, and such revenue increased by approximately
4.3% from approximately RMB1,196.5 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB1,248.2 million in 2022. Such increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in the total GFA under management resulting from the business
expansion through organic growth and independent third-party market
development.
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e Revenue from pre-delivery and consulting services, which primarily include
fees for construction sites management, display units and property sales
venues management and consulting services, and the revenue decreased
by approximately 77.6% from approximately RMB1,072.1 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB239.9 million in 2022. Such decrease was primarily due to the
impact of national macro economic policies, market conditions in the real estate
industry and COVID-19 pandemic during the year, where the demand for services
by property developers decreased.

e Revenue from community value-added services, which primarily include fees
generated from the car parking, space leasing and value-added services through
both offline and online channels, decreased by approximately 14.6% from
approximately RMB182.2 million in 2021 to approximately RMB155.5 million
in 2022. Such decrease was primarily due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic
during the year, and our delivery of community value-added services had
therefore been affected.

e Revenue from smart solution services, which primarily include fees for
installation and maintenance services, decreased by approximately 35.0% from
approximately RMB215.7 million in 2021 to approximately RMB140.3 million in
2022. Such decrease was primarily due to the impact of national macro policies,
market conditions in the real estate industry and COVID-19 pandemic during the
year, which caused the slowdown in construction project progress.

Direct Operating Expenses

The direct operating expenses of the Group primarily comprises staff costs,
subcontracting costs, construction costs, carpark leasing expenses, utility expenses,
office expenses, community cultural expenses, other taxes and others. The direct
operating expenses decreased by approximately 30.1% from approximately
RMB1,877.5 million in 2021 to approximately RMB1,312.8 million in 2022. Such
decrease was primarily attributable to the reduction of business scale of pre-delivery
and consulting services and smart solution services.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 40.3% from
approximately RMB788.9 million in 2021 to approximately RMB471.1 million in
2022. The overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased by approximately 3.2
percentage points from approximately 29.6% in 2021 to approximately 26.4% in 2022.
The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin by business

NERZR segment for the periods indicated:
BENANALEE
Year ended 31 December
0% piI7if:3 29
2022 2021 Changes
E EFl= 5 ER= K
Gross Gross
Profit Profit
Gross Profit Margin  Gross Profit Margin Amount
AREFT % ARETT % ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEEBRE Property management services 283,306 27 303,360 54 (20,054) (66)
—B& —Lump-sum basis 228170 191 241,950 213 (13,780) (5.7)
—H& — Commission basis 55,136 100.0 61,410 100.0 (6,274) (102)
P EERET Pre-delivery and consulting services 57617 2.0 319,609 298 (261,992) (82.0)
R IEERS Community value-added services 103,549 66.6 91,953 50.5 11,596 126
BRBRNRRE Smart solution services 26,635 190 73977 343 (47,342) (64.0)
@t Total 471,107 264 783,899 296 (317,792) (40.3)
1) YFEEERHE 1)  Property management services
REBMYEEEREEMNFBE2021F4H Gross profit margin of the Group’s property management services dropped
254% K= 2022F £9227% - TE 492 7EF by approximately 2.7 percentage points from approximately 25.4% in 2021 to
DR TEHRDEERR)IZEH Y approximately 22.7% in 2022. The decrease was primarily due to an increase in (i)
XEERBENLLY A BEEIRIEH the proportion of the property management service charged over lump-sum basis
WE X ERREENENZRE - Kl with a lower profit margin as compared to those charged under commission
ARERFEERRARFPEBRIRET basis and (i) the staff costs and subcontracting costs to improve our service
BYETIKARDBERA L - quality and enhance customer experience and satisfaction.
2) XATETREERIR 2)  Pre-delivery and consulting services

A ER B B0 A B M B A AR A% SE A 2= | 2021
F B 4929.8% % 2 2 2022 F #) 4924.0%
DHBBEEDE - BRERDEEHNFER
BRZBEE - BHETTED R MM
ROFE  GHENERS AT RE
RIARTSIR B AL TFE -

Gross profit margin of the Group's pre-delivery and consulting services decreased
by approximately 5.8 percentage points from approximately 29.8% in 2021
to approximately 24.0% in 2022. The decrease was mainly due to the impact
of national macro policies, market conditions in the real estate industry and
COVID-19 pandemic during the year, and hence the proportion of pre-delivery
and consulting service projects with higher gross profit margins decreased.
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3)  Community value-added services
Gross profit margin of the Group’s community value-added services rose by
approximately 16.1 percentage points from approximately 50.5% in 2021 to
approximately 66.6% in 2022. The increase was primarily due to an increase in
the proportion of our spatial resources leasing, housing rental and sales, and
decoration and renovation, which have higher gross profit margins than the other
community value-added services.

4)  Smart solution services
Gross profit margin of the Group’s smart solution services decreased by
approximately 15.3 percentage points from approximately 34.3% in 2021 to
approximately 19.0% in 2022. The decrease was primarily due to the impact
of national macro policies, market conditions in the real estate industry and
COVID-19 pandemic during the year, the proportion of smart solution service
projects with higher gross profit margins decreased.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses of the Group decreased by approximately 21.2% from
approximately RMB13.2 million in 2021 to approximately RMB10.4 million in 2022, The
decrease was mainly due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in reduction
in marketing activities.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by approximately 6.5% from
approximately RMB245.4 million in 2021 to approximately RMB229.4 million in 2022.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in staff costs as a results of
the reduction of business scale.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group decreased by approximately 51.7% from
approximately RMB66.9 million in 2021 to approximately RMB32.3 million in 2022,
primarily due to decrease in taxable profit during the year as loss on disposal of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of RMB159.3 million being non-
deductible from income tax in 2021.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year of the Group increased by
approximately 56.5% from approximately RMB68.1 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB106.6 million in 2022, primarily due to the absence of (i) the loss on disposal of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of RMB159.3 million in 2021 and (ii)
the loss on termination of an acquisition transaction of RMB63.9 million in 2021.
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Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's cash and bank balances were approximately
RMB247.3 million, represented a decrease of approximately RMB110.7 million from
approximately RMB358.0 million as of 31 December 2021, primarily due to the slow
recovery of trade receivables and settlement of consideration payable in connection
with the acquisition of subsidiaries in the previous years.

The Group maintained a sound financial position with the net current assets of the
Group increased by approximately RMB79.2 million from approximately RMB449.6
million as of 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB528.8 million as of 31 December
2022. As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was approximately 1.65 (31 December 2021: approximately 1.51).

As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any other
loans or borrowings.

Treasury Policy

The Directors of the Company will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position
to ensure that the Group is well-positioned to capture future growth opportunities.

Goodwill

As of 31 December 2022, the Group recorded goodwill of approximately RMB160.8
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB160.8 million), as a result of the
completion of the acquisitions of Jiaxing Dashu Property Management Company
Limited* (52 H A M ZEE R AR A 7)), Jiangsu Hengyuan Property Management
Company Limited* (LERIERYEEIE AR A ) in 2019, Ningbo Langtong
Property Management Company Limited* (22 8RB % R 7B R A 7)) in 2020
and Zhejiang Ruiyuan Property Management Company Limited* (37T B i ) 2
EIBAPRAA]) in 2021. According to the impairment assessment made by the
management of the Company, there was no indication of any impairment of goodwill
and hence no impairment provision is required for the year.

Right-of-Use Assets

As of 31 December 2022, the Group recorded right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB200.6 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB217.3 million) which are
mainly used by the Group to provide property management services and sublease the
non-residential properties for rental income.
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Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management fees, pre-delivery and
consulting service fees and smart solution service fees. Trade receivables of the
Group increased by approximately RMB90.3 million from approximately RMB738.5
million as of 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB828.8 million as of 31 December
2022, primarily due to (i) the increase in trade receivables from property management
services as a result of the increase in the total GFA under management; and (ii) the
increase in trade receivables from related parties primarily due to the impact of
national macro policies, market conditions in the real estate industry and COVID-19
pandemic during the year.

Other receivables mainly consist of deposits, prepayments, payments on behalf of
staff and payments on behalf of residents under lump-sum basis. Other receivables
of the Group slightly decreased by approximately RMB3.0 million from approximately
RMB76.3 million as of 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB73.3 million as of 31
December 2022.

Payments on behalf of Residents

The Group made payments on behalf of residents of the managed residential
communities under commission basis. Payments on behalf of residents represent
working capital expenditures paid by the Group on behalf of the residential
communities. The Group’s payments on behalf of residents increased by approximately
RMB26.2 million from approximately RMB53.0 million as of 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB79.2 million as of 31 December 2022, primarily due to the
slowdown of collection of such payments.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables mainly represent the obligations to pay suppliers for procurements
in the ordinary course of business. The balances of trade payables of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB56.8 million from approximately RMB247.8 million
as of 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB191.0 million as of 31 December 2022,
primarily due to the reduction of business scale of pre-delivery and consulting and
smart solution services.

Other payables mainly consist of accrued staff costs, deposits received, consideration
payables for acquisition of subsidiaries and receipt on behalf of residents. The accrued
staff costs relate to the employees’ salary and related expenditure. The deposits
received primarily relate to the deposits the Group received from property owners in
the managed properties charged on a lump-sum basis for any additional repairs and
maintenance expense the Group might incur due to their property decoration. Receipt
on behalf of residents relates to the remaining property management fees the Group
received in the managed properties charged on a commission basis and the Group
managed such fees collectively in its headquarters. The balances of other payables of
the Group decreased by approximately RMB46.9 million from approximately RMB389.8
million as of 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB342.9 million as of 31 December
2022, primarily due to the decrease of staff costs result from the reduction of business
scale and settlement of consideration payable related to acquisition of subsidiaries.
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Capital Commitments
As of 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material capital commitment (31
December 2021: nil).

Pledge of Assets
As of 31 December 2022, none of the assets of the Group were pledged (31 December
2021: nil).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Assets
The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of assets during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Acquisition of the equity interest in Zhejiang Ruiyuan

On 27 December 2020, Kaisa Property Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (f=
JKEMEEE CRYI) AR A acquired 60% equity interest in Zhejiang Ruiyuan
at total consideration of RMB107,706,000. Zhejiang Ruiyuan is principally engaged
in the business of property management including residential properties, commercial
properties and other non-residential properties. After the completion of such
acquisition in January 2021, Zhejiang Ruiyuan becomes a subsidiary of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, Zhejiang Ruiyuan has met the relevant
performance targets (namely, the Fourth Performance as defined in the announcement
of the Company dated 27 December 2020) as contained in the announcement dated 27
December 2020.

Acquisition of equity interest in Jiangsu Hengyuan

0On 31 October 2019, Kaisa Property Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited® ({£JK
¥MEER OxY) PR ) acquired 51% equity interest in Jiangsu Hengyuan
at a consideration of RMB34,160,000. The consideration is subject to downward
adjustment of certain performance targets of the Jiangsu Hengyuan. Jiangsu
Hengyuan is principally engaged in the business of property management including
residential communities, office and commercial buildings, government facilities and
other non-residential projects. After the completion of such acquisition, Jiangsu
Hengyuan became a subsidiary of the Company with its results consolidated into
the Group's results from November 2019 onwards. For the year ended 31 December
2022, Jiangsu Hengyuan has met the relevant performance targets as contained in the
announcements on 31 October 2019 and 14 November 2019.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing borrowings by total
equity at the end of the respective period. The gearing ratio of the Group was nil as of
31 December 2021 and 2022.



36

BEE R DA

Management Discussion and Analysis

RAREE
R2022F12A318 - KREBITREEAAE
E(20215E12 8318 : &) -

SNERBE

AEBFEEFNRPRECEER @ EHUAR
BT o 2022512 A31H - LB METE
EMES RRITEHRBHOARKEI09EE T
ZEFIEEASZINERR

AEE B AL EEPIMNERR - BEIFEER
SMNERR - EIEERNAREX B ERNTER
Z BEPINERER

EERBERBE

R202F12A318 » AEBEEA1219%EE
(20215128318 : 12871 B1EE) - BEFHB S
ENEEMRE - Kt M8 € EmEHEB
PRS- NEBET RN FWNER R TR
& R 6 B R DA B 1T 3 B K 4
T BREXRFEIN  EEVRESIZRERRTE
BRIBIEARECRE - AEBAHESRME
Bl - LS HEE B REARENBITHESED
BE - RIRTT kG B S E AT o o
H2019F6 F188 » AR RN —IBHE IR E T &
([EBRRFESHE)) - BEARERTEIFFIBEN AR
HERA201994 5298 AR K ©

HREIR
BRABEMEEEN  BEEANREEH - HE
EREMERRERER -

EIKEXHFEBBPRA T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Contingent Liabilities
As of 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities (31
December 2021: nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group primarily conducts its business in the PRC and in Renminbi. As of 31
December 2022, cash and bank balances denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United
States Dollar was approximately RMB10.9 million, which are subject to foreign
exchange exposure.

The Group currently does not hedge its foreign exchange risk, but continuously
monitors its foreign exchange exposure. The management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure where there is a material impact on the Group.

Employees and Benefits Policies

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 12,159 employees (31 December 2021:
12,871 employees). Employee’s remuneration is determined based on the employee’s
performance, skills, knowledge, experience and market trends. The Group regularly
reviews compensation policies and programs, and will make necessary adjustments in
order to be in line with remuneration levels in the industry norm. In addition to basic
salaries, employees may be granted with discretionary bonus and cash awards based
on individual performance. The Group offers training to its employees so as to enable
them to acquire basic skills to perform their duties and to upgrade or improve their
production techniques. Furthermore, on 18 June 2019, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 29 April 2019.

Subsequent events
Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant subsequent events up
to the date of this report.
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Liao Chuangiang (BE{&E5®), aged 43, is an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company, and the key decision maker of the Group. He is
responsible for the management and business development of the Group,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies, including acquisition
plans and corporate finance as well as the overall strategic planning, corporate
management and business development of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group
in October 2013 and has served in various positions in the Group, including
our chairman, president, standing vice president and assistant to the general
manager of the Group and the vice general manager of Kaisa Leju Property
Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Liao has over 20 years of management experience
in property management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liao served in various
positions in different leading real estate companies in China from 2002 to
2013, including the property management manager of Wuhan Guotou Property
Development Co., Ltd., the manager of the property department of Shenzhen
Lask JV Property Management Co., Ltd., the assistant to general manager of
the property management department of Mingliu Investment Group (a property
developer) and the vice general manager of Wanda Commercial Properties Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Liao graduated from Hubei University, where he obtained a bachelor’s
degree of administrative management in June 2002.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Liao had share options granted by the
controlling shareholder of the Company, Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
1638) ("Kaisa Holdings", together with its subsidiaries “Kaisa Group”), to
subscribe for 4,129,708 shares of Kaisa Holdings, representing approximately
0.06% of the issued share capital of Kaisa Holdings. For details, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities”
under the section headed “Report of Directors” of this report. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liao was not interested in any shares (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO).
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Li Haiming (Z=§18), aged 48, is an executive Director of the Company. He
is the Co-president of Kaisa Group. He has been appointed as the executive
Director of Kaisa Group with effect from 6 April 2020. Mr. Li joined Kaisa Group
in July 2002 and has served in various positions, including the chairman of
Changsha Branch and Shenzhen Branch of Kaisa Real Estate Group, the general
manager of Kaisa Golden Bay International Resorts Company* (& Y/ B0 iR 44
B ££[E), the vice president of Kaisa Real Estate Group (Shenzhen Region) and
Kaisa Holdings, executive president of Kaisa Holdings, chief operating officer of
Kaisa Group, etc. Before Mr. Li joined Kaisa Group, he had worked for Shenzhen
General Institute of Architectural Design and Research Co., LTD* (YT
& EHATEP), and Tsinghua Architectural Design Co., LTD* (5 #5822 588 5
BBR 72 7]). Mr. Li graduated from the Party School of the Guangdong Provincial
Committee of CPC (B & & #4X) in July 2000, majored in Enterprise
Management. He also specialized in architecture and graduated from Chongging
Architecture and Engineering College (22 B 5225 T #2 23F5) in July 1994.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Li had share options granted by the controlling
shareholder of the Company, Kaisa Holdings, to subscribe for 7,226,990 shares of
Kaisa Holdings, representing approximately 0.10% of the issued share capital of
Kaisa Holdings. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li was not interested in any shares
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Nie Qiang (Z£5%), aged 41, is a senior vice president of Kaisa Group Holdings
Ltd. (“Kaisa Group”). Mr. Nie joined Kaisa Group in April 2010 and successively
served as the general manager of the Shenzhen real estate company, the
Shanghai regional vice president, the executive vice president and the president,
and a vice president of Kaisa Group. Before joining the Kaisa Group, Mr. Nie
worked in the China Water Resources and Hydropower Third Engineering Bureau
Installation Branch Co., Ltd. (FBI/KF/KBEE=TIERLZESBERA
7)) and Fantasia China Group Co., Ltd. (fEIEF £ (E) AR A F). Mr.
Nie graduated from North China University of Water Conservancy and Electronic
Power (224t 7K F7K B E2BT) with a bachelor's degree in mechanical design
and manufacturing and the relevant automation in June 2004.

Zhao Jianhua (2 ), aged 52, is an executive Director of the Company,
joined the Group in August 2022. He was formerly a Commissar of Police Security
Department of Public Security Bureau of Yongzhou, Hunan (8R4 sk M T A
T REBIREEBZ). Mr. Zhao graduated from The School of Finance and
Accounting of Hengyang (171% 1 B4 BU& 5+ E24%) majoring in finance in 1991.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in politics and law from Central Party School of
the Communist Party of China (AP 9% Z45) in 2000 and completed his studies in
legal affairs at The Open University of China (B4ZR 5 B 22) in 2022. Mr. Zhao
has the title of accountant granted by the Ministry of personnel and the Ministry
of finance of the People’s Republic of China.

Mou Zhaohui (2 80¥&), aged 48, serves as the president and an executive
Director of the Group since 16 September 2022 and is responsible for chairing
the work of the Group. Ms. Mou joined Kaisa Group in February 2011 and
successively served as the Shenzhen group vice president, the Guangzhou
regional executive vice president and president, the vice president and executive
vice president of the capital investment group, the executive vice president
of the new business group, the vice president of the group holdings and the
president of the cost management department of the group holdings. Before
joining the Kaisa Group, Ms. Mou worked at Excellence Group (= 5 £2 &) and
Huizhou Fangzhi Group (/175 E 5% [&). Ms. Mou graduated from Wuhan
University of Science and Technology (EV2%HE A Z2) with a bachelor's degree
in engineering management in July 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongbai (21348), aged 50, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing independent
advice on the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Liu is currently the
partner at Shenzhen Huatang Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership).
Having nearly 30 years of experience in auditing and financial management, Mr.
Liu was the partner at Shenzhen Hengda Certified Public Accountants (General
Partnership) from 2005 to July 2014 and the branch manager at Agricultural
Bank of China, Hengyang branch between 1993 and 2002. Mr. Liu graduated
from Jiaying University in the PRC, where he obtained a diploma degree of
finance in July 1993. He received a bachelor’s degree of finance from The Open
University of China in January 2017 and received a master's degree of Business
Administration from Guangxi University in December 2021. Mr. Liu obtained
the certificate of certified public account granted by Ministry of Finance of
the PRC (the “MOF"), the title of senior accountant granted by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security, the certificate of certified public valuer
granted by the MOF and the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC, the qualification
of registered tax agent granted by the MOF and the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC, the qualification of certified internal auditor by The Institute of Internal
Auditors and the certificate of qualified board secretary issued by the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.
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Ma Xiumin (5 5 #%), aged 50, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing advice on
the operations and management of the Group. Ms. Ma is currently the partner
of Shenzhen Hengda Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership). Ms.
Ma has nearly 21 years of experience in tax administration, accounting and
internal control. She was an independent director of the board at Shenzhen
Clou Electronics Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002121), from 2007 to 2013. She was the independent director at
AQTO Electronics Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002587), from 2016 to 2018. Ms. Ma graduated from Central China
University of Technology in the PRC, where she obtained a diploma degree of
technical economics in July 1992. She also received a bachelor’s degree of
economic management from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (formerly
known as Zhongnan University of Economics) in June 1997. Ms. Ma obtained the
qualification of intermediate accountant granted by the MQOF, the certificate of
certified public accountant granted by the MOF and the certificate of qualified
independent director issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Chen Bin (BR3E), aged 50, has been the independent non-executive Director
since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing independent advice
on the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Chen is now the partner
at Shenzhen Ligin Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership). Mr. Chen
graduated from Lanzhou University of Arts and Science (formerly known as
Gansu United University) in the PRC, where he obtained a diploma degree of
financial accounting in July 1994. He also obtained the certificate of certified
public accountant granted by the MOF, the certificate of certified asset valuer
granted by the MOF and the certificate of qualified independent director issued
by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen has nearly 29 years of experience
in financial auditing and economic consulting. He was the deputy director of
Shenzhen Zhongxiang Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership) from
2008 to 2012, the independent non-executive director at First Dragoncom Agro-
strategy Holdings Ltd from 2005 to 2006 and the financial controller at Shenzhen
Qiaozhi Industrial Co., Ltd. from 1998 to 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xie Junpeng (& M5), aged 41, was appointed as the vice president of
the Group in December 2016 and is primarily responsible for quality control,
engineering management, safety and intelligent engineering of the Group. Mr.
Xie joined the Kaisa Group in February 2011 and served as the assistant to
general manager and deputy general manager of the Kaisa Group's customer
services department, the general manager of the customer services department
of the real estate group, and was primarily responsible for overseeing the
customer services, property management business and other businesses of the
Kaisa Group. Prior to joining the Kaisa Group, Mr. Xie served in Shenxin Western
Real Estate Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Vanke Property Management Services Company
and LVGEM Management Group. Mr. Xie graduated from Guangdong University
of Technology, where he obtained a bachelor’s degree of civil engineering in
July 2004, and obtained the professional qualification as an assistant engineer
awarded by Shenzhen Bao'an District Personnel Bureau.

Xiao Yukang (B34 BE), aged 38, was appointed as assistant president of the
Group in July 2022 and is primarily responsible for investment and development
and community value-added services of the Group. Mr. Xiao joined the Group in
July 2008 and served as manager, deputy general manager, general manager
of investment and development department and acting assistant president of
the Group. Mr. Xiao graduated from Shenzhen University, where he obtained a
bachelor's degree of Chinese language and literature in June 2008.
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Cai Lifa (£237 %), aged 40, was re-designated as assistant president in July
2022 and is primarily responsible for quality control, engineering management,
and landscaping of the Group. Mr. Cai joined the Group in March 2016 and
served as assistant to the general manager of the Group’s safety department,
assistant to the general manager of the Group’s quality and engineering
management department, chairman of Jiaxing Dashu Property Management
Company Limited and acting assistant president of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Cai served successively as deputy general manager in Evergrande
Property Services Group Limited Jinan Company and Shandong Company. Mr. Cai
graduated from China West Normal University, where he obtained a bachelor’s
degree of economics in July 2006, and obtained the professional qualification as
a certified property manager.

Zeng Shuzhuang (Z38#%), aged 41, joined the Group and was appointed as
assistant president of the Group in April 2021 and is primarily responsible for the
financial management matters of the Group. Ms. Zeng joined the Kaisa Group
in June 2017 and served as a senior business manager and deputy business
director of the financial management department of Shenzhen Kaisa Finance
Group and deputy general manager of planning and finance department of
financial management group. Prior to joining the Kaisa Group, Ms. Zeng worked
in KPMG, Canasia Financial Inc. and at the headquarters of Vanke Group. Ms.
Zeng obtained a bachelor of commerce from McMaster University, Canada in
July 2005 and a master's degree in finance and investment from University
of Nottingham, UK in April 2007. Ms. Zeng has a professional qualification of
Chartered Financial Analyst.

Kou Yuguang (52 £ &), aged 51, joined the Group and was appointed as
assistant president of the Group in July 2021 and is primarily responsible for
safety supervision and management. Prior to joining the Kaisa Group, Mr. Kou
worked in Hunan People’s Police School, Guangming Branch of Public Security
Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality and Blue Beret Safety Education Development
Shenzhen Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Security Service Co., Ltd. Mr. Kou obtained a
bachelor’s degree in wushu sanda from Wuhan Institute of Sport in July 1995.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Objectives of the Report

This environmental, social and governance report (“this report” or the “ESG
Report”) published by Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Kaisa Prosperity”, the “Group” or “We") aims to provide the performance of
the Group in respect of the environmental, social and governance aspects in a
transparent and open manner over the past year, so that the stakeholders can
understand the progress and direction of the sustainable development of the
Group.

Basis of Preparation

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” contained
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The
disclosure in this report complies with the disclosure requirements of the “comply
or explain” as set out in the Guide. The content of this report is prepared in
accordance with a set of systematic procedures, including identifying major
stakeholders, identifying and ranking material ESG issues, determining the scope
of this report, collecting relevant materials and data, reviewing those data, and
preparing this report based on such information.

Reporting Scope

This report covers the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the
“Reporting Period” or the “Year”), which is in conformity with the Group's
financial year. This report focuses on the Group’s management approach,
performance and measures in respect of the environmental, social and
governance aspects. In particular, the environmental KPIs disclosed in this report
cover 49 selected core functional units' 2 accounting for 95% of the Group's total
revenue while the social KPIs cover its overall business scope. Unless otherwise
stated, RMB is used in the report as its legal currency.

025 L BAREEROEB (MR ERIRTS - A1 RERIRE - 8B 8efR T RIRIBIA LA BILERT) B R R H49M - E49f 0 BEE

REHMEMAERRHEBRENEROREBENR

BENZOBREATMAESROLR  R=AME - Eh - EEERY KR -

There are 49 functional units engaging in the Group's core businesses (i.e. property management services, pre-delivery and consulting services, smart solutions services
and community value-added services) in 2022. These 49 core functional units have been included in the reporting scope of environmental KPIs.

The selected core functional units located in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta, Central China, West China and Bohai Economic

Rim.
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Reporting Principles

This report was reviewed, confirmed and approved by the Board on 24 March
2023. During the process of preparation of this report, we summarized the
Group's performance in corporate and social responsibilities based on the
principles of “Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency”. The
statistical methods and KPIs in this report are as consistent as possible with
those of last year. Any changes have been explained and comparative data
have been provided where appropriate. Please refer to the table below for our

B B2HTER  THRRMAEZFERR

IR A7 N2 O] & o

BE R R A

Reporting Principles

B8

Implications

understanding and response to such reporting principles.

BMeym e

Our Responses

B2t

Materiality

Quantitative

EEFSETAMRE HEMER
HEHREENEMBHEELERY
B8 BT ABEIERLER

If the directors decided that the threshold at
which ESG issues become sufficiently important
to investors and other stakeholders, they should
be reported by the issuer.

FRETIEEEAA U 20 R
T BHERENENERERMALN
B A BRERSETE TAMEUE

VAR Pt FR B384 (R SR B SRR FE T 4K EE -

The disclosure of KPIs needs to be measurable.
The data of standards, methods and assumption
or calculation on emissions and energy
consumption, as well as standards for reporting
emissions and energy consumption as well as
conversion factors used shall be disclosed.

REERRERE @ RERREHRESE RIF
MEEBEAFEN  RMERSHERETHAM
ERIR g RELAARNBIE - AREER
RIN AT - RN AEE2 M EREETEE L E
REERTHE o FAAVKIR B ABRE 7 HB @S -
REZERE - #AHE TESGHENEZRZ= -
HHETLAEEET  WERSTHETHEMNSR
£ o
The Group believes ESG report exerts significant
influence on the investors and stakeholders. We disclosed
the process of identifying important environmental,
social and governance factors in the report, including
the identification of stakeholders, and the use of the
importance matrix for the assessment of material issues.
Based on the communication mechanism with stakeholders
and the principle of materiality, we identified important
ESG-related factors, focused on them, and disclosed
corresponding measures in the report.

R|EASEFTARBARERUER - WEER
B MR AEE - 7% - RERKET
ETERBEARPEASNEREAZAR - I
PREE BN TEL AR L -

This report made quantitative disclosure about KPIs, and
reported the standards, methods, assumption or data for
calculation of emissions and energy consumption, as well
as the conversion factors used and, where appropriate,
effective comparisons.
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BE R Al 2% EMHErE

Reporting Principles  Implications Our Responses

T BE  HgRESREERE MR M AMEDFAHAFINAIFEE R EMEOR
2R BRARETREMTERSEE MATEEEPE -
FRESAERER BRI EHER -

Balance The ESG report should provide an unbiased  This report discussed our achievements and challenges in
picture of the issuer’'s performance. The sustainability.
report should avoid selections, omissions, or
presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence a decision or judgment by the report

reader.
— BOANEER—SNERRTHE © AREFREFEA—BWFHZE - URABAER021F
BRI M@ RERHBARAMEERER AN EFALROEAEESELRE -
BILEER o
Consistency The issuer should use consistent methodologies ~ This report adopted, as much as practicable, consistent
to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data  methodologies and provided explanation on any differences
over time. in the methods of computation adopted in 2021.
FEEFRR Source of Information
ARERBEEREAEHERXAXMH - & The information disclosed in this report is derived from the Group's formal
HHBRARESE c EERUAREAR documents, statistics or public information. The Board is responsible for the
MEE  EREMTEEEE - truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its contents.
B#HAEN Way of Publication
AR EDBIAR X R ERE - aJ AR This report is prepared in both Chinese and English and is available for viewing
A) 48 0k (www.jzywy.com) K F 7 Bt 32 FT 49 1k and downloading from the Company's website (www.jzywy.com) and the Stock
(www.hkexnews.hk) & B Al & - B AR E Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk). In the event of discrepancies between
B BMRAREAER - P XRR the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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BOARD STATEMENT

On behalf of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa Prosperity”, the “Group”,
“we" or “us”), | am pleased to publish the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for 2022 and announce the progress and achievements of the Group
in sustainable development. As a leading urban integrated service operator
in China, we uphold our service philosophy of full dedication and devotion to
provide high quality services to property owners, customers and local community.
In the meantime, Kaisa Prosperity continues to explore the development of
smart services, enhance our innovative capability and comprehensive strengths
in research and development and integrate resources of smart medical, smart
education, smart transportation and smart industry, with a view to creating a
benchmark for new intelligent city in the future.

Looking back in 2022, the COVID-19 epidemic had posed critical challenges to
Kaisa Prosperity in the operations of property management services, consulting
services, community value-added services and smart solution services. For
property management services, our frontline employees continued to serve
the Company with perseverance and fight at the anti-pandemic frontline to
maintain safety and hygiene of properties and communities under management.
In 2022, Kaisa Prosperity actively cooperated with government departments
to improve the quality of life of the residents, and implemented the renovation
project of improving drinking water, covering 5,923 households. As a pioneer in
the industry, Kaisa Prosperity always bears in mind its corporate mission and
responsibilities and serve the public and property owners with full dedication.
When the community faces an emergency, Kaisa Prosperity promptly activates
the emergency response with scientific methods. With the hard work of its
frontline property management employees, Kaisa Prosperity is able to build up
the last defense for prevention and control against COVID-19. During the special
operations of each branch and project, emergency unit teams, explosion-proof
teams, special patrol teams, etc. were set up and conducted 582 fire drills and
855 anti-riot and fire-fighting emergency trainings in the form of touching smoke
and manual alarms from time to time and at fixed points. In addition, Kaisa
Prosperity actively responds to the call of the country and cares for the health
and safety of the community. In 2022, Kaisa Prosperity launched the “Kaisa's
neighbour | Kaisa's Family Free Medical Consultation Activity” in regular projects
to help owners establishing correct health knowledge, developing good living
habits and let health enter the community.
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We dare to innovate and strive to explore different opportunities to maintain
our leading position in the market. Shenzhen Jiake Intelligent Technology Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group (“Jiake Intelligent”) has been committed to the
research and development of smart cities over the years. Through real-time
monitoring market development demand, it is able to observe iterative routines
of smart products and enhance service quality. Jiake Intelligent spares no efforts
in creating a safe, convenient, comfort and intelligent modern community. In
2022, Jiake Intelligent focused on the overall upgrading of service and quality,
continuously strengthened the project management capability. At the same
time, in the face of market challenges, Jiake Intelligent continuously improved
the design standard of smart products, and continuously contributed to the
construction of digital cities and smart communities. The smart security system
of Jiake Intelligent upgraded again, which provided a solid foundation of
software and hardware for public prevention. Leveraging its excellent product
strength and service capability, Jiake Intelligent won the awards of “2022 Top
10 Competitiveness of Real Estate Supply Chain Industry in China” and “China
Public Security Innovation Enterprise”, and was selected for the “2022 List of
Innovative SMEs in Shenzhen”.

Safeguarding the owners’ well-being and contributing to the sustainable
development of the world cannot be done without the joint efforts of every
employee of Kaisa Prosperity. “Having both ability and political integrity and
taking the integrity as the first” is our core talent concept. We care about every
employee, strive to constantly improve the quality of employees, devote effort
to provide employees with broad development space, realize the common
development of employees and the Company, create an efficient and inclusive
team atmosphere, and build a warm and loving family with employees. After 15
years of “NKP" training, the Group has cultivated a number of outstanding high-
quality talents, who are distributed in various core positions of the Company,
such as project management, department management, senior management, and
so on. They are spread throughout all regions of businesses within the country,
and continue to grow into a solid force for the Company, bringing a steady
stream of power for the Company's development.
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The Board makes efforts to facilitate the inclusion of the concept of sustainable
development in the operations of Kaisa Prosperity. The Board is responsible
for formulating ESG strategies and overseeing and managing the associated
risks to ensure the effectiveness of the internal control system. The Group also
established a ESG Guiding Group which is led by the chief executive officer
and formed by the head of the major businesses. The Working Group regularly
reviews and updates the existing internal policies in respect of environmental
protection, human resources management, anti-corruption, product liabilities and
supply chain management, driving the Group’s operation towards sustainable
and new intelligent development. Leveraging its energy system of the properties
under its management, the Group will continue to transform into a low-carbon
development mode and implement a waste classification and recycle plan.
In 2022, 317 public welfare activities on waste classification were held with
188,499 participants. In terms of community, we will continue to organize
various charity activities. In 2022, Kaisa Prosperity launched a green, low-carbon
environmental protection campaign with the theme of “sharing beauty and
practicing environmental protection”, which enable our staff and the public to
make contribution to environmental protection and the community.

Furthermore, as the Group attaches great importance to the possible negative
effects on the environment caused by its operations, it has formulated a series
of environmental protection measures and cost reduction targets to build a green
and smart community. Through the monitoring of key indicators during the year,
the Group has reached respective cost reduction targets in its core business and
hopes to further reduce the negative effects on the natural environment caused
by its operations. All of these goals cannot be achieved without the dedicated
efforts of our staff, customers and the public in the community, which supports
our vision of sustainable development. With our achievements in pursuing
sustainable development, Kaisa Prosperity was awarded the honor of “2022
China Excellent Listed Property Management Company by ESG Development”.

And lastly, Kaisa Prosperity will continue to collect feedbacks from and
cooperate with various parties, in order to optimise our property management
and smart services and create long-term value for the Group and the smart city in
pursuit of the sustainable development goal.

Liao Chuangiang (Chairman)
March 2023
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ABOUT KAISA PROSPERITY

About us

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's property management services covered
65 cities in China, with a total of 673 managed properties and a total GFA
under management reaching 94.5 million sq.m.; our services cover high-end
communities, commercial complex, office buildings, cultural and sports centre,
industrial parks and urban ancillary and public services. It has more than 40
branch companies and subsidiaries and approximately 12,000 employees and
outsourced employees serving more than 400,000 property units across the
nation. Qur current businesses involve basic services, pre-delivery and consulting
services, community value-added services and smart solution services.

Awards and Honors

As an enterprise with national level one qualification, Kaisa Prosperity has
passed the IS09001 quality management system certification. In 2022, Kaisa
Prosperity gained recognitions from authoritative organisations in the industry
and the market with its high-quality services and core value, reflecting the
confidence of various sectors in Kaisa Prosperity’s brand. Awards and Honors
received by us in 2022 are listed as below:

15

Awards

20227 BIY 3 BR s _E T A mlt R IG(E AR TS AE 1 TOP10

2022 China Top 10 Listed Property Management Companies in terms
of Community Value-added Service Capabilities

20227 B3 BR T TR A RIBEE Y EEARTETOP10

2022 China Top 10 Listed Property Management Companies in terms
of Non-residential Property Services

2022 B ARFFESGEE RIES B3

2022 China Excellent Property Management Company by ESG
Development

2022 B PRI B R b3

2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China
NFESEYERBEERE - ZSTEEEL

2022 China Leading Property Management Companies in terms of
Characteristic Services — Diversified Smart Businesses

2022 B S PRTSESGR RB /b X

2022 China Excellent Property Management Companies in Terms of
ESG Development



52 EIKEEFEBABR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

RIE - HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R EREAE #2158

No. Awarding Party Awards

7 mmneE,/ e85 E 202290 AR5 71 B R 3£ T0P18

7 CRIC Property Management/Shanghai E-house 2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in Terms of Service
Capabilities (Top18)

8 mminYE,/ 85E 20223 N ) £ PR 7 F1T0P207R 3

8 CRIC Property Management/Shanghai E-house 2022 Top 20 Office Property Management Companies in Terms of
Service Capabilities

9 mmneE,/ 85 E 022 E R M B ERLBE

9 CRIC Property Management/Shanghai E-house 2022 Leading Company in Property Service Satisfaction

10 mMaYE,/ EESE 2022BR 5 IR (BINEIREF D)

10 CRIC Property Management/Shanghai E-house 2022 Benchmark Enterprise in Terms of Service Capabilities (Huizhou
Kaisa Center)

11 LS EMERRE 20224 % PRA (B 35 -T2 §2058

1 Shanghai E-house Real Estate Research Institute 2022 China Top 20 Listed Property Management Services Companies

12 PEERETEGE [BUF R « BRI BARMIMEG P

12 China Communications Industry Association “Digital Technology - Quality Service” Excellent Case Model
Enterprises

13 PEGREIEGS [BIFEaL e EEEIX BARNIASH

13 China Communications Industry Association “Digital Intelligence - Refined Control” Excellent Case Model
Enterprises

14 TEBEIEDGS [HEiES|H o LEIGIE EFEPI ME D

14 China Communications Industry Association “Party Leading, Community Governance” Excellent Case Model
Enterprises

15 wminE,/ T Y [ 202270 B ¥ 3 AR 7S 1 26 R (B {EL 10032 |

15 CRIC Property Management/CPMRI 2022 China Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in Brand Value

16 wimimYE, Y [ 2022 5 AR 765 2 Fa mm b 1B 22 3095

16 CRIC Property Management/CPMRI 2022 Top 30 Property Service South China Brand Enterprises

17 =M E i [20227 B9 RS cn h S 2 1R 25

17 CRIC Property Management/CPMRI 2022 China Property Services Brand Featured Enterprise
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Development Goals of Sustainable Governance

As it forges ahead with steady business growth, the Group regards social
and environmental responsibilities as one of the core values in its business
operations. We are committed to becoming a sustainable property management
enterprise, with an aim to create long-term value for all stakeholders and
maintain high-quality services and operational standards, which will bring
positive effect to the communities we are serving. We actively control the
impacts on the environment and the communities caused during the process of
operation, improve our information transparency and perform our environmental
and social responsibilities, for the purpose of creating a green and sustainable
future for our next generation.

Sustainable Governance Strategies

The Group has formed a top-down environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
structure in adhering to its sustainable development philosophy. A governance
structure for sustainable development is formed by the Board, ESG Working
Group, various functional departments and subsidiaries to facilitate the orderly
management and information disclosure of ESG for Kaisa Prosperity.

The Board is responsible for formulating ESG strategies and assessing and
determining the risks and goals associated with ESG, in order to ensure the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control. The ESG Working Group
is responsible for the job allocation and governance based on the ESG strategies,
establishment and improvement of ESG working system, coordination and
supervision of ESG tasks, striving to integrate sustainable development elements
into daily operation, and for the report to the Board about the progress of ESG
tasks and for the Group’s annual ESG Report. At the execution level. various
functional departments comprising the Customer and Engineering Department
(“Customer Department”), Administration and Human Resources Department
(“Human Resources Department”), Legal and Risk Management Department,
Procurement and Cost Department (“Procurement Department”), Audit and
Supervision Department and Finance Department (“Finance Department”) and
subsidiaries are responsible for performing ESG tasks, including collection of
stakeholders’ opinions, internal and external materiality assessment, preparation
of the ESG Report, reporting to the ESG Working Group and the Board about the
ESG tasks, and collection, record and reporting of the ESG-related information
and data, as well as implementing and improving the ESG concepts, strategies
and measures of the Group in daily operation and management.
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7 I R EARESGHRS -
The B;r d TEEIME R
Formulates and reviews ESG strategies

and action plans

RIESE F ST ERIESCRES -

ESGT /& TEEHEIR B B T MBS
ESG Working Group Allocates works and oversees based on
: the ESG strategies, action plans and goals
! formulated by the Board

A HAjJ%B Le\;jﬂ;:liaj?dE I;Eiﬂsk BRI R EE‘#_E& S B 3% ER
Customer uman Mg Procurement (U lis e Finance
Department Resources anagement Department Supervision Department
Department Department Department
ESGL{E/NMEFIR BRBHESCIIE » [AEF S ERESCEIEMESCHREH LIE#E
ESG Working Group implements specified ESG tasks and report to the Board
about ESG management and the progress of tasks contained in the ESG Report

EEgsH Board Engagement
EESRNHURETEMNEERERE The Board is committed to incorporating sustainability into its business
2% BB EAEEAREBESCRET development. It recognizes its responsibility in supervising the Group's ESG
AMEBET 815 strategies, including:
o ML RETAKEAESCHEEARER(F e assessing and determining the risks associated, such as climate change

& R ) RS with and opportunities arising from the Group’s ESG issues;
e MBREHHENEUNEREELA e ensuring that an appropriate and effective risk management and internal

S control system is in place;
o HIFTASEEMESCER S - KHE - e formulating the Group’s management approach, strategies, priority and

EYSEEE goals of ESG;
o TLiHEE B R iR AT AN S B RIESGER e reqularly reviewing the Group's ESG performance in relation to relevant

B[R goals; and
o  FHAKEESCHENNEFEER - e approving the information disclosed in the Group’s ESG Report.
EE TG - BB R ERESCEE - The Board regularly evaluates, identifies and manages ESG risks, and explores
WiERETFEERBERRITEEHRER potential opportunities through compliance with regulatory requirements and
BIEHE - RAFBHERERBEE - industry practices, bringing long-term value for the stakeholders. The Board also
bEoh - EEE NG E R S IHESGE £ reviews the implementation of all ESG goals on a regular basis and adjusts the
HIFATIEN - WHNEE R AT THIER N goals as appropriate and practicable, for the purpose of minimizing the impacts
% B BREFFRIRBREGHF on the environment and the society brought by its development.

EREREK -
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T REEFpERE V. COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

AEERE  THRIREFNDENE IS
HEMEBBRHER MRS HekEn
FAPTERROTE - TR BE AR
PR BERERMK R - AEEEEEET
FrBBRES RS TED  BRH
EREMFEIBRHMNE(BRRRR
KREE B BI - %P HEBKE
B)AR - TRRBFIEIECEIE - UE
RARELSMER

202 - AEEWEERNE - HNEK
BIEHE BBREMRMMHIENTTE
SHEIESIR TR -

BERRRE

Stakeholder Communication Ways/

FHEFE

The Group believes that understanding and responding to the concerns of
stakeholders will not only help assess the impact of our decisions on ESG
issues, but also shape and adjust our development and growth direction. The
Group actively communicates with key stakeholders (including shareholders
and investors, government, employees, customers, suppliers and communities)
through different communication channels, such as reports, workshops, opinion
surveys or other platforms, to understand their concerned matters in order to
achieve common progress and development.

In 2022, the main stakeholders of the Group, their interests and concerns,
communication channels and the action plans we have formulated are set out in
the table below.

BMeTEEE

Our Action Plans

=

Major Concerns

Group Channels

PR o BRKREAR
R EE o BMFR

o RFDHEME

Shareholders e (eneral meetings
and investors e Publication of annual report
e Public information disclosure

BT o TR
o BERHITERER

The government e  Filing of tax returns
¢ Reporting on policy
implementation

o RIFFERNBE

o HIEFIFHEE R

o RAGEEHE

o RERFHEREEER

e Maintenance of continuous
profitability

e Formulation of sustainable
development strategies

e Enhancement of transparency

e Protection of the interest of
shareholders and investors

o BWREZEHM

o HOEREEM

o [IEBIREE

o THEHERE

e (perational compliance

e Payment of taxes in full
according to the laws

e Response to the government's
policies

e Support to local development

EHBRRRE
THERESE
BRKREEREE
NEEITAE FIRME

To convene regular general meetings
To convene regular board meetings
To convene meetings with investors
To make statutory disclosure in a
timely manner

BFBFOEENER

ELE b TR+ R A RAR
BlESESE
RRHIOR B BT R

To comply with national laws and
regulations

To maintain good relationship with
local governments

To provide job opportunities

To pay taxes on time and in full
according to the laws



3R ANNUAL REPORT 2022 {EJK#EE#FEMABM /AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED

57

RIR - HEkER®mE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BEEE

Major Concerns

o ERE

BEAX RE
Stakeholder Communication Ways/
Group Channels

BMeTEEE

Our Action Plans

8T o TRHFEMB o BEERE
o T {EHS o I EJ”%%@
o FrBER]
o BEMIE
Employees e (Qpinion surveys and e Career development
questionnaires * e Training opportunities
e Workshops ® e Remuneration and benefits

e Corporate culture

5P o {ERI&HES o ZEREFEMEERE
s EFEMEERTE o PRH RS
s XFEBBER s FFPZE

o BRLRE
o THiREMERBEE

Customers e Individual meeting © e A comfortable and safe living
e Customer satisfaction survey’ environment
e Customer communication e Timely services
meeting e Safety of residents

e Protection of privacy
e Enhancement of property
management quality

BREPRETTIREIERAERS - 2HETARTHA -
WRERER TR ITIEY - 288 THHLZ0BA -

HH 7 1151 & B 6 5 5 49209,889A ©

DR BE BTN TP L24807A -

ZIEBERATFLI63A

Seven opinion surveys were conducted during the Reporting Period involving nearly 1,734 employees.
67 workshops were organized during the Reporting Period involving nearly 305 employees.
Approximately 209,889 customers attended individual meetings.

Approximately 24,807 customers participated in satisfaction surveys.

Approximately 663 customers participated in communication meetings.

BB EER - BERERET
AR &2 IR R TIRIE
THRETEAZRSFK - W
HETALE - BEFHE
EEAFHENNIIERE
ST RERENES

S EREY ]

NCIAR e

To organize trainings for professional
development, occupational skills
and safety procedures

To understand employees’
development needs and evaluate
them in an impartial and objective
way

To create a competitive working
environment

To organize care and welfare
activities for staff

Staff mailboxes

Company's intranet

RIS R &L « Z2EL
TEHEITRMEE AL
HEPIF L REMBRIE
PERES PR

To systemize and standardize our
services

To carry out regular satisfaction
survey

To promptly respond to and handle
customer complaints

To effectively protect customer
privacy
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o EFE

Stakeholder
Group

HIER

Suppliers

o

The community

-EEME

BBEAR KRB
Communication Ways/
Channels

o MERMKRREFZMAE

. EEEH

. BT

e Review and evaluation of the
performance of suppliers

e Communication meetings

e Phone discussion

=

v 8

X ik
it
-kH-
m

W
@
>
B
o

8
o
%

e Media coverage
e (Qrganization/participation in
charitable activities

VL.

REETARENKEEL - RIS EFHD

HEHRIS

HekERREETERMN

e UTAEEMTG 2RE

B4 AREENRE HERERS

]

AREERIZECGRE
ERERTNEBEENA

MR EK -

HIEFRR h23EEE

HEkERREESD)

ELZEBERAS

BERMNSEHRENMT @ EL AR

& o
=

2pz 3]

Major Concerns

o IBEAFER

J Eﬁ A

o NHANIE

e Promotion of daily
communication

e Performance of contract

e (Openness and fairness

o WENGRBEE
o EIHGEER
o DEMRER
o BHMHERAR
o FAE59ELRIEE
e |nvestment in charitable
business
e (reen operations

e Participation in community

establishment
e Devotion to charity events
e (Care for vulnerable groups

BMeTEE S

Our Action Plans

B AR ERABEREE
REtEEEH T ERFRE
FEERBARE(EEERE
To establish an open and
transparent tendering system
to provide suppliers with equal
opportunity for competition

To communicate and optimise
project management on an ongoing
and direct basis

EMSERHE A DA
GEIEYNENS
BEEEEIRIR

To regularly organize charitable
activities

To conduct charity events

To advocate energy saving and
conservation

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To determine the key points to be disclosed in this report, we have conducted
materiality assessment on ESG issues with stakeholders. The procedures of the
materiality assessment are set out as below:

Step One: Identification of potential ESG issues

The Group identified 23 issues in accordance with the disclosure requirements
set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and
based on the business characteristics and daily operation of Kaisa Prosperity.
These issues are considered to have impacts on the environment and the society

during our operation.
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E4 EEMFMG Step Two: Materiality Assessment
NEBESEEBRIERIENE ERIAREPRR The Group's management conducted internal meetings based on the opinions
WENERETRSEE @ HEERE - collected from the communications with stakeholders to score the degree of
HEeMEREENEERENEEZTR relevance and importance of every ESG issue from 0 to 5 marks (0 represents
0E5DEITI D (0B TER  bARGAES irrelevant; 5 represents most important).
2).
B=4 HIERRF Step Three: Priority
KRPBIETOER K BEFNENTE ] Based on the evaluation result, we prioritized the issues in two dimensions,
MEEBHTE IMEEEHRRETEHE namely, “importance to stakeholders” and “importance to our operation” and
P LAPTBHAE RRELA N BB B4Rk - prepared the materiality matrix as below:
HFEEZEE BEEZEE

Moderately material issues Highly material issues
=Y
& 7l
Z 1
S
2 &
i)
1
Qo
2

[22) D
®
1)
EEEEHE

Lowly material issues

HEXRERNEEMN

Materiality to corporate development

0 RIE L a4 0 ER
Environmental Social  Governance
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EREEM

BEEZHE
Highly material
issues

TEERER
Moderately material
issues

BEEZER
Lowly material
issues

5353

Materiality of Issue  Ordering

1

2

23

Frifgieg

Scope

e
Social
B

(Governance

e
Social
e
Social
e
Social
e
Social
B8
Governance

e
Social
e
Social
e
Social
5

(Governance
iR
Social
B

Environmental

B
Environmental
2
Environmental

2
Environmental

R
Environmental

2%
Environmental

e
Social
e
Social
R5
Environmental

%
Environmental

2%
Environmental
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FrRER
Category

RBEERIRHER

Service quality and complaint handling
rEER

Corporate governance

EPEILRERTS

Well-being, health and safety of customers

BExEmEze

Occupational health and safety

STHFIRER

Employee training and development

EPERLBRZE

Customer data privacy and data security

HERGERARERRER

Selection of suppliers and risk management along
the supply chain

BIFREEH

Recruitment and promotion of employees
FEiEE

Equal opportunity
BILERETIREHST

Prevention of child labor and forced labor employment
REERR T

Anti-corruption and money laundering
HRERERS

Communication and integration in community
TR

Climate change

Green and smart property
ERE/N

Green office

RRE R
Energy management

BEEyER

Waste management

Bk

Water consumption

BANGERERERED
Participation in charity and volunteering activities
REABERE

Protection of intellectual property rights

ERRERANERER
Management of risks associated with environmental
and natural resources

BEREER
Greenhouse gas emissions

RPN

Exhaust emissions

RENE

Disclosing chapter

FNE AHME - RHRG

X. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

FTE RZLE ARA

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

FNE RHmE - BHRE

X. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

FNE NUARK  ERLRE

VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

FENE NUARK - ERAR

VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

FNE AHmE - BHRE

X. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

FTE RZLE R

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

BNE NUARK - ERAE

VIl PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

BNE NUARK - RS

VIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

FNE UABK - EBULR

VIl PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION

B+E RRLE AT

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

B+—E EFRHL OEdE

XI. GATHERING SHIMMER, GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY

FLE EHEE - BITRR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FNE Rt - RHRE

IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

FtE EHER  BORR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FLE ERER  BORR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FtE EHER  BORR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FLE ERER - BORR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

F+—2 EZNL OEME

XI. GATHERING SHIMMER, GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY

B+E FRLE AT

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

FLE BHEE - BITRR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FLE ERER - BORR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

FLE ERER - BORR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
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According to the results of materiality assessment, service quality and complaint
handling, corporate governance, well-being, health and safety of customers,
occupational health and safety, employee training and development, customer
data privacy and data security and selection of suppliers and risk management
along the supply chain are regarded as the most concerned issues of
stakeholders and the Group. While taking into account environmental and social
responsibilities, the Group will pay more attention to the above areas, and strive
to achieve continuous improvement and sustainable business development.

Climate Change

Kaisa Prosperity has been aware of the worsening consequences of global
warming, which poses a huge and profound impact and challenge to both
mankind and the global environment. The phenomenon arising from climate
change such as extreme weather, rising temperatures and ocean warming are
also threatening the stability of the Group’s business and operations. In view of
this, we have responded how we addressed the climate change with reference
to the recommendations from the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD).
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=) Governance
BIEANEECDGRANAFERREEZR T~ The duties and responsibilities of all units are set out as below in accordance

Reth BB WBEMEE -

AR

Personnel

5=

Directors

ESGT &/ )\ 48

ESG Working Group

ERAEHFALTEAR(ERPET
280~ TR ANERED - JEER
YEED ~ BREBSAANER - BT B ERER
N E R

Various functional departments and
subsidiaries comprising the Customer and
Engineering Department, Administration
and Human Resources Department, Legal
and Risk Management Department,
Procurement and Cost Department, Audit
and Supervision Department and Finance
Department

with the sustainable development framework of the Group:

BE

Duties

HIFTESGTT #F - &g - EAKBR
B B A4 N B EESGHY AR RE LB AN S
ROFF—IRE SRR ZIEESCRRNATER - &

178 o

formulates the ESG approach, strategies, priority and goals;

assesses and determines the risks associated with and opportunities arising from the
ESG issues;

reviews the implementation of all ESG goals on an annual basis at least; and

is now studying the feasibility of and drafting the “Climate Change Policy” ( {5 fi& &
{EEREE) ) to identify actions to respond to the climate change.

IRIRESGR IS ZHE R TR -

EBAHERRIE  STEEREECIE: &
HETFERESGHRE T1E -

organises the works related to ESG strategies;

oversees the works on sustainable development, including works related to the climate
change; and

coordinates the annual ESG Report.

WITEFGHMESORE -

FIRESGIIE - BIEWER R ERIRIE Rt A MBI
MERhEEEREESERSCTIEMRERENEE &

BT REITAS B RAAAEEBCR L AEEE -

executes the Board's resolution on ESG issues;

performs ESG works, including collection and management of KPIs related to the
environment and society;

reports to the senior management and the Board on ESG works and compilation of
report; and

formulates and executes management policies and specific measures on sustainable
development.
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B EE
HME#HR T —RINRESZEHEERE
EEAAEN R AMEL TEIFE

Risk Management
We have identified a series of risks associated with climate change caused to
our operations and the action plans in addressing these risks:

et BERE
Risks Potential impact
BRRER

Substantial Risks
SHEBRERCKERR - K

K N HBRER T
L)

Acute substantial risks (weather-related
events such as storms, floods, fires, or
heat waves)

gt ERRER(RE REPRIKRE
& - BlamEE gL~ KFE E
Tt KRR A - EMERIERK
VAR + 3t} 1A EE i)
Chronic substantial risks (long-term
climate changes, such as temperature
changes, rising sea levels, reduced
water sources, loss of biodiversity and
changes in land and soil productivity)

BIEE R

Transition Risks

Bt

Technology risks

MR

Market risks

BERR

Reputation risks

EERE

Legal risks

PE/KAK K P BE B BUREMAEBRIE - (2 E MEBRERARIEM + &
FeRIEINE NEROER - TERSERIERIEE - ABEBFEm
WA o

Precipitation and floods may cause damage to the structure of the building and increase
operation and maintenance costs; and

Typhoons may increase the risk of power shortages and the possibility of temporary office
closures, resulting in business interruptions and reduced revenue.

SR EFHAIRESI BN T AR E - BT HRER MEUSHKA - &
BFE EASIBUKR - AR ER L REEARIE - BN ERRRIED
R -

Rising temperatures may cause heatstroke increasing the risk of industrial injuries and
costs of cooling; and

Rising sea levels may cause flooding, causing damage to infrastructure and facilities, and
increasing the cost of repairing damaged facilities.

R R BT R EMRIR W BARAMARERNZOER  WRFIRE
EREFBARRKETRERI R - R EEBER -

Energy-efficient technology is the key to mitigating climate change and the core element
of future development. If we fail to master renewable energy or energy conservation and
emissions reduction technologies, business development will be affected.

HEPMEEIZTEMEAFEERESBASENDE - BRAIRELA
FEEREBRBRAEBNEREE RGNS - BrltkERFE
B o

Tenants and property owners are increasingly turning to businesses that integrate
sustainable development philosophy into their operations. If we fail to integrate
sustainable development strategies into our business and effectively deal with climate
change issues, we may lose our competitive advantage.

HEERREHRRENBIZEETE B ARs| MgEET BT
EBRHNIRE -

If the operation process has a harmful effect on the climate, it may be difficult to attract
and retain property owners, employees, business partners and investments.

RIRZCAEBABE VAR Z K BB - MIRANEHRIEF REBEER
VRDFEFHERZREEER AT EELFINNEGRKNEANTE
REENEE -

Policies and regulations related to climate change are becoming stricter. If the existing
compliance procedures and business operations may not fully comply with the new legal
and regulatory requirements, there may incur additional compliance costs and affect the
reputation of the Group.
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In order to alleviate the substantial risks caused by climate change, Kaisa
Prosperity has installed flood gates for properties with higher flood risk, and
regularly inspects manholes, drains, doors and windows, etc. to ensure that
manholes and drainages remain unblocked to reduce the impact of floods or
rising sea levels. Extreme weather may also cause power shortages. In view of
this, we conduct regular inspections and test the backup power generators to
reduce the risk of business interruption. Regarding to climate-related transition
risks, Kaisa Prosperity understands that mastering renewable energy or energy
conservation and emissions reduction technologies will be essential the future
development of the business. Therefore, we actively transit into a low-carbon
development business model to meet the expectations of tenants and customers
and increase their loyalty. We also pay close attention to the update of climate
change regulatory laws and actively monitor our compliance procedures to avoid
violating relevant regulations or industry standards that may affect our reputation
and incur additional litigation costs.

Green office

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ( (& A R A ME R I (R#E
7% ), Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ( {# %= A R H AN B FEE Y5
FIRIE[HAE) ), Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC
(e A RFFBIAR RS 2B5767%) ), “Thirteenth Five-Year” Work Plan
for Greenhouse Gas Emission Control ({[+=F J 1= HIAE REF N TIE
J72€) ) and Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ( (P 2E A R XM BIE T EEY)
JEAIREEBTIAE) ), which clearly state the requirements in relation to the
emission of pollutants and energy-saving management for enterprises. In view
of this, we formulated and strictly implemented the internal policies such as the
Kaisa Prosperity Group Office Supplies Management System ( {({EJk 315
B2 mEIEH|E ) ) and the Notice on Cost Reduction and Strict Economy
of the Whole Group (R 2 EEEIKMER  BITEI4IAEEN) ), which
regulate emissions and discharge of exhaust gas, waste water, waste solids
and greenhouse gas generated in office areas. In addition, we provided clear
guidelines on the daily environmental protection for our staff, starting with the
details such as management of use of electricity, water, paper, office supplies,
and business vehicles and are devoted to promoting various emission reduction
and energy saving projects in the course of daily operation. Our concrete green
office measures include:

e Encouraging our staff to implement energy and water saving in the course
of daily operation;

e Encouraging the setting of air-conditioning temperature to 24-26 degree
Celsius;
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e Encouraging the adoption of natural light and reduction of the use of
unnecessary lighting systems;

° Requesting our staff to switch off the air-conditioners and computers when
they leave office, so as to reduce daily electricity consumptions in the
office;

e  Reiterating that the old-for-new principle should be pursued when
requisitioning the office supplies such as stationeries, computer
accessories and computers;

e Reducing paper consumption by using black-and-white and double-side
printing modes and using recycled paper;

e (Checking the usage of the supplies regularly and considering the feasibility
of maintenance and internal resources deployment before purchase or
replacement; and

e Providing waste sorting and recycling facilities within the office area to
engage our staff to sort wastes at source, thereby raising the collection
volume for recyclable materials and reducing the disposal volume of
wastes.

Energy management

Our direct energy consumptions are mainly from the natural gas, liquefied
petroleum gas, diesel and gasoline used in the fixed source equipment and
business vehicles; indirect energy consumptions are mainly from electricity,
vapour, town gas and natural gas purchased externally. In hopes of reducing the
impact of carbon footprints, we encourage our staff to use video conferencing
or teleconferencing systems to reduce the needs for business trips. Where
business trips are necessary, staff should take mass transit transportation such as
airport coaches or railways as much as possible so as to avoid the considerable
amount of carbon dioxide emitted during a flight on a plane or a journey on a
taxi. Apart from this, our property management and operation highly depends on
energy consumption and strictly complies with the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Energy Conservation ({2 A R £ FBEEHZIEEJRE) ) and
the Assessment Method for Implementation of Energy Consumption of Kaisa
Prosperity Group ({fEJREETEBERNITERZZINE) ) as its
internal code. During the Reporting Period, the total energy consumption of the
Group amounted to approximately 130,906,570 kWh.

To effective control the consumption of electricity and increase energy efficiency,
the Group has implemented the following energy-saving measures:

e  continued to introduce more environmental friendly equipment and
components for new and existing projects with reference to the latest
industry guidelines;



66

RIE - HERERTRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Reriie LERESERIAMSREER
RIERE

y %EEE”?‘E’J ”EH&EE R ERAF®
14@:

o RAAEMETTEHT AMRMA LM
HER R

o RMEHE E
ERENDERER

SHEERGNA

o  MHBAMNBREERRETON
HRERRER M OMERSE

o BEEHRERHTEEMNEWETE
WOANE] - HIREFEIE BT BERDETTAA

RUARD ¢+ M

o HREBRRMRR - LEERE - ik
AL

EL*/EEEE&&&HM /Iél%% $%.EA
ESG%&iﬁP%/A%'JEEASEW/Uw B
RERBEFEEMI30% - B EREHKR - A%
%2022 4F £ 2021 FF B8 wm%m R VAT
SREIRBRER ©

BEEYERE
BN ESE R EIEBBREEZ I
FT 1T RE Y B Uk Ko By 3% > 48 E’\*?-:LL%“E
ARG B ST AR B E 58 R )5
ARBIAE)RIEREEY $§%IJT7JL§
WEBHIEC D BB R B IR AL 48 5| YF B
P aETH B R BT IR EEIE H3RER A
(B3R Z 1t (Reduce) ~ 5 F /B (Reuse) &2 5 1&
I%(Recycle)) °

HNBEEEY  BRAETH—WENT
BEW - WRBEEHRAEENE=SR
IR EREETRIBUIESISERES - &
PIREEIEE R EREA THEHE

s FABREERMXABRAIN A
BEMEEYERIE N RRIE

EIRZEEIFEBARA R KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% ANNUAL REPORT 2022

e explored the use of smart meter to enhance management of energy
performance;

e used alternatives with high energy efficiency to replace the existing
lighting and power equipment upon the end of their life cycle;

e adopted reasonable operating and control method and advanced energy-
saving equipment;

e adopted a static var generator to enhance the power factor of power
supply and distribution system and electrical equipment;

e conducted an analysis on the monthly energy consumption report and
report on any abnormal energy consumption in a timely manner;

e imposed punishment on units which are found to have excessive energy
consumption and offered incentives to units which perform a good energy
consumption control on a quarterly basis; and

e promptly reported, prevented and rectified any energy wastage.

To further realise reduction of energy consumption, the Group has, for the first
time, set out in its ESG report the goals of reducing the total energy consumption
per unit area by 30% within 5 years. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the
Group's total energy consumption per unit area reduced by 17.14% in 2022 as
compared with 2021.

Waste management

We proactively responded the local governments’ policies by implementing
waste recycle and classification at all projects under our management and
strictly complied with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste” in handling
wastes during our operations. The Group also set up the Standardized Guidelines
for Classification of Garbage Chamber (B85 EIZ#E/rED]))
internally to teach its tenants how to sort and implement 3R Principles, i.e.
“Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle” of wastes.

For hazardous wastes, we implement unified collection and designated storage,
and hand them over to a third-party service provider with relevant qualifications
for processing to control or eliminate hazards. We implemented the following
measures in the projects under management:

e All hazardous wastes are handled by a nationally recognized and qualified
waste treatment company;
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e All hazardous waste management strictly abides by the principle of
“classified recycling, centralized storage, and unified treatment”;

e  Separate and recycle wastes according to the type of waste, and label the
type and name of the waste outside the container that contains the waste;
and

e Allkinds of wastes are kept in designated places.

For non-hazardous wastes, we sort and recycle the recyclables to improve the
utilization rate of resources to reduce pollution. We will also set up recycling
bins in property communities to encourage property owners to actively
participate in garbage sorting and recycling. During the Reporting Period, the
Group generated 1.028 tons of hazardous waste, including ink cartridges, printer
cartridges, lamps, light bulbs and batteries; the total amount of non-hazardous
waste was approximately 1.324 tons, which were mainly office waste.

To effectively reduce the emissions of hazardous wastes and non-hazardous
wastes, the Group has, for the first time, set out in its last ESG report the goals
of reducing the emissions of hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes by
10% within 5 years and striving to achieve the goals of “zero accidents” and “zero
injuries”. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total emission intensity of
hazardous wastes by the Group reduced by approximately 5.41% as compared
with that in 2021, respectively and there are no incidents or casualties related to
waste handling.

Water Consumption

As a property management service enterprise, owing to rather huge water
consumption by the Group as a result of the services such as greening and public
swimming pool maintenance, the Group adopts water-saving irrigation such as
sprinkling irrigation and micro-irrigation to carry out green irrigation and reduce
water consumption in gardening. We also test if there is any leakage in water
pipes on a regular basis and carry out daily maintenance for water equipment,
to prevent waste of the water resource from evaporation, emission, dripping
or leakage. During the Reporting Period, the water consumption of the Group
amounted to approximately 948,912 m3. In terms of discharge of sewage, the
Group only conducts sewage treatment at the hospitals under its management.
It has formulated and strictly implemented the Operation Guidelines for Sewage
Treatment ( 57K ER IR E455]) ) and complied with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ( {FFZE A R 3
FEI7KI5 4 787%) ) and standards for discharge of sewage at the place of
operations to ensure meeting sewage standard.
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As it is known to the Group that most of the districts where our businesses are
located are facing water shortage issue, we have adopted the following water-
saving measures to further monitor the use of water:

e installed flow restrictors, gas filling devices or other water-saving
equipment at the tap to reduce water consumption;

e explored the use of smart water meter to monitor the use of water;

e  optimized the technologies of existing methods of greening maintenance
and used sprinkler irrigation to reduce water consumption;

e promoted water conservation to the property owners of our projects under
management;

e conducted an analysis on the monthly water consumption report and report
on any abnormal water consumption in a timely manner; and

e promptly reported, prevented and rectified any water wastage.

Last year, we have set out a KPI of water efficiency which targets to reduce total
water consumption by 10% within 5 years. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
total water consumption by the Group reduced by 2.98%.

We do not encounter any problems in sourcing water for our daily operations, as
our domestic water is provided by local water supply companies.

Management of risks associated with environmental and
natural resources

Although the Group's business does not exert a profound impact on the natural
environmental and natural resources, we understand that natural resources are
scarce. Hence, our concerns on emission and consumption reduction are not
limited to office premises only, but also be extended to cover the environmental
protection activities in the community in the course of business. We issued
the “Notice on Continue Implementation of Measures for Cost Reduction and
Efficiency Enhancement and Strict Saving” ( (BERMSE S & [FR AL - [B
1TEIHY | ¥5 K HY3E AN ) and encourage property owners to take part in such
activities, including:

e (Gradually replacing with energy-saving water pumps and lighting systems
to reduce waste of energy;
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e Transplanting the green plants discarded by the property owners in the
green belt of the community to reduce carbon emissions;

e (QOrganizing waste-sorting activities in the community to exchange used
items (e.g. old batteries, discarded plastic bottles, and discarded clothes,
etc.) for green potted plants and environmentally-friendly products; and

e (Collecting used products for recycle and delivering them to relevant
local professional organizations to give away to those in need to support
environmental protection and for charitable purposes.

Greenhouse gas emissions

During the Reporting Period, the total greenhouse gas emission of the Group
amounted to 114,165.86 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (COze), of which direct
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1°) amounted to approximately 755.82 tons
of CO2¢ with the main sources from boilers at the central air-conditioning and
heating system, emergency electric generators and business vehicles; indirect
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2'°) amounted to approximately 112,595.89
tons of COze with the main sources from electricity purchased externally; other
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 3'") amounted to approximately 814.15 tons
of COze with the main sources from the use of electricity by the government
departments during the treatment process of drinking water and sewage. To
reduce the impact from greenhouse gas emissions over the environment, we
encourage our staff to reduce the use of small passenger vehicle and to adopt
video conference meeting instead. In addition, we planted a total of 2,129 native
trees and shrubs in the surrounding areas of its offices, successfully reducing
approximately 48.97 tons of carbon dioxide and carbon footprint generated
during the operation of business.

To further reduce the emission of greenhouse gas, the Group has for the first
set an emission reduction target in the ESG report this year, which sets out the
target to reduce total carbon dioxide emissions per unit area by 30% within 5
years. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has reduced its total COz
emissions per unit area by approximately 10.87% in 2022 compared to 2021.

rﬁﬁ SHEIR ©
MRE  RRMGERATSI B EE LR IR E RSN -

BE=RRERE @WJI\%"EE’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁf‘ﬂi/ﬁiﬁﬁ“ T?Fﬁ&( BAE L R TR BERT
Scope 1 covers the greenhouse gas emissions directly generated from the businesses owned or controlled by the Group.
Scope 2 covers the “indirect energy” greenhouse gas emissions generated from the electricity, heat energy, refrigeration and vapour consumed internally (purchased or

obtained) by the Group.

Scope 3 covers all other indirect greenhouse gas emissions generated outside the area of the Group, including emissions from the upstream and downstream.
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Exhaust emissions

The main sources of our air emissions are the boilers at the community
swimming pools and central air-conditioning and heating system, gas stoves in
staff canteen, emergency electric generators, weeding machines, chain saws
and leaf blowers used in garden greening, as well as fuel oil consumption
of business vehicles. During the Reporting Period, the emissions of nitrogen
oxides, sulphur oxides, inhalable particulates, fine particulates, carbon monoxide
and hydrocarbon generated by the Group amounted to approximately 505.84
kilograms, 165.69 kilograms, 65.84 kilograms, 65.84 kilograms, 1,640.29
kilograms and 214.86 kilograms. Our air emissions increased slightly as
compared to that of last year, among which the number of the projects under our
management covered increased from 672 last year to 673 this year.

Employment

The Group's core talent concept is “Having both ability and political integrity
and taking the integrity as the first”. We believe that employees are one of the
important assets for the enterprises’ sustainable development. Kaisa Prosperity
has strictly complied with the laws and regulations related to staff employment
such as Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {FPZE A R 2L FNER &4 &)
%)), Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {F ZE A R A1
B 25 &) & [F7%) ), Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {7
# AR 2 {RE%) ) and Employment Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({H % AR FEFEI g 2 (2 #%) ), which safeguard
the lawful interests of our staff in terms of working hours system, leave and
holiday system, welfare and remuneration management, dismissal of staff,
signing of labour contracts, etc. To achieve effective linking up and monitoring
of such requirements, we formulated internal policies such as Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy ( (IR LB FRIEEIEHIZ) ), Kaisa
Prosperity Staff Remuneration Management Policy ( ({EJKEEFEEE T
FBNEIRHIEZ) ), Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy ( {fEJK 3
FEERFEBEIEFIE) ), Kaisa Prosperity Social Insurance Implementation
Rules ((fEEXGTFEELSERBEMmAME]) ), Kaisa Prosperity
Employers’ Liability Service Agreement ( (fEIKEEIFEE R T & (EI2 R
51555 ) ). Staff Wage Level Standard Table ({8 T T & B IZXEL &
B8 13 ), Kaisa Prosperity Regulations on Managing Employees’ Overtime
Work Policy ( (EJREZETFEBE 8 TIIEEERE) ), and Kaisa Prosperity
Performance Assessment Management Policy ( (fEJK ¥ EITEBENEZ
EIBHIE ) ), etc. Also, the administration and human resources department
conducts review and revision to the systems on an annual basis, striving for
offering a reasonable, fair and discrimination-free working atmosphere for our
staff, so that the staff can work energetically under an environment with sound
corporate culture to realize mutual growth and development between the staff
and the Group.
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Occupational health and safety

As a responsible employer, for sure the Group has strictly complied with the
laws and regulations in relation to labor safety and hygiene such as Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({(F B A RKEMBI L 2 EEE) ),
Fire Prevention Law of PRC ( (/R A RLFNE] JEFF)%) ), Industrial Injury
Insurance Regulations of the People’s Republic of China ( (P2 A R L FNET
T 1R &) ) and Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases ( {2 A R HEFBIEE 2B A7%) ).
The Group attaches great importance to the safety of our employees. We are
committed to providing a comfortable and safe working environment for our staff
and protecting our staff against occupational hazards. The measures include but
are not limited to the following:

e Provided our staff with body checks at the cost of the Group;

e Reviewed records of incidents, injuries and illness regularly and handled
the work injuries of staff properly;

e Conducted safety checks regularly to ensure that the safety measures are
implemented;

e Interacted with the community to carry out fire drills and trainings
regularly;

e (ared about the physical and mental health of our staff and launched staff-
caring visits regularly; and

e Advocated the importance of safety by arranging office safety inspections,
fire inspections and carried out fire drills regularly.

We provide guidelines to our employees in relation to occupational health, safety
training and epidemic prevention, in Kaisa Prosperity Training Management
Policy (CEEIREER AT EEITIEEHIE) ), Emergency Plan on Prevention
of COVID-19 (GBS MM B A T E HIESZTEZ) ), Implementation
Rules for Resumption of Work and Anti-epidemic at Office Building Protects
((BFEEBEIZEIIEERMAI) & “Guidelines for Prevention of
COVID-19" ( G AR S A BIEFES]) ). As for the newly recruited
staff, the Group will provide training courses on occupational safety and position-
related professionalism, the contents of which include the operation procedures
of positions and work instruction manuals. As for the job-transfer staff, we also
provide job-transfer trainings. Apart from passing on the new skills, the trainings
also include position-related knowledge and skills, operation procedures, safety
knowledge and procedures, etc. All of the above trainings are conducive to
raising the safety awareness of staff and minimizing the occurrence of accidents
as a result of human error.
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The Group has established Kaisa Prosperity Measures for the Management
of Emergencies ((fFEJKEETEBRBEFHEIENE) ) to provide
guidelines for the information management in emergencies and the management
processes of reporting, handling, judging and assessing all kinds of emergencies.
In case of emergencies, we require our staff to regard their personal safety as
the overriding principle. Upon the occurrence of emergencies, the departments
of safety monitoring function, quality assurance and engineering management
function, administration and manpower function, etc. of each branch company
are required to formulate corresponding rectifying measures and report to the
Group’s headquarters for filling. Meanwhile, we have purchased social insurance
and commercial insurance for our staff according to law to ensure that our staff
are under the protection of work-related injury insurance. In 2022, the number
and rate of staff involved in work-related fatalities was 2 and 0.02%, while the
number of working days lost due to work-related injury amounted to 2,556 days.

Prevention Measures

Kaisa Prosperity always attaches great importance to the health and safety of
frontline staff and responded promptly to the epidemic. Set out below are the
measures taken:

e gstablished an emergency team for epidemic prevention and control, which
is responsible for anti-epidemic works at the Group and branch company
levels;

e strictly implemented anti-epidemic measures of local governments and
actively facilitated the anti-epidemic work of relevant departments;

e enhanced ventilation and disinfection, for examples, windows in the office
or conference room are always opened to enhance ventilation, regular
disinfection and enhancing ventilation to ensure air ventilation;

e  nstalled face recognition attendance machine to reduce infective risk
arising from direct contact;

e  distributed antiseptic products to employees;

e minimised frequency of visiting activities and communicated with
customers via means of telephone and video calls;

e registered the information of personnel, especially those are from medium
or high-risk areas, and specific group such as inbound travellers, to
facilitate the implementation of measure for better personal protection;
and

e  stored up anti-epidemic materials in regular channels in a timely manner,
and took precautions against burglars, flood, fire, and pollution to ensure
the effectiveness of materials.
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Employee Training and Development

Kaisa Prosperity is devoted to improving its staff training system and
standardizing its company staff training and coaching qualification management
in accordance with the Kaisa Prosperity Training Management Policy ( {{E£JK %
EFEBEEFIEEHE) ). We unleash our staff potentials and assist our
staff in upgrading their skills and developing their career. We deeply understand
that outstanding talents and teams are one of the keys for our continuous
development. Hence, the administration and human resources department carries
out training demand investigations based on the Group’s development, drawing
up the Annual Training Plan ( (S E 5 3)IETE]) ) to put forward a series of on-
the-job training for our staff, including:

e New staff training is organized to make new staff fully understand the
Company's history, ideas and code of conduct as well as to get accustomed
to their job role as soon as possible;

e Job-transfer training is to make transferred staff fulfil the requirements
of the new job position as soon as possible;

e Promotion training is the training conducted with an aim to making the
staff fulfil the job requirements of the position of a higher level;

e On-the-job training is classified into three parts based on the types of
training including regular training, outbound training and ad hoc training,
covering professional knowledge, professional skills, management,
computer, and literacy improvement, etc. to increase the capability of our
staff to outperform their job;

e New manager training is the training for the general middle-level
managerial staff with an aim to enhancing the managerial skills and level
of middle-level managerial teams; and

e  Senior manager training is the training for senior middle-level
managerial with an aim to enhancing the comprehensive capabilities of
middle-level managerial teams for the selection of elite.
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Our major training is divided into several categories, including:

e Cultural: induction training for new employees and corporate culture
training, etc.;

e  General: basic knowledge training on property laws and regulations,
occupational safety and ethics training, system responsibility training and
integrity and self-discipline training, etc.;

e  Management: project management throughout the property life cycle,
efficient team building training and improvement of basic skills of
managers, etc.;

e Professional: star-rated lecturer certification training, safety management
cadre training camp, quality pilot training camp, complaint handling case
analysis, basic knowledge of quality management knowledge, manual
training for various posts and professional training on internal control
lines, etc.;

e Four-level talent training: executive training camp, leader training
camp, project manager certification training camp and NKP training camp,
etc.

Meanwhile, the Group also provides our staff with external trainings organized
and approved by governmental units such as qualification accreditation courses,
courses on special professional knowledge or skills necessary for the job,
all kinds of certification examinations necessary for the job, exchange visits
to industry peers, domestic and overseas business administration refresher
trainings, corporate managerial staff refresher training, etc. We also encourage
our staff to engage in continuous learning by reimbursing them the relevant fees
by presenting their graduation certificates and the valid receipts for training fees
upon completion of the training.

Furthermore, in order to build an excellent and highly efficient team of internal
lecturers possessing comprehensive knowledge, the “Management Measures for
Internal Lecturers for Kaisa Prosperity” ( ({E£JK 2 347 £ B N 20 B AN & 12 3
&) ) requires our internal lecturers to pass all assessments such as reviewing
syllabus and organizing trial lectures before becoming a recognized internal
lecturer of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, 98% of our staff received training and the average
training hours completed by each employee was 29 hours.
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Employee recruitment and promotion

Recruitment and Promotion

Kaisa Prosperity strictly implements the internal requirements under the Kaisa
Prosperity Recruitment Management Policy ({(fEJKE X IFEBREE
IR HI|/Z ) ) with regard to recruitment and selection of personnel so as to
ensure the overall human resources level. In the course of recruitment, we first
conduct observation and judgement as for whether the candidate possesses
integrity and credibility as well as self-disciplinary cooperative spirit, whereas
failing candidates will not be hired. The Group also adheres to the employment
principle of hiring by merit rather than nepotism, meaning that staff members
with relative relationships shall not work in the same company, or work in the
position under the same business system with superordinate-and-subordinate
working relations, or hold positions with business association. Meanwhile, we
also attempt to introduce a methodology for information technology evaluation
into recruitment so as to avoid subjectivity and randomness as much as possible
and at the same time to avoid taking the personalities and ethical standards of
the recruiting personnel as the judgement of the merits of candidates.

We uphold the principle of openness and fairness to provide promotion
opportunities for our staff. Kaisa Prosperity Performance Assessment
Management Policy ((fEKEF T EBERNEZEIRH|E) ) sets out
detailed regulations on staff promotion and awards, which include those to
decide whether the staff get promoted based on the performance assessment
for our staff on a regular basis. Through communication and giving feedback on
the working performance of our staff, we believe we can continuously raise the
performance level of our staff, thereby boosting the favorable development for
the organization and raising the operational results and management level to
benefit both the Group and its staff.

Remuneration and Welfare

To give full play to the incentive effect of remuneration, we formulate the Kaisa
Prosperity Staff Remuneration Management Policy (({EJKEEFEEE T
FENEFEHIE ) ) to standardize the management of staff remuneration. The
standard wage for our staff is distributed based on the corresponding wage
standard for the respective position levels and ranks set out in the Staff Wage
Level Standard Table ({E T T AR BIIZEL FERIIZK) ). Besides, we
conduct performance assessment for our staff on a regular basis based on Kaisa
Prosperity Performance Assessment Management Policy ( {fEJK ¥ E1FEE
EWEZEIRHIE) ) and adjust the salary package for our staff based on the
assessment results. We also take this opportunity to listen to staff's opinion and
are committed to helping our staff to integrate into our corporate culture.
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We formulated Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy ( {fEJK =4
EBEFEEHIE) ) to provide multi-aspect preferential treatment and
launched a variety of cultural construction activities to let our staff feel the care
from the Group and create a pleasant working atmosphere. We:

e  organized a variety of cultural and sports activities to enhance staff
communication and strengthen their physical health. The form of activities
includes staff birthday parties, football, basketball, badminton, table
tennis, hiking, swimming, sports competitions, chess, variety shows and
social welfare, etc.;

e organized company gala, Spring Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival
celebration gatherings for our staff;

e  offered festival bonus to each staff during Spring Festival, Dragon Boat
Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival each year;

e procured additional commercial insurance to protect the interest of our
employees;

e  offered various kinds of allowances including meal allowance, on-
duty meal allowance, overtime working and transportation allowance,
celebrative gratuities, condolence money and hospitalization consolation
fees;

e  provided rent-free dormitory for a portion of staff with exemption of
management fees and sharing the water and electricity costs;

e reimbursed a portion of transportation fees to the fresh graduates who
are recruited through campus recruitment when they report duty to the
Company; and

e provided employees with the cooling allowance during the summer as
required by national laws and regulation.

Working Hours and Holidays

The Group pays overtime working wages based on the overtime working
approved under the national requirements and Kaisa Prosperity Regulations on
Managing Employees’ Overtime Work Policy ( (IR 24758 8 T it &
I E) ). In addition, Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy ( {fEJK %
EFEBENEIRHIEZ) ) stipulated that employees are entitled to all kinds
of paid leaves such as statutory festivals and holidays, marriage leave, funeral
leave, maternity leave, nursing leave and annual leave. It will also adjust the
number of annual leaves based on the seniority of staff.
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Equal Opportunities

Kaisa Prosperity offers equal opportunities and strives for implementing the
ideas of diversity and anti-discrimination. According to the Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy ( (FEJKEEFEEIBEEETIE) ), in
the course of recruiting talents, we avoid taking the personal attributes such as
gender, age, marital status, physical fitness and so on as the necessary factors,
s0 as to ensure that our employees are treated equally in the recruitment and
promotion procedures, dismissal procedures, training, working performance
assessment, remuneration and welfare, working hours, leaves and other holidays
(including marriage leave, compassionate leave and matemity leave), etc.

As of 31 December 2022, we had a total of 9,216 staff'?, among which the
proportions of male staff and female staff were approximately 59% and 41%,
respectively. No cases of discrimination were recorded during the Reporting
Period.

Prevention of child labor and forced labor

In strict compliance with laws and regulations such as Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({#%E A R HEFIBI&5 )% ) ), Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FF#E AR EMBIA BN & EE) )
and Prohibition of Child Labor Provisions ({ZX1F{E R EZETRTE) ), the
Group safeguarded staff's legal rights and prohibited the recruitment of those
who aged under the age of 16. To this end, we established Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy ( (EJKE T EBHEZIEFIE)) to
respect legal rights of staff. We value privacy of staff such that we avoid raising
questions related to personal privacy but unrelated to his/her work performance.
The information of assessing knowledge of the candidate is only available for
reading for relevant staff in the recruitment of this position. In addition, we
would conduct background check, review information about age of candidates
and prohibit the unlawful use of child labor.

For those staff who have to work overtime and on duty, we would pay overtime
salary in accordance with national requirements and Kaisa Prosperity Regulations
on Managing Employees’ Overtime Work Policy ({{EJKESFEBE TN
FAEIRHRE) ) and overtime transportation allowance as the case may be. If
any violation against laws and regulations in relation to labor standards is found,
we would punish those who shall be accountable for the incident subject to the
severity, also we would analyse the reasons of the issue, review, update and
adjust issues present in the systems or management measures in place.

RIMETEA -

This number includes only the number of employees of the 49 core function units selected in the scope of this report.
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Our “Work Guidelines for Employee Relationship for Kaisa Prosperity” ( {{E
JKEELTEE 8 TRIE TIESE3]) ) requires both the setup of the post
of employee relations personnel in the headquarters of the Group and its
subsidiaries. The employee relations personnel are responsible for protecting
legal rights of, collecting opinions from and caring about the well-being of our
staff.

Intelligent property, comprehensive upgrade

In 2022, Jiake Intelligent focused on the comprehensive upgrade of service and
quality, and continued to strengthen the project management capabilities. At
the same time, it continued to improve the level of intelligent product design in
the face of market challenges, and continued to contribute to the construction
of digital cities and intelligent communities. It improved the upgrade service of
touch-free access system and visual intercom system, and launched “electronic
sentry” system for pandemic prevention and control, which can quickly measure
the body temperature of personnel and verify their identity information, realizing
fast “one-face pass” for efficient access experience. Based on the community
cloud platform, it also remotely controlled gates, intercoms and other hardware
devices to realize the intelligent application mode of the whole process from
information registration at the property end to personnel passage, so that
owners can feel the safe, convenient and fast access experience.




EIKEZHEBBRAT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 79

0256 AERIEREELXMRGHEN
M BAHEPpEHIEH T BRENEEGE
e ZHEREACHEE T WA
it HEEEBFEBFAUSTEAE
TRBILEK - FHFEEFAERES
R B 0B AR 6 - WIEME « HA
0. 285 PATESAHETHMREA
NNEFRBREEE  ALIMRRIZSERE B
AABRIZEEAR - REFREETIEREE
85 - B LZRABRE THREEHE
SIS - SRR R I T B - R
EEEG  HPAET&HEEE 22 &
FORARE BRTFEMNQEGBIEE
1 ARARREZAEE  EHTER
ERM e mEsaaR RS - (RES
BEPSHRENER  BREEFA/
BFESA) - I AEAS RIBS SR EE FIBIBBASAD
BHXEEENRERETS HEBWEA
BRREEEM - E—BHELEPETHRE
e BHeEiBEENSNELE - BES
MEWEEMEREE  ELRTEZE
HiE - BRUHIRIE T %M S E R E
Ko RFATHEZRME -

RIE - HERERTRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In June 2022, Jiake Intelligent Smart Security System was upgraded again
to provide a solid hardware and software foundation for public defense. The
security system maximizes the implementation of Internet of Things technology
and combines with the intelligent building management platform to visually
integrate various subsystems. In the digital management platform to achieve
real-time detection and control of the systems, and set up 24-hour high-
definition cameras, infrared detector equipment in the server room, entrances
and exits, parking lots, offices and other public spaces to detect illegal intrusion
of personnel, timely recording and alarm feedback to help security personnel to
understand the actual situation of unexpected events in a timely manner, control
measures in the relevant areas, rapid handling of events, helping the building
to create a smart, safe and convenient office environment. In addition to the
common Al monitoring such as video surveillance in public areas and perimeter
intrusion alarm, it has also launched the Jiake Wise-Eye Anti-Dropping objects
from Height Integrated Management System, which can trace the whole incident
from the source, realize 24-hour monitoring of buildings, and push the real-time
alarm information to the intelligent community management platform through
the super brain to help property personnel quickly deal with the incident and
go to the door for education and persuasion at the first time to avoid causing
serious The first time to go to the door for education and persuasion to avoid
serious accidents. According to the actual feedback from several projects, the
installation of the system has effectively reduced the incidence of high-throw
incidents by 85% and improved community safety.
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Digitization enables properties to realize community services in multiple
business scenarios, and helps properties build core competitiveness in smart
city ecological services. By empowering property management with technology,
Jiake Intelligent has achieved remarkable results in broadening the development
of multiple industries, mainly in two points: firstly, the standardization of
property management, externally, Jiake Intelligent can meet the special needs
of properties in the use of customized services, tailor-made hardware systems
and cloud service platforms that meet the use of the community, such as online
view of parking lots, inspection of public area safety conditions, access to
personnel information and other data. Through remote operation, the property
can realize online supervision, multiple project management, and the data
processing function of the cloud platform to quickly screen the operation status
of the equipment and deal with the problems in time. Second, the quality of
property services, the core nature of property is service, relying on community
digitization and offline services, the property side, owners/users and merchants
to effectively connect the three parties, help the property side to carry out
unified management, to achieve cost reduction and efficiency, so that owners
experience the quality of life brought by intelligent community, intelligent home.
Meanwhile, the property can further pool the resources of the surrounding
merchants to build a convenient smart service circle, providing online and
offline integration of community life services, community public services, smart
community and other services, so that users can enjoy more digital convenience.
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In 2022, Jiake Intelligent used mature digital technology to launch a total
solution for unattended parking lots from front-end identification to back-
end system management. The system solution adopts the model of intelligent
hardware + cloud service platform, supporting mobile APP, applet to obtain
parking guidance, electronic payment, parking space inquiry and other service
functions, and combining with intelligent passage, intelligent lighting, intelligent
security and other systems to construct intelligent parking lots. It is applicable
to all new and old communities, commercial centers, parks and other venues
to realize the unified collection and management of parking resources. For the
property, it can effectively reduce the cost of property personnel and security
management expenses, and focus resources on other property public services.
For the owners, it can greatly reduce the time spent to enter the venues and
improve the safety in the community.

:..||||.||..||LI :
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In 2022, with high quality products and services, Jiake Intelligent was awarded
2022 China Top 10 Real Estate Supply Chain Industry Competitiveness” and
“China Security Innovation Enterprise”, and was successfully listed in the
“Shenzhen 2022 Innovative Small and Medium Enterprises List”. Meanwhile, it
continued to make efforts in product innovation and research and development,
acquiring 5 new certificates for building security monitoring system, video
intercom equipment and pedestrian channel advertising device, 3 computer
software certificates for multimedia security system, intelligent community
network platform zoning system and intelligent building equipment interlock
protection control system, and many certificates for large data artificial
intelligence monitoring equipment invention patents.
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As one of the leading integrated property management service providers in
the PRC, Kaisa Prosperity has been upholding the principle of “satisfying our
customer’s needs” by striving to build a harmonious living environment for our
communities. The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations under
the Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China ({5 A R A R ALY ),
the Property Management Regulations ( {42 & 32 {1 ) and Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests
((PEEARKMBENE & EEZIREE) ) in relation to the rights pertaining
to property management activities, the formulation and revision of management
contracts and owners” meeting, and the election of owners’ committee members
which may have a material impact to the properly management industry. We
have formulated a series of policies to improve customers’ satisfaction, including
Guidance on Handling Complaints from Customers of Kaisa Prosperity ( {{£JK
(XU EBEFRFEETERS])), Guidance on Caring our Customers
of Kaisa Prosperity ((fEJkZEFEEE L R#IZ TE455]) ), Guidance
on Owners' Satisfaction Assessment of Kaisa Prosperity ( {({EJK 1T EE
EFMEREBFFIIEIES]) ), Guidance on Quality Control System Building
of Kaisa Prosperity ((EXEXTFEEHEEERBRERTIEIBSD),
Guidance on Quality Grid Management of Kaisa Prosperity ( ({EJK 3217 &
B EER{EE IR TYEFESI) ) and Guidance on Call Centre Management
System of Kaisa Prosperity ( (FEILZE 4T £ EEA R LEIRHIEZ) ), 400
Customer Satisfaction Evaluation Methods of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( {f£JK
FEFEBL0E P mEEZEIEZZITE) ), Control and Management
Measures on Risk Relating to Operations of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( {{EJk
FITEEEBERELEERHEEL) ) and Evaluation Methods for Service
Quality Control of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( {(EJK Z ELTEBRS ME EIL
Z R ), etc., which aimed at providing more convenient and thoughtful
services to owners so as to improve the sense of happiness and satisfaction of
our residents and property owners.
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REEERRFEE Service Quality and Complaint Management

U NEVMBEERTFPFNRIFBEERE With objective of establishing and maintaining good relationship with customers,
BiZ  AEBFIM(EKEXRTEBRER the Group formulated “Guidance on Caring our Customers of Kaisa Prosperity”
A2 T1EfR S R BB R mEZE TG (CEREERTEERFZEIIEIES!)), to govern the satisfaction of
2 HZREEPLPMEEREHE i customers during the assessment process, we expected to increase satisfaction

BitH— RIIBETERRE

RIRE

Types of caring

2EEFHE

Comprehensive customers’ care

EtEe TP RR

Individual customers’ care

and loyalty of customers. We implemented a series of caring work including:

BEEX
Method of caring

FPIAFIER

Door-to-door disinfection and sterilization

XAEE  BEREBERE

Repair of home appliances and home intercoms

B IRHMRRADABIETR

Warm reminders of bad and humid weather

BEREANE EAFHEMN  BSFMHRARAEHE  BRME  BEEE
Blessings at important festivals, material event notifications, sending emergency notifications
through phone calls, WeChat messages from butler and text

FEBRETHE - EREME X ES

Special festivals: themed community cultural events

ERBE  ERME - BREE - XEBER - 8IE - )\EnE

Birthday care: WeChat messages from butler, sending text messages, giving congratulations cards,
flowers and small gifts etc.

EFRAE: FPIRE - X MEmE

Pregnancy care: home visits and offering small gifts

EIERRE - FPINE C XER Bt BEREDHFE

Marriage care: visiting to congratulate, giving congratulation cards, flowers and settings decoration
etc.

ANEREE - PR AEFEREEIMERE, - BB LPINE - S

Check-in care: sending text messages or WeChat to residents during the check-in registration,
congratulations and visit and discussions to new residents

REEE  AEFRENBREPIREERERS - UEHE - BE  MEXEFENFN
A L eI CS PR IE

Renovation supervision: offering supervision services during renovation of owners' flat, notify owners
about the status of renovation via mail, text messages, WeChat or phone calls anytime
SSPEIREREE - LPIBEE  REBEFERENMERNEDSE

Minority care: home visits and explanations in response to their needs based on our ability
BHREPHE  FPISR(TRBRLLFER)  BE(EZRANEE)MER(KE
& B S E MR ) &

Key customers' care: home visits (understanding of their needs and take actions in time), sending text
messages (about key notifications and information) and giving phone calls (big community cultural
events oriented invitations)

FEEM : AHRASRASER  BX24/ N \EnlEEREAES

School opening care: giving small gifts to students and creating school opening atmosphere on the
day of school opening in the community
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BErX
Method of caring

= REBMHRE
Channel of information
dissemination

AARE

Five major kinds of free services

HEPHEVRE QF  SEH BHEZR - UENMENEAMEEHE
Establishment of comprehensive information chain for customers via text messages, notices,
promotional columns, elevator advertising, WeChat and Weibo

REBET) - THABENERRE - HE BITRERE

Free knife sharpening: regularly organised knife sharpening services, and self-purchasing services
WEIEE - REPBAMHE - ERNEEHER  DEHR (BB R LR
%)

Carpet cleaning: cleaned carpets for customers, but only limited to ordinary dust-proof blankets and
welcome blankets, except for luxury carpets

BHEB  HEBIL - BHEER-122KEEBARERENEREZA(ZEE
A A REE AR AR )

Holes drilling for hanging pictures: provided 6mm-12mm drilling holes for hanging pictures and
corresponding plastic expansion screws, except for all kinds of tiles, stone, imitation stone walls
ERBREEL  BEXEFEL  WERBHOZEEDETPBEAEAREE

Cleaning of air conditioning filter: staff at the property service center provided cleaning services of
air conditioning filters by appointment

IBERY  REZTFPFEXR  REFRHEEEANFESE - EilEs| - DXRHEZVP
IRTS - MERBHOBREIME - RIUB  FEEFAEENAYE - HhBEFH
BhtR it

Wedding services: collected customer needs and provided customers with VIP services such as
decoration in the park, vehicle guidance and welcoming and seeing off; the property service center
must purchase reusable carpets, rainbow bridges, and floral columns and other materials shall be
provided by customers
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BiEE BErX
Types of caring Method of caring

TIREREE AL BRIEM: e 8A/MgEIA

Ten kinds of convenient services Main entrance Home Toolbox: contains commonly used small repair tools
HEZEEH  1.RE AT
Lightweight climbing ladder: 1.5m herringbone ladder
BLUORS  ERNEENRRRE
Umbrella lending: straight umbrellas are placed in the umbrella stand
FRFHEE  @ERE TRESNFHEY S
Carts lending: flatbed carts and carts are available for lending
ZINREATRE « BiEWE  JAE MRS 2 TR R ik
Multi-function pumps: with multi-function nozzles such as American
valve and French valve and for balls

RRFSHLATE BREAEE  aREBEOERER=E
Front desk of service Universal power bank: with three sets of charging cables of various
center calibers
JE=EEME - ZRIRIRL  ERS  BERRE  ERERAK - &
BoRUL NF
Emergency medicine kit: contains bandages, alcohol, medical cotton
swabs, ageratum-liquid, quick-acting heart pills
EMBERFRE  RELBHE  AEEMEARAS
Convenience bags for pets: provides plastic bags for the convenience
of pet owners
FHEHESR - SEHRECRBNSERBEH
Portable needle and thread box: contains various coloured threads and
different specifications of needles
EIEH - lEH50/E —+400E EEHE
Reading glasses: reading glasses of configurations ranging from +150
degree to +400 degree
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Procedures for Handling Complaints from Customers

The Group highly recognizes the importance of our property owner's satisfaction
and their advices on our products and services. Guidance on Handling Complaints
from Customers of Kaisa Prosperity ( ({EJKEET EBRFIRFRIET
YE#E3I) ), 400 Customer Satisfaction Evaluation Methods of Kaisa Prosperity
Group ((FEKFE R L BE400RFimEE ZIEEZH1E) ) and Guidance
on Call Centre Management System of Kaisa Prosperity ({({EJKEETFE
ENFOU R L EIRSIE ) ) are effective in giving guidance to the procedures
for handling complaints and conducting scientific and systematic analysis and
statistics, giving alerts and directions of service quality, which helps to reduce
and prevent complaints and enhance customers’ satisfaction. The Group requires
that after receiving the complaints from our property owners, the department
who receives complaints would pass the case to the competent departments
within 5 minutes. Upon receipt of cases, the competent department is required
to contact the customers within 30 minutes for preliminary communication and
respond to their complaints in 24 hours. For all kinds of complaints including
walk-ins, phone calls, letter, e-mail, APP, internet, publications, the department
who receives complaints require full record. We would also organize and analyse
customers’ complaints regularly, the analysis covers the reasons, conclusion
of experience and lessons, proposals for rectification measures, pattern of
identifying customers’ complaints and trend analysis, so as to raise standard
for handling customer’s complaints while prevent material complaints and
group complaints. During the Reporting Period, the Group received 59 cases of
complaints in relation to services.

Customer Well-Being and Health and Safety

We has strictly complied with the laws and regulations such as the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({(FB A RKEMB L 2 EEE) ),
Fire Prevention Law of PRC ( {Hr £ A R H£ANEJEF7)E) ), and the Guideline
of China Occupational Safety and Health Management System({{b %% 2
EEZAE(CEARIRE) ). We focus on creating and providing a safe living
environment for our owners and customers, a safe, healthy and hygienic living
environment, and implementing our responsibility for production safety.

Safety Hazard Inspection

In 2022, Kaisa Prosperity launched the “No Accident in Summer Production”
campaign to implement the policy of “safety first, prevention first and
comprehensive management”, to implement corporate safety responsibilities,
strengthen safety awareness and promote safe development. Our operation
carried out 2,416 hidden danger inspections, 1,798 emergency drills, 1,727 safety
training sessions, 460 surprise inspections, 3,757 safety promations on WeChat,
672 safety banners, 27 fire emergencies, 20 burglaries, 34 nuisance cases, and
over 3 million economic losses. In total, we received 118 commendation letters
and pennants.
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In addition to the annual phased launch of special operations for safety hazards,
in 2022, each of our branches set up emergency response unit teams, anti-
explosion teams, special patrol teams, etc., to carry out 582 fire drills and 855
emergency drills for riot, fire and other emergencies through touching smoke
sensing and manual alarms at irregular times and locations.

Intelligent Security Monitoring

We continue to upgrade our systems through research and development to
improve safety management with efficient intelligent and digital equipment
for real-time monitoring of safety hazards. We provide a safe and efficient
community living experience for landlords, tenants and businesses. In June 2022,
Jiake Intelligent provided an upgraded version of the intelligent security system,
enhancing the implementation of Internet of Things technology combined
with a intelligent building management platform to visually integrate various
subsystems. In the digital management platform to achieve real-time detection
and control of the systems, and set up 24-hour high-definition cameras, infrared
detector equipment in the server room, entrances and exits, parking lots, offices
and other public spaces to detect illegal intrusion of personnel, timely recording
and alarm feedback to help security personnel to understand the actual situation
of unexpected events in a timely manner, control measures in the relevant
areas, rapid handling of events, helping the building to create an intelligent,
safe and convenient office environment. In addition to the public area video
surveillance, perimeter intrusion alarm and other artificial intelligent monitoring,
the intelligent security system is equipped with the new Jiake Wise-Eye Anti-
Dropping Objects from Height Integrated Management System, which traces
the whole incident from the source, realizes 24-hour monitoring of the building,
and can push the real-time alarm information to the intelligent community
management platform through the super brain, helping the property personnel to
deal with the incident quickly and deliver education and persuasion at the first
time, so as to avoid causing serious accidents.

Anti-epidemic Measures

We actively respond to the national epidemic prevention policy. In order to
continue to combat the prevention and control of the COVID-19, Kaisa Prosperity
has constantly implemented the “Prevention and Safety First” approach and
maintained the normal order of property management and ensure the health and
safety of tenants, property owners and employees. We required frontline staff to
take comprehensive preventive measures such as:

e strictly implemented the registration system for non-registered vehicles
and visitors;
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set up body temperature monitoring points and body temperature detection
posts to check the body temperature of people entering the building and
whether they wear masks;

conducted daily cleaning and disinfection in the lobby, elevators, toilets,

and public areas;

checked the operation of equipment room and common area equipment,
including ventilation and air-conditioning system and water supply and
drainage system; and

strengthened the advertisement of anti-epidemic work.

Customer Data Privacy and Security

In order to keep the information on property owners and residents properly,
the Group has established Guidance on Management of Property Owners’
Information ({ZE F &R EFEIEFE3]) ) to standardize measures for
protection of customers’ information. Measures for protection of customers’
privacy include:

System users who are in possession of information about property owners
and residents are required to change their passwords at least four times a
year;

Written information about property owners and residents shall be kept by
our delegated employees;

Individuals are required to fill in relevant application forms and subject to
approval before accessing to information of property owners and residents;

Access record shall be documented and traceable;

If change of property owners or removal of residents was incurred, the
original information would be destroyed in a timely manner;

Requirement of our employees to sign a confidentiality agreement before

joining the Group. No information on property owners and residents shall
be disclosed to the external parties by our employees.

During the Reporting Period, there were no complaints on violation of customer’s
privacy or leakage of their information.
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Corporate Governance

Kaisa Prosperity strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations, continue to
improve its corporate governance mechanism, improve its corporate governance
structure, continue to enhance corporate value and protect shareholders’
interests with high standards of corporate governance.

Company Management

\We have established a Board of directors composed of property management and
other senior professionals, and have enriched the Board's diversity in terms of
gender, age, and cultural and educational background. As of 31 December 2022,
the Board consists of (7) directors, of which (3) are women; and (3) independent
non-executive directors.The overall management of the Company’s operation is
vested in the Board. The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and the Company’s affairs,
clarifying the management responsibilities of each department, collaborating,
supervising and jointly promoting the regular operation and decision-making of
the Board.

Compliance operation

Kaisa Prosperity strictly follows the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China( {1 ZE A R MBI QA FEY ), the Securities Law of the People's
Republic of China ({ZEARLMBEFEHE) ) and the regulatory
requirements of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, establishes a listing
compliance system, prepares articles of association, and carries out work related
to information disclosure, risk management and anti-corruption to ensure the
compliance operation of the Company.

\We continue to promote audit and risk prevention and control work, and continue
to strengthen the construction of the compliance system. We have compiled
the “High Pressure Line” of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( {fEJREE T £ E =
4R") ), which sets the top level requirements for compliance, and requires all
employees to comply with it, and has prepared and revised the relevant rules
and regulations to provide regulatory support. The Company has developed
and adopted a number of risk management procedures and guidelines and
has clarified operational authority and responsibilities through key business
processes and departmental functions. The Board is responsible for the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
We attach importance to communication with our shareholders to protect their
rights and interests. We will hold annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings in accordance with our articles of association and the Listing
Rules to enable shareholders to exercise their rights and express their views
through general meetings. In addition, the Capital Markets Business Module of
the Administration and Human Resources Department is responsible for investor
relations to ensure two-way communication, respond to shareholders’ and public
enquiries and protect the interests of small and medium-sized investors to meet
the relevant requirements for sustainable development.

Information Disclosure

We also adhere to a high standard of disclosure in accordance with relevant
regulatory requirements for information disclosure, and make true, accurate,
complete and compliant disclosures of special factual circumstances on a
regular basis or at any time as far as reasonably practicable, so that the public
has equal, timely and effective access to the information disclosed. In respect
of information disclosure for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
adhered to the established timely, efficient and high standards and ensured
that relevant information was disclosed in a timely manner through the Stock
Exchange, the Company's official website and other channels.

Selection of suppliers and supply chain risk management

The steady business development of the Group relies on support from various
suppliers and partners. Therefore, we place significant importance on supply
chain management, so as to maintain our service quality and trading integrity. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group has partnered with a total of 2,336 suppliers.
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EARER Engagement of suppliers

HPHIE TCEREETSBEHBEERS We prepared Kaisa Prosperity Procurement Management System ( {fEJk %3
EOLUR G ERIBIT AMMEED XN S LR TFEEREBEIRHIE) ) to govern procurement behaviors and safeguard our
= o BRI E TIERBE AR - AFME legal rights. Our procurement adheres to the tender and procurement principles
e BRERERA - of openness, faimess and transparency:

R R A JR B8R

Procurement principles Descriptions for principles

BRRA A BFERENREEE  TNEASBEAX A RBBER - BREBBK
FRERIE BTN BIRIE 7 = - BBENTE B /A TTRIS B EMKE -
Tender principle For procurements which are qualified for tender, no reason or way shall be allowed to

avoid tendering. Division of procurement and change of method of procurement are strictly
prohibited. Monopolised projects shall be strictly reviewed and verified.

FEHRRSRA EEREF R EEBEEENARER  HREERIE - TE2ERET
ERABZRRRESTHE - BRZELD - TENABB AR - BRIZAR
MERMERE - BAEEEBARRMERE TIE - W iRESEERBRALE o ERIA
PMETHRIFERBLIEFNEEMAL -

Transparent and governing principles All procurements must be conducted in an open and transparent manner within the
terms of reference and black-box practice is strictly prohibited. All personnel involved in
procurements must strictly comply with the regulations, uphold a high standard of integrity
and not to use their positions for their own benefit. Any persons having an interest with
the tenderer must abstain themselves from taking part in the procurement and report to the
Group's procurement department. No one shall interrupt or exert influence on the objectivity
and fairness of the procurement.

RERA BIEXM - BRIBAGES  EARMENREIUEE  FFER  F1RE - #
AHEREAIREFHBREEE  ER2BCER  HNMSHE - LBR
BINBEERTEITR - ERBHTKAT - TMEREFMAEE - BRI

BEEER -
A IS IS
Confidentiality principles Information about tendering document, tenderer, private base price or estimated price,

evaluation criteria, bid price, relevant tender conference or resolution shall be kept strictly
confidential. Regardless of whether or not the bid is finalized, such information shall not be
disclosed. Confidential information other than his/her responsibilities shall not be collected.
No one shall disclose, imply or undertake its intention to the bid before the bid is approved

and finalized.

ErxfazERal HAALBERNERES - RA LB ALSBRERERIPFIHMaZER - B
EREHABREIAIZERIR -

Qualification pre-assessment principles Suppliers shall pass a strict review for qualification. In principle, suppliers shall be jointly

inspected by the procurement and business department. They can take part in tendering
subject to the passing of the qualification review.
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JR AU A

Descriptions for principles

FANHE - ABREETRRA

Sufficient competition and reasonable and
lowest bid wins principle

REREE T RA

Prioritized sizable procurement principles

oM — R A

External standardized principles

HEEERRA

Safeguarding creditworthiness principles

AEPRA

Retrospective principle

EREKAAEEESN  BMEEREL=R - ROBFHNRA - ERHEHBE
ERMAHRT @ BESEEBELPE -

Regardless of ways of procurement, it shall be done by adhering to comparison between
shops and sufficient competition. Under the prerequisite of meeting the requirements of
tender, we would choose a reasonably low price for successful bidding.

BHERAEREELZSDAIBREE FEEPREBURZEEBSEFR
B BBAERE  EeREREmSE -

We would proactively launch strategic procurement of the Group and each of its
subsidiaries, yearly centralized procurement and joint and centralized procurement for
various projects. On the basis of price in exchange for volume, effectiveness and efficiency
of procurement shall be enhanced.

FBBEE A PIREINERIBE AR —E D - BREMMARES M -
—HM  BIRNEBENHE B HESEZARNASR—ENR - BIRBREE
HRR EEARAREBAEE X SRR G —EREA - SEMERE
WHRGEHPIBEA - BIRBRTRIMHETFE - ARINFELIRE - B
HEPIE AT KA -

As the sole window for releasing tender information to other external parties, the
procurement department shall ensure the standardization and consistency of the information
released. Tender documents, response to enquiries and additional information shall be
released in a standardized way. Information in respect of tender process shall be sent via
Company e-mails, and each time it shall be sent to one tenderer, or encrypted groups and
carbon copy to department heads. The correspondence arisen in the process of tendering
shall be documented. Flow of internal corporate information shall be directly sent from the
department which owns the information to the department which requires the information.

FEBEEETEQL - WRRHTFEATER  RE  BUNEEATR
HHBREENTER -

The tendering process shall be objective and fair, during which communication and feedback
between us and the supplier shall be maintained in a timely manner such that we would
build and safeguard a sound tendering creditworthiness and image of the Company.

KRR - 58k B LESER(BEEFXUE) - WATKRELS
Rig R ETREEMER  TEVABXEAREFXEMERREERE T
B - ARSSRKRRE - TRBERE SERTH  BEFESTHRH
BB - REREBIZHVRE B AT ALEBIML o

Information comprising documents, records, mails and minutes (including electronic files)
involved in the procurement process shall be organized and filed upon the completion of
the tendering and in a timely manner while paper filing and electronic filing management
platforms shall be put in place. In case of special cases such as emergency, for projects
which are not applicable to relevant procedures and requirements, descriptions shall be
given at the time of review to ensure transparency for decision-making and retrospectivity in
the procurement process.
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Selection of suppliers

The Group selects suppliers based on the Guidance on Supplier Inspection
of Kaisa Prosperity Group ({(fEJKEF T LB ERERIEEES]) ).
During the selection process, we visit the supplier’s offices, processing plants
or production workshops to conduct on-site inspections on their equipment,
on-site management and production size etc., in order to make judgements
on their scale, management levels and positions in the industry. We will also
request them to provide copies of business licenses, certificates of professional
qualifications, permits of safety production, 3C authentication, authentication
of energy saving and other recognized certificates in relation to management
systems to ensure they comply with relevant laws and regulations in relation to
society and environment.

Green procurement

To further enhance green procurement, raise the awareness of environmental
protection of suppliers and incentivize suppliers to contribute to sustainable
development, the Group encourages our cooperative suppliers to perform social
and environmental responsibilities. We favor suppliers who demonstrate their
commitment to sustainability. Suppliers awarded 1S014001, 1IS09001 and
OSHMS or national-level or industry-level qualification will be considered with
higher priority, to ensure that the materials, products and services provided
by cooperative suppliers meet the requirements of national standards of
environmental protection, occupational health and safety and sustainable
development.
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Ongoing monitoring of suppliers’ performance

The Group has a well-established supplier management mechanism. In the
process of close cooperation with suppliers, the Group collected information on
their regular performance in environmental, social and governance aspects and
the latest corporate information. Targeting at different cooperation scenarios,
three types of continuous monitoring and evaluation are in place for suppliers,
including real-time evaluation, post-performance evaluation, and annual
evaluation. Risk sources that may have a significant and negative impact on
cooperation between both parties are identified and effectively dealt with in a
timely manner:

e Immediate assessment: assessment on material violation against laws
or behaviors against rules, safety of quality incidents, malicious claims,
malicious default and incidents which brought media negative impact;

e  Assessment upon performance of obligations: conducted assessments
on suppliers upon performance of obligations in strategic cooperation or
centralized procurement agreements or contracts; and

e  Yearly assessment: At the end of each year, we conduct assessment on
suppliers who perform obligations or complete performance obligations
during the year. We rate suppliers in accordance with execution of
supplier's schedule, the degree of cooperation, occupational safety, on-
site quality control, customers’ satisfaction, environmental protection and
material events involving safety and responsibility. If suppliers are rated
unqualified, the supplier shall not be selected within the Group.

If a new supplier wishes to be listed in the trial supplier database of the Group,
it must fill in the Supplier Basic Information Questionnaire ( {4 & i EAE
BFE X)) and provide corresponding qualification documents. The Group
will go through a strict systematic inspection and evaluation in ensuring that
the supplier has in place an appropriate system and service capabilities and
is capable to comply to abide by the integrity cooperation agreement with the
Group, which may lay a foundation for the subsequent cooperation.
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Anti-corruption and money laundering

Kaisa Prosperity strictly complies with laws and regulations in relation to
business ethics and prohibition of operators to reach monopoly agreement or to
abuse the predominant position in the market which will pose material impact
to our business under Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China ({FFE AR LB X TIEE #FE) ), Interim Provisions on
Prohibiting Commercial Bribery ( (BAR R E R ZERERR 1T RV ETTIRED )
and Anti-Monopoly Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (AP A R AN
B [ BEETY%) ). To operate business without any negative impact, our System
of Management of Gifts Due to Business Reasons for Employees of Kaisa Group
Holdings ((EEJREEBIZEE TR ASTEEIEFE) ) offers guidelines
in relation to the receipt of interests of employees and clearly governs how to
handle the receipt of gifts (either cash or non-cash):

e When our employees offer or receive any business gifts or entertainment
to or from any persons (including the existing or future suppliers, vendors
or contractors), they shall make appropriate judgments and take actions
prudently to avoid the possibility of affecting objective business decisions;

e  Employees shall not demand and receive interests or gifts from any
external business partners in any form unless such interest is nominal or
has no cash value such as promotional goods or advertisement souvenirs
or festive gifts such as gift baskets and flowers which has optimal values
and is available for use;

e  Gifts received or being offered to customers and its value is higher than a
nominal value shall be approved by the primary responsible person of the
department and senior management in details by reporting in the form of
“business offer/personal interest”; and

e Under no circumstances shall employees claim “red packets” from any
external business partners.

If any behaviors against the guidelines or other rules is found, the person who
violates the rules will receive disciplinary punishments. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not breach any laws and regulations in relation to anti-
corruption, nor dismiss or punish its staff disciplinarily due to anti-corruption
cases, or terminate or discontinue contracts with its business partners due to
non-compliance behaviors in relation to bribery.
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Besides, the Group also requires its staff to sign Agreement on Integrity and
Cooperation ( {BRY2 A& 1EH7%) ) advocating a corporate culture of integrity
and honesty, to prevent conflicts of interests and misconducts including bribery,
blackmail, mischief and money laundering, so as to ensure the compliance with
relevant regulations, principles and requirements in relation to occupational
ethics in the agreement. In addition to promoting WeChat Public Accounts
Whistleblowing Platform, the Group implements an awarding policy to whistle
blower to combat all misconducts of corruption and bribery. During the Reporting
Period, we provided 793 directors and employees of subsidiaries with 21 times
and a total of 46 hours of anti-bureaucratic and anti-corruption special training
to increase awareness of integrity among our employees and educate them the
ethical standard they should upheld in the performance of their duties. We also
provided 1,576 employees of the Group and its subsidiaries with 54 hours of
professional ethical thematic training to enhance the staff's understanding of
integrity work and ethics, as well as the latest development of anti-corruption
and integrity through role-playing and other means.

Protecting intellectual property rights

The Group strictly abides by relevant requirements of laws and regulations in
relation to protection of intellectual property rights under Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({HFZ#E A R FEFNEIZE1EMEE) ), Trademark Law
of the People’s Republic of China ( {FF#E A R HEMEIEHIZ)%) ) and Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FPZE AR EMBIEFE) ), in
order to protect the interests of the Group and its customers. We require our
staff to endeavor to guarantee and develop intellectual property rights of the
Group while totally respect legal intellectual property rights of third parties. We
also offer intellectual property rights management education to management
personnel of each department to raise their awareness towards the protection of
intellectual property rights. In addition, the Group would also sign confidentiality
agreement and competition prohibition agreement with its staff and suppliers
to prevent the infringement of intellectual property rights. Employees who are
suspected of violating relevant rules of intellectual property rights of the Group
shall be under investigation and the Group would take appropriate actions to
this.
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Kaisa Prosperity has been enthusiastic about public welfare. Over the years, it
has been committed to participating in and donating to various social welfare
undertakings such as education, medical care and environmental protection,
and actively fulfilling its social responsibilities. We have implemented internal
policies such as the Work Procedures in Relation to Community Culture and
Community Organization of Kaisa Prosperity Group ({({EJKE =T EE 1+t
&b KAt B4R 4 TYE455!) ) and the Policy of Community Cultural
Activities of Kaisa Prosperity ( {({EJK SR 4T AL IR XL /EED) ) to regulate the
work procedures in relation to community culture and community organization,
and develop and promote the community environmental civilization of Kaisa
Prosperity with an aim of enhancing the property owners’ awareness of
civilization, so as to develop a caring culture in the neighborhood. In 2022, Kaisa
Prosperity donated a total of RMB47,184 for environment, culture, vulnerable
groups and public welfare in relation to convenience to citizens, and the total
hours of volunteer services provided by us amounted to 2,361 hours with 1,123
volunteers. In order to enhance community civilization and strengthen community
cohesion, we arranged a series of projects and activities that would help foster
community development, including:

Community communication and integration

Environmental protection

The Group has always promoted a civilized and healthy lifestyle characterized by
environmental friendliness and resource conservation to create a better social
and ecological environment in the community. In 2022, Kaisa Prosperity launched
green and low-carbon environmental protection activities under the theme of
“Enjoying Beauty Together, Practicing Environmental Protection” to bring more
employees and owners to engage in environmental protection. Activities such
as civilization and health knowledge promotion, turning waste into treasure
craft activities and Kaisa's Litter Picking While Running Group combine sports
and environmental protection, and encourage owners and citizens to practice
low-carbon concepts through practical actions, promoting the coordinated
development of social and ecological civilization.
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-3 Health

202F - ENREXFELESRARFER In 2022, Kaisa Prosperity extended its annual social welfare program to include
BEMANFEREL EHRIEEEZ G “Kaisa's Neighbour-Kaisa's Family Free Consultation” activity, and conducted
o FIRMEEERE  RIGH2 EET health talks and on-site consultations to help property owners develop
B IEMEM R - ERRTNEEE correct health knowledge and good living habits, so as to bring health into the
18 - RREREEME - community.

BHEARBREREREITE Participated in charitable and volunteer activities

BHEM B RRKKE T Participated in community epidemic prevention and disaster relief work
2022F - FEREFRTEBAB S ERE In 2022, Kaisa Prosperity organized multiple groups of volunteers to support
TERFAIERE EAREMRELE - & the government's epidemic prevention work in the Shangsha and Chimei
NAENEN - BEEEBNHET communities in Futian District, Shenzhen, Xiaoping Village in Baiyun, Guangzhou,

E o and Shanghai etc.
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In order to fully cooperate with the anti-epidemic work of communities in various
regions, the staff of each project obtained the qualification certificate for nucleic
acid collection to support the community nucleic acid testing work. During
the period of community lockdown, we prepared daily necessities and food
ingredients for property owners and collected nucleic acid at home for the elderly
who are physically challenged and safeguarded their necessity of life. We have
been honored as an outstanding epidemic prevention unit by the community and
municipal governments for many times.

2022F8 7 - MEEEILA - AEESEES
ARIBTITKEEEAXEARSER - X
EORRESEEPOTME —EEEE
mMEAAEAEBRANEZITE - ALK
KEBE—DHE -

In August 2022, in the face of the mountain fires in Chongging, Ding Yongfu, an
employee of the Group's Chongging branch, responded to the call of Dadukou
District and rushed to Jieshi Town, Banan District, together with the volunteer
team of the Emergency Response Center of Dadukou District Armed Forces
Department to carry out fire-fighting emergency operations and contributed to
the mountain fire relief.
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FHFE Vulnerable groups

02F THF - EREZXFEFERZEE In the second half of 2022, Kaisa Prosperity joined hands with Kaisa Poverty
PItkB A - E2 MRS TE B ¥R EE Relief Company in Longmen and while promoting agricultural products from
FIEEMRETEEEENRE @8 /)K Longmen in Huizhou in its service projects nationwide, carried out special live-
EEIFE  ARDRESEESSE & streaming e-commerce with an aim of offering aid to farmers through the “K
BEEZMBETHES  BEZHEFTAR Series Living” (/]\K4E &) platform to bring more employees and owners to inject
=B EMEGETR - UERITHER SIS more power into the chain of aid to farmers through public welfare, and serve
o R BIRRE - the society with practical actions and help farmers solve their problems.

12 FERENIRESE XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPls)"
RIBEN Environmental Performance

No. of KPIs KPIs
A1 BERRY AE/LPINO) Fr 505.84 689.02 656.84
A1.1 Emissions? Nitrogen oxides (NO,) Kilograms
mE(S0,) Fr 165.69 219.72 215.16
Sulfur oxides (S0,) Kilograms
AJ IR AFERLPI(PM10) Fr 65.84 136.36 132.93
Inhalable particulate matter Kilograms
(PM10)
HHFERLY(PM2.5) T 68.02 129.09 137.33
Fine particulate matter (PM2.5)  Kilograms
—&1bHR(CO) T 1,640.29 3,710.55 3,311.76
Carbon monoxide (CO) Kilograms
EULEPIHC) Fr 214.86 462.97 433.81

Hydrocarbon (HC) Kilograms
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RRENERFS

No. of KPIs

A12 B EREE

A1.2 Greenhouse
gas emissions®

RREAMER
KPIs

EE EEEENRE
REBHEK

Scope 1: Direct emissions
of greenhouse gas
RN KON REFE
R SAIE

Boiler for maintaining constant
temperature for the swimming
pool

Hp g ZE 5 1 B ) S AR

Heat generating boiler of the
central air conditioner

BT REMMEL

Gas stoves in staff canteens
Emergency generators
BEMAR L ER S ARRE
e RIERIE B
Weeding machines, chainsaws
and leaf blowers used for
landscaping management
NIEAE

Official vehicles

A RER =R
53

Greenhouse gas removals from
newly planted trees
BEECSLCHBEEHNE
E2 356 -1

Direct carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions in
total
HiEE—SE{bhk
#FHEQE"
Intensity of direct carbon
dioxide equivalent
emissions*

BHBA

ZEthE =08

tons of CO.e

—&biRE 20
tons of CO.e

& LIREEME
tons of CO.e
SRS ENE
tons of CO.e

—E iR E 2N

tons of CO.e

—E b E N

tons of CO.e

& i E =M

tons of CO.e

—SULIRE ENE

tons of CO.e

—S&ftmEEl
BEFITK

7

tons of CO.e/million

square meters

166.65

409.96

5.50

98.30

5.54

118.85

48.97

755.82

8.00

20214

2021

124.62

557.40

6.69

17473

8.48

182.72

49.17

996.99

11.04
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109.60

516.38

6.26

171.16

7.02

189.57

41.68

951.30

16.57
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HE2: HEELENEE
REEHEK

Scope 2: Indirect emissions
of greenhouse gas

HNIBE T

Electricity purchased®

SN SRS

Steam purchased®

HNEEER

Coal gas purchased
SNBRIAR,

Natural gas purchased

M —albitE S
HrE

Indirect carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions in total
B —abirE S BN
B E = E

Intensity of indirect carbon
dioxide equivalent emissions’

SR E 2N
tons of COze
ZabiRE =M
tons of CO.e
SRS ENE
tons of CO.e
—ELiRE 2N
tons of COze
Z&iRE =M

tons of CO.e

—&MtIRE RN,

"AEFHK
tons of CO.e/million
square meters

112,583.39

0.01

1.78

12.49

112,595.89

1,191.26

120,476.62

0.02

5.76

10.29

120,492.68

1,334.80

99,021.68

0.01

1.68

7.33

99,031.70

1,725.27
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RRENERFS

No. of KPIs

RREAMER
KPIs
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E3: HEEEEN
BEREEER

Scope 3: Other indirect
emissions of greenhouse
gas

ZEIIMIHRE AR
Waste paper discarded ina
landfill

BT ERPIRE IR R K 57K
Fr i B FERY S S8
Electricity consumed by
governmental authorities for
handling drinking water and
sewage®

(== BT fal N
Business air travel by
employees
HittEE—gtmEEH
b €8z 356

Other indirect carbon
dioxide equivalent
emissions in total
HitEE—StmEEH
HBHEREZE,
Intensity of other indirect
carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions®

BERBAHHE
Greenhouse gas emissions
in total
RERBEHNE
Greenhouse gas emissions in
total
RERBESHRETED

Intensity of greenhouse gas
emissions'

& i E =M

tons of CO.e
—EIRE =M

tons of CO.e

ZRbiRE £
tons of CO.e

& i E =M

tons of CO.e

“REIREEN B
BY K

tons of CO.e/million
square meters

ZRbiRE £
tons of CO2e

“REIREEN, B
BI¥ K

tons of CO2e/million
square meters

92.50

670.52

51.13

814.15

8.61

114,165.86

1,207.87

82.00

691.10

74.98

848.09

9.40

122,337.76

1,355.24

83.84

712.50

79.68

876.02

15.26

100,858.02

1,757.11
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MIBEEREEY
A1.3 Hazardous
waste

M4 BEREEY
A1.4 Non-hazardous
waste

A2.1 BEIR
A2.1 Energy

BEREEMEE

Total hazardous waste

EEBRYMBEETE
Intensity of total hazardous
waste

BEBEEVMRE
Total non-hazardous waste

BERREVEERE
Intensity of total non-hazardous
waste

BHERFUHRE

Direct energy consumption
KRR

Natural gas

BAL AR

Liquefied petroleum gas

e

Diesel

i

Gasoline

HiEEREE

Direct energy consumption

HEERERE"

Intensity of direct energy
consumption™

i
tons
Mg, B &K

tons/million square
meters

7
tons
WA, B &K

tons/million square
meters

THE T FLE

‘000 kWh

FEF R

‘000 kWh

FEAFEE

‘000 kWh

TE T FLE

‘000 kWh

FEF

‘000 kWh

FRETEE B&F
JoK

‘000 kWh/million square
meters

1.05

0.01

1.32

0.01

2,413.00

24.38

384.65

549.05

3.371.08

35.67

1.06

0.01

1.25

0.01

3.416.90

29.63

683.69

678.27

4,808.49

53.27

1.08

0.02

1.20

0.02

3.133.48

27.71

669.72

695.95

4,526.86

78.87
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BRERERFR

No. of KPIs

RREAMER
KPIs
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A22 FEKE
A2.2 Water
consumption

BB
Indirect energy
consumption
SNEEE S

Electricity purchased
SNBERIR

Steam purchased
SNBBESR

Coal gas purchased
SNEBRIAR,

Natural gas purchased
MEREE
Indirect energy consumption in
total

AL IRFE R E

Intensity of indirect energy
consumption™

HRERAER
Energy consumption in total
RERANEE
Energy consumption in total

RERBEEREY

Intensity of energy
consumption™

FEKE

Total water consumption

FEKRE

Intensity of water consumption

FHETELE
000 kWh
TETRE
000 kWh
FHETFELF
000 kWh
FHET EL
000 kWh
TETERE
000 kWh

TETRE, BEF
JoK
‘000 kWh/million square
meters

TET ELBs

‘000 kWh
FTETRE BT
77K

‘000 kWh/million square
meters

Ik

cubic meters

SR BEFE K
cubic meters/million
square meters

127,442.61

0.83

29.59

62.46

127,535.49

1,349.32

130,906.57

1,384.99

948,912.00

10,039.48

146,485.75

0.75

37.49

51.49

146,575.49

1,623.75

151,383.98

1,677.01

978,036.70

10,834.57

112,090.97

0.66

27.92

36.67

112,156.22

1,953.94

116,683.07

2,032.81

1,008,316.10

17,566.48
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Unless otherwise stated, the emission factors used in calculating the environmental key
performance indicators in this report are based on the “How to prepare an ESG Report? —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The calculation of the emission is based on the “Air pollutant emission inventory based
on local emission source surveys in Hangzhou, China — Acta Scientiae Circumstantiae
(CERARH)5 R A S RN T RE SR BERUE B R — RREREE
k) (20174Fki) )" (2017 Edition) published by research institutions, the “Production
and supply industry of electric power (Including industrial boilers) ( €Z4 77 4 EE FO i
FETTZ (BFET288/) ))" (sulphur content S = 30mg/m?) published by the State
Environmental Protection Administration, the conversion factors provided by scientific
research institutions: http://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_energy.html, the
“Emission factors used in the estimations of emissions from combustion” published by
Statistics Norway, the Project CLEAN AR ( GEFTZ=RAIE) ), the business guidance
published by Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, the Manual for Air Pollutant
Emission Factors ( {Z= )5 2 HE A F ) ) (AP-42, the 5th Edition) published
by United States Environmental Protection Agency, the Technical Guidelines for the
Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission Lists for Road Vehicles (Trial) ( GB RSB B K &,
TERBENG R R ESATIER (5197) ) )issued by the Ministry of Environmental
Protection of the People’s Republic of China, Limits and Measurement Methods for
Emission From Light-duty Vehicles (China VI) ( (ESRY 58855 LY BE PR (E MBI = 75
& (FREZE7SFEER) ) ) jointly published by the Ministry of Environmental Protection
and the General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of
China and the Study of Air Quality in the Pearl River Delta Region published by the
Environmental Protection Department of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

The calculation of the carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from direct production, coal
gas purchased and natural gas purchased is based on the conversion factors provided by
scientific research institutions: http://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_energy.html, and
the References for Calculating Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Energy Consumption ( (A&
TRBFES|EAR EREEHERGTE T ) ) as set out in the internationally adopted
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: Enterprise Accounting and Reporting Standards ( (R = 5,58
RERR  PEREHEREERE)).

Intensity of direct carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Direct carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions + aggregate area of the 673 projects under management during the year.

The data of emission factors for the power grids in Mainland China is based on the “China’s
Regional Power Grids Baseline Emission Factors for Emission Reduction Projects in 2019
(2019 FEmEFIE B B 2 15 B A B R B PE F) )" issued by the National

Development and Reform Commission.

The calculation of emissions from steam is based on the Greenhouse Gas Reporting:
Conversion Factors 2018 (CREREBME : EHEF2018) ) issued by the
government of the United Kingdom.
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EHRENRERKESKEEMEEED
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FEE6731E B A2 HE
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FEERE73IR R #HTE o
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Intensity of indirect carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Indirect carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions + aggregate area of the 673 projects under management during the
year.

Electricity consumed per unit for handling drinking water and sewage in the PRC was set as
0.6 and 0.28328 kilowatt hours, and the default emission factor for electricity purchased
in the PRC was set as 0.8 kilograms/kilowatt hour.

Intensity of other indirect carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Other indirect carbon
dioxide equivalent emissions + aggregate area of the 673 projects under management
during the year.

Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions = Greenhouse gas emissions in total + aggregate
area of the 673 projects under management during the year.

Intensity of energy consumption is calculated based on the conversion factors set out at
the General Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption ( {474 BEFE
=HE3@ AN ) (GB/T 2589-2008), the national standard of the People’s Republic of China,
and the conversion factors provided by scientific research institutions: http://w.astro.
berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_energy.html.

Intensity of direct energy consumption = direct energy consumption + aggregate area of
the 673 projects under management during the year.

Intensity of indirect energy consumption = indirect energy consumption + aggregate area
of the 673 projects under management during the year.

Intensity of energy consumption = energy consumption in total + aggregate area of the
673 projects under management during the year.
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HEEX Social Performance

BRERIERFHR BRERIER 20224F 2021

No. of KPIs KPIs 2022 2021

Bl.1{EE4A# RERERES

B1.1 Total number of By types of employment

employees
s A 9216 6,499 5,549
Full-time person
FH A RE RE RE
Part-time person Nil Nil Nil
RLEE S
By geographical region
BEBRA LR A 2,027 3,361 2,870

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao person
Greater Bay Area

R=AiE A 5,997 920 783
Yangtze River Delta region person

fErh A 429 392 336
Central China person

o] A 540 1,220 1,059
Western China person

RSB A 223 606 501
Bohai Economic Rim person

gzl

By gender

51 A 5,396 4,323 3,702
Male person

7 A 3,820 2,176 1,847
Female person

RERE D

By age

30ARSLLATS A 1,645 3,100 2,855
30 or below person

31-40B% A 1,856 2,202 1,777
31-40 person

41-505% A 1,588 897 662
41-50 person

51pR3k LA £ A 4127 300 255

51 or above person
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BRERIEEFR BRENER 20224F 20214

No. of KPIs KPls 2022 2021

B1.2 BB R KL REBELES

B1.2 Employee turnover rate’ By types of employment
a3 % 38 46 45
Full-time %
Fe sk % gl pEs] peE=]
Part-time % Nil Nil Nil
RiLEE S
By geographical region
BERANE R % 44 47 46

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao %
Greater Bay Area

R=AlE % 37 49 48
Yangtze River Delta region %

#rh % 42 57 57
Central China %

i) % 55 40 39
Western China %

RREE % 35 36 37
Bohai Economic Rim %

RIERIE D

By gender

El % 39 46 46
Male %

i % 37 45 42
Female %

RERED

By age

30mR kA T~ % 50 47 50
30 or below %

31-405% % 34 46 44
31-40 %

41-5075%, % 31 43 33
41-50 %

515x ek A _E % 37 38 7

51 or above %
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BRERERFR

FRENIEE
No. of KPIs KPls 2022 2021

B21 I THMAZR
b s

B2.1 Number and rate of
work-related fatalities'

B22 ATBIEATHEREY
B2.2 Number of working days
lost due to work injury"

B3.1 ZHIEEE DL
B3.1 Percentage of trained
employees™

AT AR
Number of work-related fatalities

AT THMO AR X

Rate of work-related fatalities

HIBEEITIERHE
Number of working days lost due
to work injury

XiIMEEBS
Percentage of trained employees

RIERIE >
By gender

[==]
=3

Male
k8

Female

RBARE D

By positions

EIRE
Management
FEET
Middle-level employee
REEE8T

Entry-level employee

202245 20214
A 2 BAE
person Nil
% 0.02 BAE
% Nil
| 2,556 13
day
% 98 7
%
% 9% 60
%
% 104 95
%
% 135 74
%
% 161 80
%
% % 7

%

67

66

"

85

94

65
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BRERERFR

No. of KPIs

B2 BHEETHEZIIN
FHRE

B3.2 Average training hours
completed per employee

B5.1 HER A
B5.1 Number of suppliers

EIEFEEFEBARA T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED £ 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BREMER
KPIs

BREBTAEIN
SRS

Average training hours
completed per employee

g kdalE- o)
By gender

[==]
=3

Male
Z

Female

REBARE D

By positions

EIRE
Management
FEET
Middle-level employee
AEET

Entry-level employee

HERHELTEE S
Number of suppliers by
geographical region
BERAEE
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area
R=mAmiE

Yangtze River Delta region
o

Central China

i

Western China

R SEER

Bohai Economic Rim

ES1d

Northeast China

#i

North China

N
hour
I NEE

hour

N
hour
N
hour
N

hour

&

supplier

A
supplier
i
supplier
A
supplier
A
supplier
i
supplier
A

supplier

20224

2022

29

30

26

74

113

26

932

382

266

265

144

20214
2021

15

12

20

18

24

14

864

373

247

306

186

163

46

23

32

250

62

32

77

51

25
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BREVERFR BAREMER B 20225 20215 20205
No. of KPIs KPIs Unit 2022 2021 2020
B6.2 B & i R AR A Y ERENE RN RBH = 59 51 62
REFEE REFER

B6.2 Number of complaints Number of complaints about case

about products and services  products and services received

B7.1 ES5RARMY REWEFENETHA = RE RE RE
EHWEA

B7.1 Legal cases in relation Number of legal cases in relation  case Nil Nil Nil

to corruption to corruption filed and concluded

B7.3 RE SRR MEELREIRHNRE aNs 46 21 14

Vet
B7.3 Number of training hours  Anti-corruption training provided  hour
in relation to anti-corruption  to directors and staff'®

B8.1%B8.2 B & BRASRE T MER
g5

B8.1 & B8.2 Community Total amount of donation (by

investment core contribution area)
%A TAR RE 56,226 23,000
Education RMB Nil
REEH TARE 15,440 7.478 4,500
Environmental concerns RMB
=353 TTARE RE 28,800 RE
Health RMB Nil Nil
X1t AR 19,836 10,140 9,565
Culture RMB
S5F B TARE 21,331 11,500 74,492
Vulnerable groups RMB
HEREMERRE AR pgs] 66,679 RE
Donation of community anti- RMB Nil Nil
epidemic materials
Efth TTARHE RE e RE
Others RMB Nil Nil Nil
BRI E TTARE 56,607 180,823 111,557

Total amount of donation RMB
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BRENIEEFE RARENIEE

No. of KPIs KPls
ETRBARE(ZREEIE
FrEiE S5 )

Total number of hours for
providing voluntary services
(by core contribution area)

BE /N RE RE 28
Education hour Nil Nil

REEH /INEF 1,737 357 21
Environmental concerns hour

353 /NEF 416 340 47
Health hour

X4t /B 291 588 32
Culture hour

S9EVEERR /INEF 383 60 605
Vulnerable groups hour

2 EEIE T {Fo 2N RE 54,000 RE
Participation in anti-epidemic hour Nil Nil
work?

BT EK AN 9% RE =]
Labour demand hour Nil Nil
A /N RE RE RE
Others hour Nil Nil Nil
& TIREAREH /)NEF 2,922 55,345 733
Total number of hours for hour

providing voluntary services
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RARENIEEFS FARENIEE 20224 20145 20204
No. of KPIs KPIs 2022 2021 2020
ETRBELBABREEE
BREEE 5 )

Total number of people
received the voluntary
services (by core contribution

area)

BE A RE RE 15
Education person Nil Nil

REEH A 1,078 357 56
Environmental concerns person

=953 A 44 340 115
Health person

X1t A 228 588 120
Culture person

BEELgicd:. ] A 268 60 1,719
Vulnerable groups person

LEEIFT(Er A gl 6,000 Xl
Participation in anti-epidemic person Nil Nil
work?

BIFEKX /NBF 30 RE RE
Labour demand hour Nil Nil
EAth /N RE RE e
Others hour Nil Nil Nil
ELRBEAAH A 1,648 7,345 2,025
Total number of people person

received the voluntary
services
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EBERKLERAERER  BEIRAR=
EERRKEBIANE (FREIAE+2
FRIAZ) o

20195 PR T THMASBMILEERE

R20199F - RMATIBIBLANTIEREA
3930 - 202F EAES T 1ER B EEE
MEZRAER @ FE&RIE B RERER
KB BREEEZHTTREHE - HRYEE
THOEEEZETREEAMNIBRTIER
o

ZUB I A D =REHERN2F2NE
MET HHEHERETAH - ER2FEZR
MBI E T AR S Ak BER 8
T MEFI8 T AT aE R 100% ©

SEEAEENEERETIRENRES
23 - BT TR R AR B IR AR kA
FETRESE - 001FNRESE I
BISEt BIEE T F RTINS EBRFIALE
TITREZE @ M00FHRESEIKFEE
FEHES IR RSN LB TRES -

SEEWSBRERBEE - 2021FEF
B2ERBEIEAtR2R&EBRDE
B) - ELEIESIB AR - MR AR
THIBETIE - M2020F 108 A U S 4ERE
g o
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16

17

The calculation of employee turnover rate is: employee turnover rate=number of
employees turnover for the year/(number of employees as at the end of the year + number
of employees turnover for the year).

In 2019, the number and rate of staff involved in work-related fatalities was zero.

In 2019, the number of working days lost due to work-related injury was 393 days. The
significant increase in the number of working days lost due to work-related injury in 2022
was primarily due to lost working days arising from the key address on the health and
well-being of employees under active response of the Group to the national call and in
cooperation with third-party administrative arrangements during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Percentage of employees trained = Number of employees in the relevant category who
attended training throughout the year/number of employees in the relevant category.
The percentage of employees trained may be greater than 100% because the number
of employees who attended training throughout the year includes some transferred or
terminated employees.

During the year, the anti-corruption training was provided by the Group to directors and
employees, including employees at assistant to manager level or above and directors
of the subsidiaries. The anti-corruption training hours in 2021 included employees at
manager level or above and directors of the subsidiaries, while the anti-corruption training
hours in 2020 only counted for employees at manager level or above and directors of the
headquarter.

During the year, no relevant data was collected. In 2021, the anti-epidemic work included
nucleic acid test activities, mainly managing flow of people, order maintenance and QR
code scanning, and there was no relevant data collected in 2020.
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+= B EEE  c HEREREEIE Xl HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
S| ¥fER GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

IRER - BEH —REBERBEERIER WERR BE e

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explain

ARIR

A. Environmental

FEMEAT : BERY

Aspect Al: Emissions

— R EE B kR + - EEGESE - BITRIR
EABES LAEREEN - KR LS - BEREZSEEYN

EEEN

(a) BE &

(b) BFHEITAGEATENEEERLIROINER -

General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
Information on: AND ENVIRONMENTAL

(a) the policies; and PROTECTION

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to exhaust and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and soil, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes, etc.

RASAERUEIRALY  BERIER AR B R EBUE - B %R + - EHGES - BITRR
T BRERURIENE

KPI'A1.1 Types of emissions and respective emission data. Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

FRESIEIEAM 2 EEEEN) RPREE(GE)REREHR  B2HR + - ERGES - BITRR
SAMEHE) R (WER)ZE (WA GESE T BRERUEEHE
iz ~ GIEZMBETH)

KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, if appropriate, AND ENVIRONMENTAL
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
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FERHER - BEH —REBERBREANESR BERER

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status

B8
Section/
Explain

BRERIEIRAIS  PIELAEEEDAE (UEFE) R(ER) BXRE
HE(WMAGES B - BERMHE)

KPIA1.3 Hazardous wastes generated in total (in tonnes) and, if ~ Disclosed
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

BRGESIEEM L FEERESEEYES (UNTE) R(EA) DR
mE(MMASESEN - BEXMAE)

KPIA1.4 Non-hazardous wastes generated in total (in tonnes) Disclosed
and, if appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FREZIEIEM S RAPET VR ERERAEIEERER B2HR
PRERE B -

KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps takento  Disclosed
achieve them.

BRENIEEAM G HOEREEEREEEEDNG L - Rl 2R
RN BRI B R R AEDE L BRI 25

KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  Disclosed
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

- EHEE - BITRR
= BIRRRURIRRE
VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

- EHCER - BITRR
T BREBUEEHE
VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

- EHOEE - BITRR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

+ - EHGEE - BITIRIR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
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FRER - BEH —REBERBRENER BERER -

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explain

[EHA2 : EREMA
Aspect A2: Use of

Resources
—REHEE [ + - EEGEE - BITIRIR

BRERER(BIEER - KEEMRIED BB -
HHE - ERFT AR - G477 - B BT BTRMES -

General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw AND ENVIRONMENTAL
materials. PROTECTION

Note: Resources may be used for production, storage, transportation, buildings, electronic
equipment, etc.

BRERUETRA2)  RERESHERER SHEZER(NE - Ak BEEE + - ERGES - BITRR
M RFEE(ATFETERE) RBE (G T BRERUEEHE
B8 - BER®BTE) °
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity AND ENVIRONMENTAL
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
BRENIEIRAZ2 RBRKEREE(WMANSES S - §IERMES CERE + - EHGES - BITRR
#)- T BERERURIEHE
KPI'A2.2 \Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
production volume, per facility). AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FRERNIEIRA23 HIFTEIMRERERANG B ERAEEL BRE + - EEGESE - BITRIR
B IR P ERER B 25 o
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
steps taken to achieve them. AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
FRENIEIEA2Z4 ECKEGERKR ERT A EEERE - ARE] BHEER + - EEESE - BITRIR
SEVRKE B IR R AERIE L B 1R P EREREY
KPI'A2.4 Description of issue in sourcing water, water efficiency  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
target(s) and steps taken to achieve them. AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
FRENIEIZA2ZS BREAeRMENESE (A E) R(nE TEA BMEERRSRBEME
B)BEEEMEE - EVBER - FTIA L BESRAE Bt
RTNERRNEMINES -
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Not applicable Our operations do not involve
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit the use of packaging materials.
produced. Therefore, this KPI is not

applicable to our business.
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EHA3 : RERRRER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

— MR IR B + - EEGESE - BITRIR
IR EITAHRERRAERERERTZENEEK -
General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and AND ENVIRONMENTAL
natural resources. PROTECTION
FRERIEIFALT  HIEKEBHRBERAABERNEATZER BERE + - BEGES - BITRIR
EEREREEEENTTY -
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
environment and natural resources and the actions taken AND ENVIRONMENTAL
to manage them. PROTECTION

[ETEHAS : RIREL
Aspect A4: Climate Change

— MR IR B + - BEGESE - BITRIR

BRRESEA R EEHBETAEREEYENEARIKABREENIK

&= o

General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which AND ENVIRONMENTAL

have impact, and those which may impact, the issuer. PROTECTION

BRENIEEA PRI SHETAEELENERE DR + - EEGESE - BITRIR
=EMEEE - REHTTE -

KPI' A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the AND ENVIRONMENTAL

issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. PROTECTION
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BALE

B. Social

EEREZEIER

Employment and Labor Practices

FEMEB1 : £

Aspect B1: Employment

—RR IR ERE N AARAE - EBH
BRAFI N E - BMERE - TR BRY - TS %
b~ RIBARIA R B Ab %8 R Ag ) -

=l

(a) BE: &

(b) BTHETARERZENRBEZRRRONER -

General disclosure Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
Information on: WIN SITUATION

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BSARUEIRBL MR ERER (WEBEER) - FikdR ERE N AARA - ERHER -
M@ & o H e 8 B8 - T ARBERIEENE

KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g., full Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
time or part-time), age group and geographical region. WIN SITUATION

XI.OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FRANIEIEBI2  RER) - FRRARIRMESIDMEERALE o BHE T= - BRERUEIEE
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Disclosed XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
geographical region. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
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[EEB2: RERZE
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

—REHEE [ N AR - R
FARMLZ2TERERRERESHEBELEEN

(a) BE &

(b) ETHETAGERZENHBERRROER -

General disclosure Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
Information on: WIN SITUATION

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

FRENIEIEBL]  BE=ZF(BEERFE)SFRITHNAR BERE N\ ARE - EB SR
M= o T ERERUEEHE

KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work related fatalities occurred in Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
each of the past three years including the reporting year. WIN SITUATION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
BRERIERB22  EIEBEEIIERSH - ERE N AARAE - B E
T BRERIEENE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
BASRAERIEIRB23 RPN R BB L e - AR B4R N AR - ERHRE
BWITRERGE -
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. WIN SITUATION
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FETEB3 : BEKRE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

—MR IR w1 N AR - R
BRI EE BT TIEBE N ANHE IR MEER - wiltiEIINES -
General disclosure Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at WIN SITUATION
work. Description of training activities.
BRERUIEIRB BMAIREEER(WERERE FRERE BEXRE N AR R
F)EINXIMEE RS - T BRERUEEME
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
employee category (e.g., senior management, middle WIN SITUATION
management). XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
BRENIEIER2 RURIREERMNED -  BREETKEIIE DR N AR - ERHRE
TR o T BRRERUEEME
KPI'B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
gender and employee category. WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
[EEB4 : &I %8|
Aspect B4: Labor standards
—RRIRER e N BARAE  ERAR
BRAD ILE Takaam| S5 TH)
(a) BE R
(b) BTHETAREATZENBBERLROINER -
General disclosure Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
Information on: WIN SITUATION
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing use of child labour or forced labour.
FRENIEIERAT U I AIeE AR R E T Roahlss  BHER N BARAE - ERHR
T o
KPI'B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
to avoid child and forced labour. WIN SITUATION
AR, HAEBRREREAEEREEBELMKRY BRE s ARA - ERHR
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-

when discovered. WIN SITUATION
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EEEH

Operating Practices
fEmBS : {rEEERE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

—ARBEE Bk T BREKE AR

ERHEENRIE R GRRBGER -

General disclosure Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,

Policies on managing the environmental and social risks of the supply chain. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

RABREIEIZRE BB DR EEEE - B T BREKE - AalRTE -
T BRERUERNE

KPI'B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)

BSREN IR0 MBI AREENEN  MARTERIE CRE T BRERKE - AR
Pl EtEmE B e - LARBREIERIHENITRER
FE e

KPI'B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
number of suppliers where the practices are being COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS

BSE IR0 HBMEAHERGERGNREIMIER BERE T BREKE AR
REVED - ARMEERITRERAE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS

BSRE N EIEB0.A HAEREHERREESZARRERLRE CSERE T BREKE  ARSE
BB - LARABRAEAIT REEER T ©

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmental ~ Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
preferable products and services when selecting COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND

suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS
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[ETEB6 : EmELE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

—RE R [mE o RHmE - MRS
FAMEHERNRGHREEREEZ S BE BHEIILEEEURME

RER -

(a) HE &

(b) BTFHETAEBERZENHBEZRRBRONER -

General disclosure Disclosed IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF
Information on: QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters in relation to products and services provided and methods of redress.

FRENIEIEBE EENCEXERAHPRLREEEREHM  TEA IR B BUE R T AR RN
ZEE GO ER A FIEERTS -

KPI'B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subjectto  Not applicable This KPI is not applicable to our
recalls for safety and health reasons. business.

BSREIEIRB6.2 EEMNER MR E A REE L - BRE N AR E - RRT

T BRERUEENE

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Disclosed IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF

received and how they are dealt with. QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FRENIEIRB6.3  HEuL B E RIS AN BAE A BB o B N A mE - R IRS
KPI'B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Not applicable IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF
protecting intellectual property rights. QUALITY, NEW SERVICE
FRRENIEIERS MBS RTEBIEREREBKIZT o TEA Ut BB AE IR IR N E AN
(REOE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Not applicable This KPI is not applicable to our
procedures. business.
RERUEIRBES  HIUEBEEBBRE RABEE - UREBR ERE T BREREE - AR
TTMEEERTTIE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS
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[EmEB7 : RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

—REHEE [ T BRRKE - ARPE
BRI ILERRS - 1R - HEFROERER -

(a) BE &

(b) ETHETAGERZENHBERRROER -

General disclosure Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
Information on: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
(a)  the policies; and REGULATIONS

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRENIERE RERMHAHBITAXHESRETVCELN CERE T BRERKE - aRE
BISRARMHEE RFAER © T BRERUEENE
KPI'B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
practices brought against the issuer or its employees COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the REGULATIONS
cases. XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
WRERUEIRB2 W SEER BRI  AREERITRE EBEERE T RRGE - SRPE
BIE e
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
FRENIEIERI3  HimMESREREIRENRESSE - EHE T RERE - ARTPE
KPI'B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
directors and staff. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS
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[EEBS : HERE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

—MR IR B +— - ERE - DfErE
FRANMES2ERTREEMEHERENRREAER TS E LT

= MR AV BUR o

General disclosure Disclosed XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities GIVING BACK TO THE SQOCIETY

where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.

RAREMIEIEES]  FEIEREB(IMHE  REFH - BIFR BEE T ERHCE - DErE
f2pE - it - B8E) -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education, Disclosed XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,
environmental concerns, labor needs, health, culture and GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY
sports).

RRAEDIEIER2 MR THBEAMBAER(NSENKRRE) [ +— - ERME - DfErE

T BRRAERUEEME

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time) to the focus ~ Disclosed XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,

area. GIVING BACK TO THE SQOCIETY

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa
Prosperity” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is
committed to maintaining high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in providing
a framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving high corporate
governance standards to enhance corporate performance and accountability. The Board
will strive to uphold the principles of corporate governance and adopt sound corporate
governance practices to meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. An internal corporate governance policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing greater transparency, quality of disclosure as well
as more effective risk and internal control. The execution and enforcement
of the Company’s corporate governance system is monitored by the Board
with regular assessments. The Company believes that its commitment to
high-standard practices will translate into long-term value and ultimately maximise
returns to shareholders. The Company’s management pledges to build long-
term interests for shareholders via, for example, conducting business in a socially
responsible and professional manner. The Board continues to monitor and review the
Company's corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), except for the below deviation:

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, the role of the chairman and chief executive of the Company should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Since the commencement of the Reporting Period and up to 16 September 2022, Mr.
Liao Chuangiang is the chairman of the Board and the president of the Company. Under
the leadership of Mr. Liao, our Board works efficiently and performs its responsibilities
with all key and appropriate issues discussed in a timely manner. In addition, as all
major decisions are made in consultation with members of the Board and relevant
Board committee, and there are three independent non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspective, the Board is therefore of the view that there
are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the
Board. The Board has been nevertheless reviewing the structure and composition of
the Board from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.
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The Board has appointed Ms. Mou Zhaohui as an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 16 September 2022. As a result,
Mr. Liao Chuangiang, no longer act as the president of the Company but remain as the
chairman of the Board. Such arrangement separates the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive of the Company, which enables the Company to re-comply with code
provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition
Executive Directors:
Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chairman)
Ms. MOU Zhaohui (Chief executive officer)

(appointed on 16 September 2022)

Mr. LI Haiming
Mr. NIE Qiang (appointed on 17 June 2022)
Mr. ZHAO Jianhua (appointed on 22 August 2022)
Ms. GUQ Li (resigned on 16 September 2022)
Mr. WU Jianxin (resigned on 17 June 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LIU Hongbai

Ms. MA Xiumin

Mr. CHEN Bin

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed "“Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the such section, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there are no other relationships (including financial, business,
family or other material relationships) among the directors and senior
management of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the company secretary of the Company
confirmed that he had received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his knowledge and skills.

As of 31 December 2022, the Board consisted of eight Directors including Mr.
LIAQO Chuangiang (Chairman), Ms. MOU Zhaohui (Chief executive officer), Mr.
LI Haiming, Mr. NIE Qiang, Mr ZHAO Jianhua as the executive Directors, and
Mr. LIU Hongbai, Ms. MA Xiumin and Mr. CHEN Bin as the independent non-
executive Directors. The overall management of the Company’s operation is
vested in the Board.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes on the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall
strategies, risk management and internal control systems, and monitor the
performance of the senior executives. The Directors have to make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information about
the Company so that they can discharge their duties and responsibilities as
Directors. In particular, through regular Board meetings and receipt of regular
financial and business updates, all Directors are kept abreast of the conduct,
business activities and development, as well as regulatory updates applicable to
the Company.

Liahility insurance for Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company was maintained by the Company with coverage for any legal liabilities
which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the executive Directors of the Company along
with other senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management should report back,
and will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Compliance With the Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code for securities transactions by the relevant employees of the
Group, who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, in order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility, Mr. LIAO Chuangiang acted as Chairman of
the Company and Ms. MOU Zhaohui acted as Chief Executive Officer from 16
September 2022.
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The chairman plays a leadership role and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with the good corporate governance
practice adopted by the Company. He is also responsible for instilling corporate
culture and developing strategic plans for the Company.

Under code provisions C.2.2 and C.2.3 of the CG Code, the chairman would
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and would be responsible for ensuring that Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

On the other hand, the chief executive officer primarily focuses on developing
and implementing objectives and policies approved and delegated by the
Board. The chief executive officer is also responsible for the Group’s day-to-day
management and operations and the formulation of the organisation structure,
control systems and internal procedures and processes of the Company for the
Board's approval.

Under the leadership of Mr. Liao, the Board works efficiently and performs its
responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues discussed in a timely manner.
In addition, as all major decisions are made in consultation with members of
the Board and relevant Board committee, and there are three independent non-
executive Directors on the Board offering independent perspective, the Board
is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board. The Board shall nevertheless
review the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in light of
prevailing circumstances, to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practices of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board by
virtue of their independent judgement and their views carry significant weight in
the Board's decision. They bring an impartial view on the Company’s strategies,
performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and have
provided their professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the independent non-executive Directors can
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategies, results
and management so as to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed
issuer must include at least three independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant
to Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,at least one of the independent non-executive
directors have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors of a listed issuer must represent at least
one-third of the Board of such listed issuer, during the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with Rules
3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

Mechanism to Ensure Board Independence

The Company has in place mechanisms to ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board. The Board shall at all times comprise at least three
independent non-executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the
Board, such that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement. Each independent non-
executive Director is required to provide an annual confirmation of his/her
independence to the Company and the Nomination Committee of the Company
is responsible to assess the independence and time commitment of each
independent non-executive Director at least annually.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, are given
equal opportunity and channels to communicate and express their views to the
Board and have separate and independent access to the management of the
Group in order to make informed decisions. To facilitate proper discharge of their
duties, all the Directors are entitled to seek advice from the company secretary
of the Company or, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advice at the Company's expense. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of other
Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than by written resolutions. Such Director will be required to declare his/her
interests before the meeting and abstain from voting and not counted towards
the quorum on the relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors
who, and whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the
Board meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are effective in
ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the Board during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of communications. Meeting agenda
for regular meetings are set after consultation with the Chairman. All Directors
are given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda.

At least 14 days’ notice will be given for a regular Board meeting to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given.

All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to the matters in issue
in advance before the meetings and have the opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for Board meetings. They can separately get access to the senior
executives and the company secretary at all time and may seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. Minutes of board meetings and
meetings of Board committees are kept by the company secretary of the meeting
and such minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.5 of the CG Code, minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committees record in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes
of Board meetings were sent to all the Directors for their comment and record
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the Board meeting was
held.

Other than regular meetings, the Chairman also meets with non-executive
Directors (including Independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of executive Directors, to facilitate an open discussion among the non-executive
Directors on issues relating to the Group.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.7 of the Code, if a substantial shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, the matter would be dealt with
by way of a physical meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent non-
executive Directors who have no material interest in the transaction would be
present at such Board meeting.

The Board procedures are in compliance with the articles of associations of the
Company (the “Articles”), as well as relevant rules and regulations. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, there were no significant changes to the Articles.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company for
a specific term of three years. Such term is subject to his/her re-election by the
Company at an annual general meeting ("AGM") upon retirement. The Articles
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the
Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the members of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Besides,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles, at every AGM of the Company, one third of the
Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general meetings convened and
held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director at any time before
the expiration of his period of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the
Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such Director.

Training and Support for Directors

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each newly
appointed Director or alternative Director would receive an induction package
covering the Group's businesses and the statutory regulatory obligations of a
director of a listed company. The Group also provided briefings and other training
to develop and refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance
notes are issued to Directors and senior management, where appropriate, to
ensure awareness of best corporate governance practices.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment and subsequently,
necessary briefing and professional development to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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According to paragraph C.1.4 of the CG code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills that enable the
Directors to discharge their duties properly. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company's expenses.

Prior to the Listing Date, all Directors have been given the relevant guideline
materials regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors and duty of disclosure
of interests. In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
updates will be provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, all the Directors had participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways of attending
the director training webcast series organized by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and/or attending trainings organized by professional firm and/or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s businesses or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy by setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

There were two female Directors and one female senior management during
the year ended 31 December 2022. The Board aims to maintain at least the
current level of female representation and will strive to achieve a balanced
gender diversity based on stakeholders’ expectations and best practices with
the ultimate goal of increasing the proportion of female members over time
as and when suitable candidates are identified. The Board believes that the
current composition of the Board satisfies the Company’s specific needs for
gender diversity. The Company will also ensure that there is gender diversity
when recruiting staff at mid to senior level of the Group so that it will have a
pipeline of female senior management and potential successors to the Board in
the future. The Board will regularly review its policies and procedures for board
diversity, taking into account relevant data and feedback from stakeholders, and
will take appropriate action as needed to ensure that it is achieving its gender
diversity goals.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 12,159 employees in total comprising of
approximately 7,903 males and 4,256 females (that is, a male-to-female ratio of
6.5:3.5).
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During the year, after the annual review of the implementation and effectiveness
of the Board Diversity Policy, the Board is satisfied that the Board Diversity Policy
has been properly implemented and is effective.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Board and the Company's affairs. All Board
committees are established with defined written terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
eXpense.

Nomination Committee and policy

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for, among other things,
considering and recommending to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
the member of the Board and is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis and as required.

Its written terms of reference cover recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors, evaluation of Board composition and the management
of Board succession with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by the
Committee. These guidelines include appropriate professional knowledge
and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee will select and
recommend candidates for directorship after consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professionals, when necessary.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the financial year under
review was as follows:

Chairman:
Mr. LIAO Chuangiang, executive Director

Members:

Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director
Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director
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The Nomination Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of our Board;

to identify, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship, and ensure the diversity of the
Board members;

to assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Directors and succession
planning for the Directors;

to review the nomination policy, Board diversity policy and any measurable
objectives for implementing such policies as may be adopted by the Board
from time to time and to review the progress on achieving the objectives.

RHEERBI °

BEREES Audit Committee

ERZESNTERTA(EPaE)EM The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for, among other things, the review
RESEARE IE’JBM‘%E%&&V A B 85 2 and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process, internal controls and

HIEREEANTTEHRE o HEmELE review of the Company’s financial statements. Their written terms of reference

BEGTAEDEEATHME - WHRIET are in line with the provisions under the CG Code and explains the role and the
EREEeENAGNEES R HENNRE authority delegated to the Audit Committee by the Board.
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The Audit Committee consists of three members, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee during the
financial year under review was as follows:

E Chairman:
RS - B IEHITES Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director

RE Members:

%MJFE%E By I TES Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director
EEHLT  ByIEHTES Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
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The Audit Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any issues related to its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; and to discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply
non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity
that is under common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally;

to report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems;

to review the Company's financial controls, and unless expressly addressed
by a separate risk committee of the Board, or by the Board itself, to review
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have effective systems. The discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company's accounting and financial reporting functions;
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to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to such findings;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to the management in respect of the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management's
response, and to ensure that the Board provides a timely response to the
issues raised;

to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and the internal audit function;

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors of the Company;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company; and

to review the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year.

The audited consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Directors’ remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level of their remuneration and
compensation are reasonable. Their written terms of reference are in line with
the provisions of the Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the
remuneration committee would make available its terms of reference, explaining
its role and the authority delegated to it by the Board. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee during the financial year under review was as follows:

Chairman:
Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director

Members:

Mr. LIAO Chuangiang, executive Director

Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director

The Remuneration Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

e to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and
structure for all directors” and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

e  toreview and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

e to determine, with delegated responsibility, the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management members of
the Company;

e  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors;

e toconsider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the group;
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e toreview and approve the compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

e toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group and details of the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” and note
12 to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration packages
of the executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and senior
management members of the Company, and reviewed the collective performance
and individual performance as well as the performance-based bonus payment of
them.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out below:

AE

FrEfEsE (A R¥% ) Remuneration bands (RMB) Number of persons
021,000,000 0to 1,000,000 5
1,000,00122,000,000 1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1
2,000,001223,000,000 2,000,001 to 3,000,000 0
3,000,001224,000,000 3,000,001 to 4,000,000 1
7

HESERE Meeting Attendance

HEWRFNANBILFE  EFHFEE
ECYRNREECLEERULRBEKX
GHRBRBITZEGH BN ¢

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings and meetings of the Board
committees and general meetings during the year ended 31 December 2022, as
well as the number of such meetings held, is set out as follows:
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HEBITHNESE Meetings attended/held

E= REEEE® ENRZEE FMEES & N -

Nomination Audit Remuneration General
Directors Committee Committee Committee Meetings

BITES
Executive Directors
BBt 4/4 A T A 1/1 1N
Mr. LIAO Chuangiang N/A
FHBEE 4/4 TiE A TNE TiER 11
Mr. LI Haiming N/A N/A N/A
mRoR S A (PM9EE1) 3/3 A ANiE A NiE A A
Mr. NIE Qiang (Note 1) N/A N/A N/A
R EE S AR (B E2) 2/2 N3 N3 E A N iE A
Mr. ZHAQ Jianhua (Note 2) N/A N/A N/A N/A
I (PRE3) mn T EA TiEHA TEA TERA
Ms. MOU Zhaohui (Note 3) N/A N/A N/A N/A
L (Mi7H4) 3/3 A ANiE A ANiE A A
Ms. GUO Li (Note 4) N/A N/A N/A
R A (B EEs) 0/1 i N3 E A iE A
Mr. WU Jianxin (Note 5) N/A N/A N/A N/A
BUIEHITES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
El)ishivtes 4/4 7 4/4 /1 1/1
Mr. LIU Hongbai
BHEGLL 4/4 Al 4/4 " Al
Ms. MA Xiumin
PR S A 4/4 7 4/4 7 11
Mr. CHEN Bin
MHsT Notes:
1. A ERNFAITEEEZ T ARITE 1. Mr. NIE Qiang was appointed as an executive director on 17 June 2022.
g
2. HEBEAANFSANBEEZITAMITE 2. Mr. ZHAO Jinhua was appointed as an executive director on 22 August 2022.
=
3. AFEZTNNEIRIRESTARITE 3. Ms. MOU Zhaohui was appointed as an executive director on 16 September 2022.
Ho
SRR A+ 2022F9 B 16 H BT TE S © 4. Ms. GUO Li resigned as an executive director on 16 September 2022.
REFFAEN202F6 A1TEFFERITES ° 5. Mr. WU Jianxin resigned as an executive director on 17 June 2022.
o A =prayiia-d Corporate Governance Function
EEe OB EEASAISFAENEA2 The Board has delegated the functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG

(G FRBE TR TFEZEES - Code to the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
its Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The company
secretary may from time to time and as the circumstances require provide
updated written training materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, the Hong Kong financial
reporting standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present
a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual
and interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure and
announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant to code provision D.1.1 of the CG
Code, management would provide sufficient explanation and information to the
Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of Elite Partners CPA Limited,
the Company's external auditor, are set out on pages 183 to 188 of the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the fee paid/payable to Elite Partners CPA Limited
in respect of its audit services provided to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

Bt ENER

Service Category Fees Paid/Payable
AR¥T T

RMB’000

Audit Service 1,500
Non-audit Services 340

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was the auditors of the Company until 29
April 2022. Elite Partners CPA Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 29 April 2022.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems and for reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publications and the
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company's
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted risk management procedures and
guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key business processes
and office functions. The Board, together with the Audit Committee, collect the
information from the risk management system, include discussions of risk and
oversight of the management of those risks into the agenda of Board meetings.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and conduct audit of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The senior management reviews and evaluates the control process and monitors
any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the Board and the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances and identified
risks. The work carried out by the internal audit department will ensure the
internal controls are in place and functioning properly as intended. In addition,
the Company, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and finance
department and internal audit department, and their training programmes and
budget.

During the course of audit performed by the external auditors, they reported on
the weaknesses of the Group's risk management, internal control and accounting
procedures which came to their attention during the year.
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The Directors, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control, at least annually, for the year ended 31 December 2022. After such
review, the Board considered that the Company’s enhanced internal control
system was adequate and effective.

Handling of Inside Information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information in
compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), procedures including notification of regular blackout period and
securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and employees, identification
of project by code name and dissemination of information to stated purpose and
on a need-to-know basis have been implemented by the Group to guard against
possible mishandling and/or unauthorised use of inside information within the
Group.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established and maintained various channels of communication
with the Company’s shareholders and the public to ensure that they are kept
abreast of the Company's latest news and business development. Information
relating to the Company’s financial results, corporate details, property projects
and major events are disseminated through publications of interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars, press release and newsletters. The Board
believes that effective investor relations can contribute towards lower cost
of capital, higher market liquidity for the Company’s stock and a more stable
shareholder base. Therefore, the Company is committed to maintaining a high
level of corporate transparency and following a policy of disclosing relevant
information to Shareholders, investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner.
Keeping them aware of the Group’s corporate strategies and business operations
is one of the key missions of the Company’s investor relations team.

The general meetings are valuable forums for direct communications between
the Board and shareholders. The Directors and members of various Board
committees will attend the general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
can raise questions directly to the Board in respect of the performance and
future development of the Group. At other times, Shareholders and investors
can put enquires by writing to the Company for the attention of an Executive
Director, or the Company Secretary, whose contact channels are set out below.
The shareholder communication policy encourages all forms of communication
and welcomes feedback, questions, or concerns from shareholders and aims to
ensures that shareholders are provided with timely access to the Company's
information. The policy has been and will be reviewed and updated periodically
to remain relevant and effective.
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Shareholders may put forward their written enquiries to the Board. In this regard,
the Shareholders may send those enquiries or requests as mentioned to the
following:

Address: Room 507, Block A, Kaisa Center, No. 66, Nanyuan Road, Futian
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

Fax: (86) 0755-25887635

Telephone:  (86) 0755-22658123

Pursuant to the code provisions of the CG Code, in respect of each substantially
separate issue at a general meeting, a separate resolution should be proposed by
the chairman of that meeting. The chairman of the Board should attend the AGM
and invite for the chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committees any other committee (as appropriate) or in the
absence of the chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer questions at
the AGM. The chairman of the independent Board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’
approval. The Company would arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent
in the case of AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to
be sent at least 10 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings.
The chairman of a meeting should at the commencement of the meeting ensure
that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by way of a poll.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the
Company can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting.
The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings of the Company. However, Shareholders who wish to put
forward proposals may follow the Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary
general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements
and procedures are set out in the above paragraph.

The constitutional documents of the Company are available on the websites of
the Company (http://www.jzywy.com) and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. There
were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company since the
Listing Date.
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(D) DIVIDEND POLICY

Purpose

This Dividend Policy (the “Poliey”) sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of dividends
to the shareholders of the Company.

Principles and Guidelines

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from time to time in
general meeting declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the Shareholders
but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the Shareholders such
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the profits of the
Company and in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing) if at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different
classes, the Board may determine to pay such interim dividends in respect of
those shares in the capital of the Company which confer on the holders thereof
deferred or non-preferential rights as well as in respect of those shares which
confer on the holders thereof preferential rights with regard to dividend and
provided that the Board acts bona fide the Board shall not incur any responsibility
to the holders of shares conferring any preference for any damage that they may
suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares having
deferred or non-preferential rights and may also pay any fixed dividend which
is payable on any shares of the Company half-yearly or on any other dates,
whenever such profits, in the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment.
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EFeRHNBEREEERAARARETIR The Board has the discretion to declare dividends to the shareholders of the

f& 8 - BT AR R ERMEIMTER Company, subject to the Articles of the Company and all applicable laws and

RERNER - WERTYIEE : regulations, taking into account the factors set out below:

o  HITFELE e financial results;

o WMBREBIBEN: e cash flow situation;

o ESHNR BR e business conditions and strategies;

o RIREERNE e future operations and earnings;

o EAXRERKALFE e capital requirements and expenditure plans;

o REFE e interests of Shareholders;

o WKERE e taxation considerations;

o YIREBMMEREL  EEMEER e any contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions on payment of
gl & dividends; and

o EFFSUAERAEEHTMEM e any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
=

EHBER Review of the Policy

EFERHTRERRECE - The Board will review this Policy as appropriate from time to time.

(E) EEX &) (E) CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
BZE202F12A31BILFE - ARARAER For the year ended 31 December 2022, there is no material change to the

BERRAMARGIEEREY - memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the provision of property management services, which includes
management of properties, maintenance and repair of buildings and ancillary facilities,
community security management, car-park management, equipment installation, and
property consulting services.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group's turnover
and operating profit for the year by principal activities is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business objectives of the Group are to develop its business and achieve
sustainable growth of its business. A review of the businesses of the Group during the
year using the key performance indicators, a discussion on the Group's future business
development and description of key risk factors and uncertainties that the Group is
facing are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 189
in this annual report.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2022 (2021: nil).

None of the Shareholders has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 192 and note 33
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB678.5 million.

BORROWINGS
The Group had no borrowing during the year ended 31 December 2022. (For the year
ended 31 December 2021: nil)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares, were entered into
by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director or other officers of the Company acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition

None of the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) is interested in any business which is, whether directly or indirectly,
in competition with our business. To ensure that competition will not exist in the
future, each of the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and irrevocably
undertaken to us in the Deed of Non-Competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
on 12 November 2018 that it will not, and will procure its close associates (other than
members of the Group) not to directly or indirectly (including through nominees) be
involved in, interested in or undertake any business that directly or indirectly competes,
or may compete, with the Group's business, which includes providing property
management services, pre-delivery and consulting services, smart solution services
and community value-added services (collectively referred to as the “Restricted
Activities”), or hold shares or interest in any companies or business that compete or
may compete directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time
to time except where the Controlling Shareholders and their close associates hold less
than 5% of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which is engaged in any
business that is or may be in competition with any business engaged by any member
of the Group and they do not control 10% or more of the composition of the board of
directors of such company.

The Deed of Non-Competition will lapse automatically if the Controlling Shareholders
and their close associates cease to hold, whether directly or indirectly, 50% or above
of the shares of the Company with voting rights or the shares of the Company cease to
be listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided written confirmation to
the Company pursuant to which the Controlling Shareholders confirmed
that from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, (1) each
of them has fully complied with all terms and requirements of the Deed of
Non-Competition, (2) each of them not to directly or indirectly be involved in or
undertake any business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly competes, or
may compete, with the Restricted Activities, and (3) each of them does not hold more
than 5% of the shares or interest in any companies or business that compete directly
or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to time and controls
10% or more of the composition of the board of directors of such company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed all the necessary information
provided by the Controlling Shareholders for compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition and confirmed that as of the date of this annual report, the Controlling
Shareholders have fully complied with and did not breach all terms and requirements
of the Deed of Non-Competition.

DIRECTORS
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chairman)

Ms. MOU Zhaohui (Chief executive officer) (appointed on 16 September 2022)
Mr. LI Haiming

Ms. GUO Li (resigned on 16 September 2022)

Mr. NIE Qiang (appointed on 17 June 2022)

Mr. ZHAOQ Jianhua (appointed on 22 August 2022)

Mr. WU Jianxin (resigned on 17 June 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Hongbai

Ms. MA Xiumin

Mr. CHEN Bin

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the members
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive Director Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the independent non-executive directors of a listed issuer must represent
at least one-third of the board. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biography of all the Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 37 to 43.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service contract with the Company
for a term of three years, and which will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party thereto giving to the other party not less than three months’ prior notice
in writing. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into letter
of appointment with the Company and is appointed for a period of three years
commencing on the date of listing/appointment (as the case may be), which will
continue subject to re-election at the Company’s general meeting, and such letter of
appointment could be terminated by giving not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) by the
written resolutions of the shareholders of the company passed on 18 June 2019 (the
“Adoption Date”). A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is
set out as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to Eligible Participants as defined below with the view to achieving the
following objectives.

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Participants of the Share Option Scheme include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives, officers or directors (including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of the Group who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”).

Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and options under the other schemes of the
Company is 10% (“Scheme Limit") of the total number of shares in issue on
the Adoption Date, unless approval has been obtained from the shareholders of
the Company. Any increase in the Scheme Limit shall in no event result in the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and options
under other schemes of the Company exceeding 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Share Option Scheme would be 14,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of 140,000,000 shares in issue on the Adoption Date and approximately
9.09% of the total number of 154,110,000 shares in issue as at the date of this
Report. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no options were granted under
the Share Option Scheme.
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Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme to any Eligible Participant shall not, when aggregated with: (a) any
shares issued upon exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme or options under the other schemes which have been granted to that
Eligible Participant, (b) any shares which would be issued upon the exercise of
outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme or options under the
other schemes granted to that Eligible Participant, and (c) any cancelled shares
which were the subject of options granted under the Share Option Scheme or
options under the other schemes which had been granted to and accepted by
that Eligible Participant, in any 12-month period up to the Offer Date (as defined
below) exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under an
option

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant, provided that such period of time shall not exceed
a period of ten years commencing on the date on which the share option is
deemed to be granted and accepted.

Vesting of the Share Options on a particular vesting date is conditional upon
achievement of certain performance targets by the Grantee(s) unless otherwise
waived by any one of the Directors.

Payment on acceptance of option offer
HK$1.00 is payable by the Eligible Participant of the Share Option Scheme to the
Company upon acceptance of the option offered as consideration for the grant.
None of the considerations for the grant from Eligible Participants was received
by the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share under the Share Option Scheme is determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event must be at least the higher
of: (i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of on which such option is offered in
writing (the "Offer Date”); (ii) the average of the official closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share, provided that for the purpose of determining the exercise price where
the shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than five business
days preceding the Offer Date, the issue price of the shares in connection with
such listing shall be deemed to be the closing price of the shares for each
business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares on the
Stock Exchange.
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(8) EEMFEFTEIRIERFEH (8) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
FERS AT BB AR E 202976 A 188 -+ it The Share Option Scheme will remain valid until 18 June 2029 after which no
B EER B E A EARE - AT - EIRE further options shall be offered. However, the provisions of the Share Option
HENEXERBEM A ERER T+ 2R Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and effect to the extent
HRVER » WENERITE 2 RIRE T necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
o] B IS FE S AR TR BE AR A 51 & MO 3T BT BE otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of this Share
SKITEMEAMBET) - Mz EREE R R Option Scheme and the options granted prior thereto but not yet exercised
1T O B IS B A 45 75 D P] ¥ B B IS A shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
HETTE o LTI EH SR IEEE AT 2 Scheme. The summary below sets out the details of options granted as at 31
202212 A31 HE R LR REIRAERTIS ¢ December 2022 pursuant to the Share Option Scheme:
7k
RBEZE Hzunf EENRE  12BYA
RhE RU2E AR NANE LEERM Rawf
R RS 1A1A LEE LLEE i/ 1A%A
RiLBH REUTE 1 i Mgkt At RiTE RN/ %R i
Closing price of Cancelled/
the securities forfeited/
immediately Granted  Exercised [apsed
before the date Balance during the duringthe  during the Balance
on which the asof  yearended  yearended yearended as of
options were Exercise {January 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
Grantee Date of grant granted  Exercise Period Price 02 A2 02 a2 02
(Bhkir) (A7)
(HKD per share) (HKD)
EhEEES
Directors of Kaisa Prosperity
BER WSE7A19B ] 183 N0FTRISRENSEIA18R 1570 400000 - - - 400000
LIAO Chuangiang 19 July 2019 b) 19July 2020 t0 18 July 2029
53 WETANEENIETA18H 1570 400,000 - - - 400,000
19.July 2021 to 18 July 2029
153 0NEIANEENNETA18H 1570 400,000 - - - 400,000
19.July 2022 t0 18 July 2029
153 ABETANEEMIETA18H 1570 800,000 - - - 800,000
19July 2023 t0 18 July 2029
98 WYETA19E ) 183 N0FTRISREETA 18R 1570 120000 - - - 120000
LIAQ Chuangiang ~ 19July 2019 b) 19.July 2020 to 18 July 2029
5% WEIA9EENNET A18H 1570 120,000 - - - 120000
19.July 2021 to 18 July 2029
153 DNETANEZMIETA18H 1570 120000 - - - 120000
20 July 2022 t0 18 July 2029
5% ABETANEENIETA1E 1570 20,000 - - 200000 -

20y 20231018 July 209
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Grantee

558
MA Xiumin

8
LIV Hongbai

R
CHEN Bin

REEZE
RhE

R AAA
#5UHE
Closing price of
the securities

immediately
hefore the date
on which the
options were
granted
(BHET)
(HKD per share)

Date of grant

M9ETA19E 1536
19.Juy 2019

153

153

153
M9ETA198 153
19.Juy 2019

153

153

1536
M9ETA19E 1536
19.Juy 2019

153

153

1536

Exercise Period

ANETA9RZ9ETA18E
19.July 2020 to 18 July 2029
MIETBI9EEN9FTA18E
19.July 20211018 July 2029
WETRI9BENIET A 18E
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
ABETA9AZ9ET A1
19.July 2023 to 18 July 2029

00ETA19BZ09E7 7188
19.July 20200 18 July 2029
ANETA9AZ9ET A1
19 July 2021 to 18 July 2029
WETBI9EEN9FTR18E
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
A3ETR19BE09ET A1
19.July 20231018 July 2029

0ETA9AZ09ET A18E
19.July 2020 to 18 July 2029
MIETBI9EEN9FT R 18E
19.July 20211018 July 2029
2ETB19BEN9ET A 18E
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
ANBET A9RZ09ET A1
19.July 2023 to 18 July 2029

RanE
1818
fe

Balance
as of
Exercise 1 January
Price A2
(&7
(HKD)
1570 10,000
1570 10,000
1570 10,000
1570 20000
1570 10,000
15.70 10,000
1570 10,000
1570 20,000
1570 10,000
1570 10,000
15.70 10,000
1570 20000

B2unE
128318
LEE
AR

Granted
during the
year ended
31 December
A2

HZunE
12838
LEE
RATE

Exercised
during the
year ended
31 December
02
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Hzung
12R31A
LEER

i/
LVES:
Cancelled/
forfeited/
[apsed
during the
year ended
31 December
A2

RunE
1283A
fte

Balance

as of

31 December
02

10,000

10,000

10,000

20000

10,000

10,000

10,000

20000

10,000

10,000

10,000

20000



158

EEERE
Report of the Directors

EIEEIFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BEumE
RBERE BEang BZRE  12ANA
RhE KonE  uANE NANE LFEA RunE
Rt A 181R LLEE LEE i/ nANA
el G i3 A R RR/&R ifsiz3
Closing price of Cancelled/
the securities forfeited/
immediately Granted  Exercised [apsed
hefore the date Balance  duringthe  duringthe during the Balance
on which the asof  yearended  yearended yearended as of
options were Exercise 1January 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
Grantee Date of grant granted  Exercise Period Price 02 A2 02 A2 02
(BHET) (%)
(HKD per share) (HKD)
-0 I9ETA19A 1636 NNFIANRENNFIANA 1870 1460000 - - - 140000
Other Employees ~ 19.July 2019 19.July 2020 to 18 July 2029
5% WEIA9EENNET A18H 1570 1,460,000 - - - 1,460,000
19 July 2021 to 18 July 2029
1536 0ETANEZMIETA18H 1570 1,460,000 - - 60,000 1,400,000
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
B%  ABFIANAZNNEIARE 1570 2920000 - - 280,000 2,640,000
19.July 2023 10 18 July 2029
@t Total 10,050,000 - - 580,000 9,470,000

72022412 A31 8 - 5,970,00017 BE A% 4 AT F

1Tl

As at 31 December 2022, 5,970,000 options were exercisable.
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A18R)MEMKRE - MEREREARLAT
BRIGERE - REFBREE - BRED
R B ERE -+ AR (BN202957 A 188 )1T
o RIFETM—BESHE - TRIRFTE
SEHREBRREASARAENETE
WEIE® - FAMEE -

FEERHEARRE REKREEROBRREDBIR
2020476 816 A 12202096 B 15 B L AE1E AE 3K »

HZE202F 12318 ILFE - SEEREE
13# - BAEHA580,00010 B RE R Y, B
KA o

BT H202FIF16HBHT - EILEAT
24000017 BE AR FE B QUKL

B H B R ER+ —EARRA - FiRE
BREAINZAER2EERINBEREE
TTfEM BT AT BEH T HITH AR BEURE A

NEIDEITRAR%

AIBERIRALER - 77

AEE - BHE202F 12 ANBE ILFEMEER

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)
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The above Share Options shall be vested in four tranches in accordance with the following
dates: (i) up to 20% of the Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after the
expiration of 12 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2020; (i) up to 40% of the
Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after the expiration of 24 months from
the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2021; {iii) up to 60% of the Share Options granted to each
grantee at any time after the expiration of 36 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July
2022; and (iv) all the remaining Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after
the expiration of 48 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2023. The Shares Options
are exercisable within a period of ten years from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2029,
subject to the vesting schedule. Vesting of the Share Options on a particular vesting date
is conditional upon achievement of certain performance targets by the Grantee(s) unless
otherwise waived by any one of the Directors.

The grant become effective upon approvals by the Shareholders of the Company and
Kaisa Holding on 16 June 2020 and 15 June 2020 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no options were exercised and a total of

580,000 options were forfeited/lapsed.

Ms. GUO Li resigned on 16 September 2022, therefore her remaining 240,000 options
were forfeited.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of

the options

granted under the Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Participant in any

12-month period exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from the
date of grant shall be subject to the shareholders” approval. No such grant was made
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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ESERFETRABNES £

EERTETHRAEBNESES
R22F12A3NH  ARREEREBITHA
BERARAIRERE ZE(TEREHFRPE
&G ([R5 REBEMRAE ) SEXVED) MARH ~ 1/
B GD REHF A @) BEREFES REE A
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s kX e (BEREES RBEKNIA
B EESRA AREEHEA RS %
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i. RERGRG(REGDEFE

Name of Director

Nature of interest
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities

As of 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFOQ")) which (a) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFQ); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange were as follows:

i.  Long position in shares of the Company (“shares”)

EERE
BRESE
FRZER

RGEBEY

Number of

ERTRG
BRBE DR

underlying
shares in which
the Directors hold
under the Share
Option Scheme!'"

Approximate
percentage of
issued share®?

B {E58 BEx 2,000,000 1.30%
LIAQ Chuangiang Beneficial
BEH B 50,000 0.03%
MA Xiumin Beneficial
23t B 50,000 0.03%
LIU Hongbai Beneficial
9 B 50,000 0.03%
CHEN Bin Beneficial
BT Notes:

() EFREBEREABRE ZAMBROBEF
(EEGSE-Eo: 2 -

20 BEOHDREZE202F12A3NH LD T
154,110,000A% f& (A st E M it - REEFT A BEAR
AT EITE TR 2 IR AT -

(1) The number of underlying shares in which the Directors hold under the Share Option
Scheme are detailed in “The Share Option Scheme” section.

(2)  The percentages were calculated based on 154,110,000 shares in issue as at 31
December 2022, assuming all the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
have been exercised.
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ii.  RIEBEE R

EsnR

Name of Director

ABEEER

Name of associated corporation
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ii.  Interest in associated corporation

FrEE s
WG EE
Number of
shares
interested

HRER
BHAEDHE
Approximate
percentage
of interest

BE® EIREREERBER AT 4,129,708 0.06%
LIAQ Chuangiang Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.
el EREEEZERERAD 7,226,990 0.10%
LI Haiming Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.

B FSCHEEREEAN - A20224E12 A31H - &35 Save for those disclosed above, as of 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or

F ETRA BB EA AL A SRR £ E
(e B E% RS EOISXVE) B - 188
) T (5 e A L 1 T 5 e 28352
ARABGAENERBAOERLAR - 3
1R A T B BB AV B R BB AT
BRSSO -

BERASESFNZHE

BRENER S BTSRRI 3 RO BB AR AR T EIS)
ARE - HERARSEEAMERRRFER
BB EMTH REEFARELBARAF
kAT L A B R AR () BB o7 T s

EEZXS RERERENER

BRAERE SRR M sE37IREE B S - EE R E
FELEHJE%EB’\ZISQT HAERR A RIS ER B

NAEI M AR FRNEE202F12A318 1EF
ERERRBDARAER RS - THXEXE
W BEEEEREERENER

chief executive had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Schemes as set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangements or contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or their subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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EENGRRERER

BERE REZER20N2EN2ANBILEFE &
ERFESEHBA(EER MR BEE
B R BN N B S5 AR ok Pl BE I A B 1 3
BRF 2 EBMARE EMRAIEI0EEE

ERIRREXRSOEZS

RS IR ER N AT B AR EAEEREE
02FN2ANBILEFEBMBEIILEREL o 45
B YRR SECFT IR BRI ©

FERRER

R2022F 128318 - EEFA - THAL(BR
AAREERFEEITHRABIN BB AR
RIEB S NS G0 533615 EFE B LM
HAR BN SABRE IR (D s sk B

EBRRER

Name of substantial shareholder

R EEERAR AR (MEREER])

Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (“Kaisa Holdings")
Paramount Access Investments Limited
(“Paramount Access”)

HERBEBRAR(EE)

Ye Chang Investment Company Limited
("Ye Chang”)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
The Directors are of the view that during the year ended 31 December 2022, none
of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly with the Company's business which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance between the Controlling Shareholder and any of its
subsidiaries and the Group was made during the year ended 31 December 2022 save as
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors were aware, persons other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or a short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFQ are set out as follows:

HAEQTE BT
BRABA T 2L
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital of
Capacity shares the Company
(F=E1) (%)
(Note 1) (%)
R LB s 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(M3E2)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2)
LB RS 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(PFf5E2)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2)
EmEAA 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(M3E2)
Beneficial owner (Note 2)




¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2022

G
1 TURERERGEEA -

2. £ 5 i Paramount Access B z 2 & ¥ /5 1 Paramount
AccessEEIREZERZEESR - RIFEFHF RHEK
Bl 4K ZE 422 A% K Paramount Access & 5 AR AR EE
A RERNMEREE RN ER

3. IRER2022412 A31 B B 317 2 154,110,000 A% A% 1
HEzESL -

B EXXHEESN - R02F1281NE > fES
Fran - e A LA BLENRIEES &
HEEHE3B6IER T FEN S LM AREE
AR EBAA DT R BB THARA R KD
SRR DR IR R ©

AFIEHE
AEBBERAAVBRFENEERNEENAGE
BEFH N AR EFEI2E33E °

EFREFRMER

FR - ARBERERTREEREDORBEE
B MRS D R30% - [AEFREFFIEH A
EIEEE R LR D R50% @ EKRAZS (Bl
EREEE)EARREREL19% - ZFREFH
BN A M SRR MIEES ©

B bR A& B RS ER R B RE6 1 BTl SN - A 22022
FRANBLEFEREMER  £5 - FERN
BEHBAXNANRRRE(LESAANHES A
NEIEBITRASNIA &) BEEREER K
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Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.
2. Ye Chang is beneficially wholly-owned by Paramount Access, which is in turn wholly-owned by

Kaisa Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, each of Kaisa Holdings and Paramount Access is deemed to
be interested in the same number of Shares which Ye Chang is interested in.

3. The percentages were calculated based on 154,110,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.

Save for those disclosed above, as of 31 December 2022, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, no other persons had any interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 312 to 313 of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and services from
its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 50% of its goods and services to its 5 largest
customers with its largest customer (namely Kaisa Group) contributed approximately
19% of the Group's revenue. Details of the largest customer are set out in note 6.1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Except for the above mentioned note 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Director, their close
associate or a shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. In
relation to the related party transactions which also constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions, the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had conducted certain continuing
connected transaction with connected persons of the Group as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements and below:

1. The Deed of HK Trademark Licensing

On 20 November 2018, a deed of trademark licensing was entered into between
the Company and Kaisa Holdings (the “Deed of HK Trademark Licensing”),
pursuant to which Kaisa Holdings agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally
grant to the Company and other members of the Group the right to (i) use or
(i) sub-license to a third party due to necessary needs arising from its usual
and ordinary course of business and other activities (the “Licensed Scope”)
certain trademarks (the “Kaisa HK Trademarks”) registered in Hong Kong
for a perpetual term commencing from the date of the Deed of HK Trademark
Licensing on a royalty-free basis.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing will constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon
Listing.

As the right to use the Kaisa HK Trademark is granted to the Group on a royalty-
free basis, the transactions under the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing will
be within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules upon Listing, and will be exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing have been set out in the
section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS™ in the Company’s prospectus dated 26
November 2018 (the “Prospectus”).
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The PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement

On 20 November 2018, a trademark licensing agreement was entered into
between the Company and Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ({EJKZEEE (R
JII) B IR A &) (formerly known as Kaisa Real Estate (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (=YK 232 CFEII) AFR A 7)), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Kaisa Holdings, (the “PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement”), pursuant to
which Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally
grant to the Company and other members of the Group the right to (i) use or (ii)
sub-license to a third party due to necessary needs arising from the Licensed
Scope certain trademarks (the “Kaisa PRC Trademarks”) registered in the PRC
for a perpetual term commencing from the date of the PRC Trademark Licensing
Agreement on a royalty-free basis.

Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of Kaisa Holdings, which is
one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the PRC
Trademark Licensing Agreement will constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon Listing.

As the right to use the Kaisa PRC Trademark is granted to the Group on a royalty-
free basis, the transactions under the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement will
be within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules upon Listing, and will be exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement have been set out in the
section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Prospectus.

Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement

On 20 November 2018, the Company entered into a sales assistance services
framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2018 Sales Assistance
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to
provide sales assistance services, including but not limited to, referring potential
buyers to Kaisa Group and/or its associates for the sales of the unsold properties
in residential communities managed by us (the “Sales Assistance Services”),
for a term commencing from the Listing Date until 31 December 2020.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.
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The term of the 2018 Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement expired
on 31 December 2020. On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into a sales
assistance services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2020 Sales
Assistance Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide to Kaisa Group and/or its associates the Sales Assistance
Services, for a term commencing from 1 January 2021 until 31 December 2023.

The Sales Assistance Services under the 2020 Sales Assistance Services
Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2023
will not exceed RMB7,200,000, RMB8,640,000 and RMB10,400,000, respectively.
As one or more applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) in
respect of the 2020 Sales Assistance Services are over 0.1% but all percentage
ratios are below 5%, the transactions are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements, but exempt from independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total amount of commission
fee payable by Kaisa Group for the Sales Assistance Services amounted to
RMB39,906, which is within the annual cap of RMB8,640,000.

Details of the 2018 Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement and the
2020 Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement have been set out in the
section “"CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Prospectus and the announcement
dated 4 November 2020, respectively.

Property Management Services Framework Agreement

On 20 November 2018, the Company entered into a property management
services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2018 Property
Management Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Group agreed to provide to Kaisa Group and/or its associates property
management services, including but not limited to (i) pre-delivery services
including (a) construction sites management services; and (b) display units and
property sales venues management services; and (ii) property management
services for properties owned, used or operated by the Kaisa Group and/
or its associates (the "Property Management Services”), for a term
commencing from the Listing Date until December 31, 2020. On 29 November
2019, the Company entered into the supplemental agreement (“2019 Property
Management Services Supplemental Agreement”) with Kaisa Group to
revise the annual caps of the continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 under the Property Management Services Framework
Agreement. The revised annual caps for the two years ended 31 December 2020
were RMB500,000,000 and RMB550,000,000, respectively, which was duly
passed during the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 December 2019.
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On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into the supplemental agreement
("2020 Property Management Services Supplemental Agreement”) with
Kaisa Group to the 2018 Property Management Services Framework Agreement
to revise the annual cap of the continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 under the 2018 Property Management Services
Framework Agreement and 2019 Property Management Services Supplemental
Agreement. The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB660,000,000, which was duly passed during the extraordinary general
meeting held on 15 December 2020.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Property Management Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.

The term of the 2018 Property Management Services Framework Agreement
expired on 31 December 2020. On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into
a property management services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the
“2020 Property Management Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Group agreed to provide to Kaisa Group and/or its associates
Property Management Services, for a term commencing from January 1, 2021
until 31 December 2023.

The Property Management Services under the 2020 Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2023 will not exceed RMB1,200,000,000, RMB1,450,000,000 and
RMB1,750,000,000, respectively, which was duly passed during the extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total amount of fees payable by Kaisa
Group for the Property Management Services amounted to RMB280,299,504,
which is with the annual cap of RMB1,450,000,000.

Details of the 2018 Property Management Services Framework Agreement have
been set out in the section “"CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Prospectus.
Details of the 2020 Property Management Services Framework Agreement have
been set out in the announcement and circular dated 4 November 2020 and 24
November 2020, respectively.
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Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement

On 20 November 2018, the Company entered into an equipment installation
services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2018 Equipment
Installation Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide equipment installation services (the “Equipment Installation
Services”) to the Kaisa Group and/or its associates equipment installation
services, mainly including installation of (i) access control system; (i) intercom
system; (iii) surveillance system; (iv) car parking management system; and (v)
other intelligent engineering for residential properties before the delivery of such
properties to property owners, for a term commencing from the Listing Date until
31 December 2020.

On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into the supplemental agreement
("2020 Equipment Installation Services Supplemental Agreement”) with
Kaisa Group to the 2018 Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement
to revise the annual cap of the continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 under the 2018 Equipment Installation Services
Framework Agreement. The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB110,000,000, which was duly passed during the extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 December 2020.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.

The term of the 2018 Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement
expired on 31 December 2020. On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into
a property management services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the
“2020 Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Group agreed to provide to Kaisa Group and/or its associates the
Equipment Installation Services, for a term commencing from 1 January 2021
until 31 December 2023.

The Equipment Installation Services under the 2020 Equipment Installation
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2023 will not exceed RMB140,000,000, RMB180,000,000 and RMB230,000,000,
respectively, which was duly passed during the extraordinary general meeting
held on 15 December 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total amount of fees payable by Kaisa
Group for the Equipment Installation Services amounted to R\MB47,378,496,
which is within the annual cap of RMB180,000,000.

Details of the 2018 Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement have
been set out in the section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Prospectus.
Details of the 2020 Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement have
been set out in the announcement and circular dated 4 November 2020 and 24
November 2020, respectively.

Property Lease Framework Agreement

On 20 November 2018, the Company entered into a property lease
framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2018 Property Lease
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group will lease
from the Kaisa Group and/or its associates (i) certain properties for
office use; and (ii) car parking lots for sub-leasing. The Property Lease
Framework Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date until
31 December 2020, unless it is terminated earlier by either party pursuant to
the Property Lease Framework Agreement. Relevant subsidiaries or associated
companies of both parties will enter into separate lease agreements setting out
the specific terms and conditions based on the principles provided in the Property
Lease Framework Agreement.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the 2020 Property Lease Framework Agreement will constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
upon Listing.

Under the 2018 Property Lease Framework Agreement, the Group has leased
several properties from the Kaisa Group for office use in Shenzhen and
Dongguan, Guangdong Province.

In addition, certain car parking lots leased by the Group from Kaisa Group were
sub-leased by the Group to residents of the residential communities the Group
managed at a premium over the rent paid by the Group to the Kaisa Group.
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The terms of the 2018 Property Lease Framework Agreement expired on 31
December 2020. On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into a property
lease framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2020 Property Lease
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group will lease from the
Kaisa Group and/or its associates (i) certain properties for office use; and (ii)
certain car parking lots for sub-leasing. The 2020 Property Lease Framework
Agreement has a term commencing from 1 January 2021 until 31 December
2023, unless it is terminated earlier by either party pursuant to the 2020 Property
Lease Framework Agreement. Relevant subsidiaries or associated companies of
bath parties will enter into separate lease agreements setting out the specific
terms and conditions based on the principles provided in the 2020 Property Lease
Framework Agreement.

The maximum annual fee payable by us under the 2020 Property Lease
Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2023 as follow:

Leased properties for office use B AERENHEEYE 5,000,000 5,500,000 6,000,000
Car parking lots EHig 55,000,000 55,000,000 55,000,000
Total w@at 60,000,000 60,500,000 61,000,000

MR A FE2020F M EEEERBHEN—IA
FZEEA AN LR (B RGN BB
0.1% @ 1EPTA B DL RIERE% » MR HA
BT ETRAFUABTIE TR RS - FE
BRI RAEHRTE  BEERRETHEILRR
BB
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JL + BFE _ERAKRMES,500,0007TA R ©
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As one or more applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) in
respect of the 2020 Property Lease Framework Agreement are over 0.1% but all
percentage ratios are below 5%, the transactions are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements, but exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The total amount of rental payable by the Group to the Kaisa Group for properties
the Group leased for office use amounted to approximately RMB4,532,640 for the
year ended 31 December 2022, which is within the annual cap of RMB5,500,000.

The total amount of rent payable by the Group to the Kaisa Group for the car
parking lots we leased amounted to approximately RMB3,999,378 for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which is within the annual cap of RMB55,000,000.
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Details of the 2018 Property Lease Framework Agreement and the 2020 Property
Lease Framework Agreement have been set out in the section “"CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS™ in the Prospectus and the announcement dated 4 November
2020, respectively.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company have discussed with the senior management of the
Company on the agreements of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions and reviewed these continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions abovementioned have
been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing each of the Continuing
Connected Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Elite Partners Limited, the

auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing

connected transactions abovementioned:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;

(i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the annual caps.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy (which includes the payment of the emoluments to the
employees) of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration Committee
on the basis of the employees’ performance, qualifications and experiences. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market statistics.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As a property service provider in China, the Group is required to comply with various
national and local laws and regulations on environmental protection, including laws
and regulations of air pollution, sound pollution, waste and sewage. The Group has
complied with the laws and regulations which are significant to the operation of the
Group. Further, any changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to
the attention of relevant employees and event operation units from time to time.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
STAKEHOLDERS

Workplace Quality

The Group believes that the directors, senior management and employees of the Group
are instrumental to the success of the Group and that their industry knowledge and
understanding of the market will enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in
the market.

The Group provides on-the-job training and development opportunities to enhance
its employees’ career progression. Through different trainings, staff's professional
knowledge in corporate operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced.
The Group also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, such as annual dinner,
to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides on providing a safe, effective and congenial working environment.
Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are implemented to ensure the
working environment is healthy and safe. The Group provided health and safety
communications for employees to present the relevant information and raise
awareness of occupational health and safety issues. The Group values the health
and well-being of its staff. In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance benefits.

Relationships with the Group’s other stakeholders

The Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the services to its
customers in order to stay competitive. Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors
are not aware of any material and significant dispute between the Group and its
customers during the year ended 31 December 2022.



¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FZERARBRE
REARBAARESZER  REEMA
LHERNARE AR LARERERR - BMER
NAEBEITRN&RD25% °

3 (]

R202264 F298 - BE(EB) S5t EHMAE
BAE([BE])BHE B FNEEEAD RZEAD
([ BIZEE]) - MATEESTMEERE
AR (BTSN ER T AIB M AZEE LR
FREFT(BRMEDB2BREE - THES
REBREBFRGERAIE - B EXFTIFEER
Gh o BN IRZEMRNBEZFRBIE - EFE
BR - ARARHBRzZBITEER S - HIF
FRBEMARBEEHIAEER TR ERBERE
BRI

BEEE  BREARANR202F48298 7
BHBERZEEAE - AL EEEE %A A0
HZE202F12A3 B IEFERNGE T BRE -
RABHREERERAFT RS FIRE —TERH
R EEMITEEAB Y REME ZRER
RBFAEERAIL  WREE=ESBETHN

BER%R LhEFEEARR

AR B AR R BB AN A B A 1 AT
BEAPBERE IR -
BREATEHEER
ARBRRMHBE  $BE  BEREEAD
IR AT IE (AR R B F BB R
M EHAERER -

ARRL AHBARFBRRAEZEHEAR
AR S MEE AR BRI -

RREES

E
B

F& 0 20233 H24H

EIREEFEBARRAT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 173

ESEHE

Report of the Directors

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directars, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of at
least 25% of the Company’s issued shares as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

On 29 April 2022, Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”) resigned
and ceased to act as the auditor of the Company (the “Independent Auditor”) and
Elite Partners Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as the Independent Auditor
to fill the casual vacancy after the resignation of Grant Thornton (the “Resignation”)
and to hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM. Save as disclosed above,
the Independent Auditor remained unchanged over the past three years. The Board
confirmed that there is no disagreement between the Company and Grant Thornton
and it is not aware of any matters or circumstances in respect of the Resignation that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement of change of auditor
published on 29 April 2022. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by Elite Partners. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Elite Partners as the
Independent Auditor until the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the Board
to fix their remuneration.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to
the shares of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the shareholders
of the Company by reason of their respective holding of the Company’s securities.

On behalf of the Board

LIAO Chuangiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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To the Members of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
190 to 314, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Refer to note 4.1(ii), note 5.4 and note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies note 2.11.

FEWE SRRz i E s

Recoverability of trade receivables
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We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements, combined with the significant degree of
estimations by the management of the Group, in evaluating the expected
credit loss (“ECL") of trade receivables which may affect the carrying
value of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.

WG E MR T 4T -  EREERBEREAE
RYEESEFNEHREEBE MEBEDNRERER
ERRUEBEBRERNEREAANNERRBELINANBEE
ARMEL > WEBRELBIYKE - BFREL M KLA
BEUER - BNGEMBRRMTNRE  HREEEE
B BH AR ¥E271,977,0007T1% - PA2022F12 3318 - YR
SEREEL A ARY828,845,0007T - A 20229128318
IFFEREERBEREN AR®118,990,000T 2 R85
7 o As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management used provision matrix to calculate the ECL of trade
receivables and the provision rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various debtors by their ageing, which are considered
of similar loss patterns, and taken into consideration the historical
recovery rates, probability of default by its customers and the forward-
looking information. As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately RMB828,845,000 as at 31 December 2022, after netting-
off the allowance of credit losses of approximately RMB271,977,000.
Allowance for credit losses of approximately RMB118,990,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was recognised in profit or loss.

JERTEREERIERE - T/ E TR E el T {E FEUCRK
WIEHREEEE

Obtaining an understanding on how the management assess the
ECL of trade receivables by applying the ECL model;

REBEEZRAPEREF IR - WA= - 8l
AEREANGITREEENER - BRERERIT
Testing the integrity of information used by the management to
develop the provision matrix, including the ageing analysis, on a
sample basis, to the source documents, including invoices and
demand notes;

EADBERNHH T - BRSEELERE - TFELD
ARt RATEMENFARRTIEREESREE &
Evaluating the appropriateness of the expected average loss rates
applied by reference to the historical recovery rates, probability of
default by its customers and forward-looking information, with the
assistance of our internal specialists; and

FHE BB A MBEHRRERE HRFURENHRKE -
Evaluating the disclosure regarding the impairment assessment of
trade receivables to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGE WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charge with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
contral.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.



178

R G
Independent Auditor’s Report

BB MBS M R RARE
MEEw

s HEERARHELEGHEMNEE LS
HAER  WIRBFIERNEZERE - T
EAFEEFAIIBNARNENTEE
M wmATREEEY BRENFELE
BENEEBARE - MERMARBRSFEEKR
THEEN - RIB M EEZHBENREPIZHE
ERETBEZAMIEIMERT ERIRE -

SEBBENEESR  RIERTRMNE
R BMEwRDERE SRR E B
IEFRERIS BV EAZRRE © AT - RREIAK
BRAAEEHR BESRETEFSELER
75 o

o HARAMBHMERNBEIBAN  HE
RAR (BRERERER)ARGEMEERER
EERARRBEAR S RER -

o 3 ERENEBIEFKLINHBKEN
ERFZREENEZRE  UEHEAHM

BRERBERER - RMAE BEXEEX
MTA -~ BB RAT - HPIRERERA

EREE -

M EEZE B @8 BEZN S HE NEE
ARBRERERSE  HPeRRMEERTS
Bl H A BB A EA TR Z B ©

EIKEXHFEBBPR/AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent audit's report is Yip
Kai Yin with Practising Certificate number P07854.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10th Floor

8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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4R HnZHEUER
Consolldated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

HZE202F12ANBILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

20224F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ET T ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
= Revenue 6 1,783,883 2,666,440
BEKLERY Direct operating expenses (1,312,776) (1,877,541)
EF Gross profit 471,107 788,899
SEHE N THIEHER Selling and marketing expenses (10,395) (13,243)
TS Administrative expenses (229,366) (245,359)
CREENBHEE Provision for loss allowance on financial assets and
JES 1B (s contract assets (125,372) (142,441)
s 58 Other gains, net 7 24,391 4,890
4P Operating profit 130,365 392,746
RN ELIBRARDY Change in fair value on financial assets at fair value
TRMEEATFEE through profit or loss 20 (1,215) (53,549)
HERNTFELIBZEAE  Loss on disposal of financial assets
WEmEERIE at fair value through profit or loss = (159,301)
HLIFWRIER SR E1E Loss on termination of an acquisition transaction 10 = (63,920)
JE(LEE S N R A Share of results of assaciates 16 10,530 18,846
RE () WA F 58 Finance (cost)/income, net 9 (770) 228
BRET S AER Profit before income tax 10 138,910 135,050
Frigfif sz Income tax expenses 1 (32,315) (66,929)
FRHEMNRZHE RS Profit and total comprehensive income
#azE for the year 106,595 68,121
BTN ALEIEERZERKR  Profit and total comprehensive income
2HINEHEEE - attributable to:
KAREEA Owners of the Company 93,385 56,806
IEIERAE 2 Non-controlling interests 13,210 11,315
106,595 68,121
RATEEAELER Earnings per share attributable to
EN(BERUAARSE T owners of the Company (expressed
FIR) in RMB per share)
HAK Basic 13(a) 0.61 0.37
s Diluted 13(h) 0.61 0.36

Egﬁﬁj ©

BEFEIAENME /U FLRAMBTHRRE

statements.

The notes on pages 196 to 314 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2022412 A31H
As at 31 December 2022

181

202245 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB000
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREBEE Non-current assets
ME - BENEE Property, plant and equipment 15 23,559 25,131
M| EE Intangible assets 17 31,456 36,942
EES Goodwill 17 160,828 160,828
(FREEE Right-of-use assets 19 200,566 217,306
SRVEE Financial assets 20 342,731 343,946
REE N B ZR/E Investment in associates 16 53,233 37,803
H A pEUGRIA Other receivables 21 6,440 14,839
EIEFI BB E Deferred tax assets 29 89,576 57,929
908,389 894,724
RBEE Current assets
FEWE SRR Trade receivables 21 828,845 738,521
HAth e GRIE Other receivables 21 66,828 61,510
REFEPHZ Payments on behalf of residents 22 79,192 52,992
EBHEE Contract assets 23 113,636 112,934
FEURREE A T 5R0E Amounts due from related parties 24 3,963 1,088
ZRRHIIRE Restricted cash 25 491 517
RekReEEIAR Cash and cash equivalents 25 247,320 357,995
1,340,275 1,325,557
REBEE Current liahilities
FERTE SRR Trade payables 26 190,992 247,820
HAb FERT IR Other payables 26 324,373 358,041
BHEE Contract liabilities 23 206,126 166,972
JEREE AL RUA Amounts due to related parties 27 9,629 6,939
HEAaE Lease liabilities 28 5,362 6,089
FERTPTERE Income tax payable 74,957 90,102
811,439 875,963
REEEFRE Net current assets 528,836 449,594
EEABERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 1,437,225 1,344,318
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

202245 202148
2022 2021
BsE AR¥T T AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HAb R IR Other payables 26 18,548 31,722
HEBE Lease liabilities 28 10,051 12,430
EERIBARE Deferred tax liabilities 29 11,864 13,236
40,463 57,388
EEZREE Net assets 1,396,762 1,286,930

R EQUITY

[N Share capital 30 1,361 1,361
EA] Reserves 1,332,790 1,233,616
ROTER ARG ER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,334,151 1,234,977
eI R Non-controlling interests 62,611 51,953
RERBEH Total equity 1,396,762 1,286,930

CHEZ2R2023F3 8248 #hE L IEHETIEE o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023.

BER 2R
Liao Chuangiang Mou Zhaohui
3 3
Director Director

F1BEFIVENM T AN ELAERERA  The notes on pages 196 to 314 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
BEEEf oy o statements.
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mEREmEER _ |
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE202F12ANBILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

RARREAEGESR
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Bx  RORE HAbFE BERERE (AXEE  iELE @ FERER  BRAE
Share Non-
Share Share Other option Contribution  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamnings Total interests equity
- ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR BTr ARETT ARETE
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
RONF1A1R As at1 January 2021 1360 610631 76071 39804 8,158 163,007 38 125049 3709 1283168
EREHREE Profit and total comprehensive ingome
lents for the year - - - - - - 56,806 56,806 11315 08,121
Rk Issue of new shares 1 2062 - (626) - - - 1437 - 1437
WEHBAR Acquistions of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 9400 9400
B Recognition of equity-settled share-
BUSULEY based payment transactions
(PzE1) (note 31) - - - 13414 kY - - 13757 - 13751
BREZITLRE Transfer to statutory eserve - - - - - BG40 - - -
SR T Capitalinjection by non-controlling
Interests - - - - - - - - 1200 1200
BERRE Dividend declared - (68.482) - - - - - (68.482) [1671) (90,153)
RONEQANAR  Asat31 December 2021 and
A2F1318 1 January 2022 1,361 524,211 1601 52,612 8501 182,502 1M 1.249M 5195 1286930
EREHREE Proftand total comprehensive income
Lidatts forthe year - - - - - - BB BAB B 0655
ETARESE Recagiton of equity-setted share-
BUSGLHES) based payment transactions
(Mztsn) fnote 31 - - - 57189 - - - 5789 - 5789
BRESITLR Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - = 18090  (180%0) - - =
RS Capitalinection by non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - 15 U5
EXFAFHMEAT  Diidend paid o on-contoling
FRRERNRS  inerestof subsidores - - - - - - - - )
RURERANE As at 31 December 2022 1,361 524211 1601 58,401 8501 200,592 465014 1,334,151 62611 1,396,762

F192 FE3UENNT AN EEA0EEHEE  The notes on pages 196 to 314 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
R o statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE202512ANBILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

RETHMERETRE

Cash flows from operating activities

20224
p1177)

AR®T T
RMB'000

20214F

2021
ARETIT
RMB’000

M ETIS R AT A Profit before income tax 138,910 135,050
KL TFIER A Adjustments for:
(BYR), 585 Amounts (recovered)/written off

GIE{E ok as uncollectible 7 (2,652) 423
Y& N g Depreciation and amortisation 10 32,2817 18,936
BAFELEZARN Change in fair value on financial assets

TREENFEES at fair value through profit or loss 1,215 53,549
HERAFELER Loss on disposal of financial assets

ANERSREEEIS at fair value through profit or loss - 159,301
BRI IE R R EE Loss on termination of an acquisition transaction 10 - 63,920
FERE Interest expense 9 770 813
FMEWA Interest income = (1,041)
HEYE - BE & Net losses on disposal of property,

ERERE plant and equipment 7 1,035 123
KIETHERNEE Loss on termination of leases 25 _
ETIE B Provision for loss allowance 10 125,372 142,441
JE(LBE S N R EE Share of result of associates (10,530) (18,846)
ARG RE 45 B S A Y Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

sz 31 5,789 13,757
EEESEHRINLE Operating profit before working capital changes

A 292,221 568,426
FEUNE SRR L HAbFEUR  Increase in trade and other receivables

IR N (200,707) (820,096)
REBEFMFIEM Increase in payments on behalf of residents (31,367) (15,658)
SHRIEEE Increase in contract assets (4,791) (29,585)
FERHE ZBRFX R H (S (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables

RIBORAD), /180 (85,075) 51,229
BHIAGIEMN Increase in contract liabilities 39,154 61,389
PR HIIR B Decrease in restricted cash 26 998
KBRS (FTA)IRE $%  Cash generated from (used in) operations 9,461 (183,297)
SIS % Income tax paid (80,479) (99,521)
AR T BT % Net cash used in operating activities (71,018) (282,818)
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mERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

20225 20214
2022 2021

ARETT

AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000

REZHRERESRE

Cash flows from investing activities

W EEHTB AR - Acquisition of subsidiaries,

HREERE net of cash acquired 32 - (37,082)
UZBBIR N TEIB2EABE  Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through

N REE profit or loss - (365,622)
WL A ELKEMRE  Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through

W ABREV & R E &= other comprehensive income - (15,000)
BTRIEATEN Advance to related parties (2,875) (268)
HERATERIBE AR Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

&R E ENPTSRIE at fair value through profit or loss - 422,852
SATUREEMT B A FIHIE  Payment for consideration payable related

RE to acquisition of subsidiaries (18,595) (30,715)
BEE=7FEX Repayment of loan from a third party 21 - 15,941
EUHAE Interest received - 1.041
HEDZE  BENK Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

e equipment 540 1434
HEWE BEMEK Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 (6,879) (7,911)
WHEE AR E Purchase of right-of-use assets 19 - (200,000)
FEREIEHIREER S50 Payment for acquisition transaction which was

terminated during the year 10 - (73,920
BB EAREE Capital injection for investment
in an associate (4,900) -

KETH AT HIE - F5E Net cash used in investing activities (32,709) (289,250)
METBERERE Cash flows from financing activities
BTN Issue of shares = 1,437
KERIEATER Advance from related parties 2,690 5,275
IR R E Capital injection by non-controlling interests 245 1,200
BERRRE Dividend paid (2,797) (90,153)
[SENPAESN Interest paid (770) (813)
BEHEARE Repayment of lease liabilities 34 (6,316) (5,690)
A EBPT AR S FE Net cash used in financing activities (6,948) (88,744)
RERAEEEER Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

WA R (110,675) (660,812)
FUNEe MRS EE Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

BH of the year 357,995 1,018,807
FRORE MRS E Cash and cash equivalents at

IHH the end of the year 25 247,320 357,995

F1BEFNAENME AU ELRE T EHRERD

gD -

statements.

The notes on pages 196 to 314 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE202F12ANBILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 13 October 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is Room 507, Block A, Kaisa Center,
66 Nanyuan Road, Futian, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
The Company’s share were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 December 2018.

The Company's immediate holding company is Ye Chang Investment Company
Limited ("Ye Chang Investment”), an investment company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands ("BVI"), whereas the directors of the Company regard Kaisa
Group Holdings Ltd. (“Kaisa Holdings") as the Company’s ultimate holding
company, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) engage in the
provision of property management services, which includes management
of properties, maintenance and repair of buildings and ancillary facilities,
community security management, car-park management, equipment installation,
and property consulting services.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

2. EXERBEHE

2.1 REEE

RAMBBRRIIRBEEBWHREE
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Brsie et - SRR M bR SR A R
Tk M = B E K H J7 A 53

-

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group's consolidated financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are used
in preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power over the entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by
the Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary in the
consolidated financial statements from the date it gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-group
asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also
tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts reported
in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
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Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from the equity attributable to
the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position (note 33), subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held
for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost
also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are
recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses which are not under common
control are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition — date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value on the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounting
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as a financial
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value with
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations (Continued)

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence,
which is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity
method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group's interest in the associate is carried at
cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the associate’s net assets less any identified impairment loss, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for the year,
including any impairment loss on the investment in associate recognised
for the year. The Group’s other comprehensive income for the year includes
its share of the associate's other comprehensive income for the year.



192 Ik EFEBAMR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2022

R B ERAR TR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.4 Associates (Continued)
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Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates. Where
unrealised losses on assets sales between the Group and its associate
are reversed on equity accounting, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary,
to conform the associate or joint venture's accounting policies to those
of the Group when the associate’s financial statements are used by the
Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group's interest in the
associate is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines whether it
is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group’s
investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in associate
is impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable
amount (i.e. higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) of
the associate and its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of
the investment, the Group estimates its share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the associate,
including cash flows arising from the operations of the associate and the
proceeds on ultimate disposal of the investment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

25

2.6

Foreign currency translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities, foreign
currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated (i.e. only
translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

20%-33.33%
10%-33.33%

Leasehold improvement
Furniture, fittings and office equipment

10%-20%
2.5%-5%

Motor vehicles
Buildings

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs
and maintenance, are recognised to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the
date that control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured
as the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of gain
or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost. After initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation
commences when the intangible assets are available for use. The
following useful lives are applied:
Customer relationship 7-10 years
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairments as
described below in note 2.9.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets (other than contract
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assets)
The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

—  Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries;

—  Other intangible assets;

—  Property, plant and equipment;

—  Right-of-use assets; and

—  The Company's interests in subsidiaries (note 33)

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or
those not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All
other assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset's carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some
are tested at cash-generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified. Goodwill in particular is
allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose and not be larger than an operating segment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets (other than contract
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assets) (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

2.10 Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are transferred. A financial
liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component and are measured at the transaction price in
accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, all
financial assets are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in the profit or loss.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging
instruments, are classified into the following categories:

—  amortised cost; or

- FVIPL or

FVOCI.

The classification is determined by both:

—  the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset; and

—  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All'income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in
profit or loss are presented within finance income, net, except for provision
for loss allowance which is presented as a separate item in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the
following conditions (and are not designated as FVTPL):

—  they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
financial assets and collect its contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect
of discounting is immaterial. The Group's cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade receivahles, other receivables (excluding
prepayments), payments on behalf of residents and amounts due from
related parties fall into this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than
“hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell” are categorised at FVTPL.
Further, irrespective of business model, financial assets whose contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted
for at FVTPL.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment, the Group elects to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in “Fair value reserve —
non-recycling” in equity. Such elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Equity investments (Continued)

The equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” will not
be reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to retained profits.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables (excluding
other tax payables), amounts due to related parties and lease liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured at
fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the
Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method except
for derivatives which are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are
carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument's
fair value that are reported in profit or loss are included within finance
income, net.

Trade and other payables (excluding other tax payables) and
amounts due to related parties

Trade and other payables (excluding other tax payables) and amounts
due to related parties are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use more forward-looking information
to recognise expected credit losses ("ECL”) — the “ECL model”. Instruments
within the scope included loans and other debt-type financial assets
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, contract assets recognised
and measured under HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of information when assessing
credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:

—  financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in

credit quality since initial recognition or that have low credit risk
(“Stage 1"); and

—  financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit

quality since initial recognition and whose credit risk is not low
("Stage 2").

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of
impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1 category while “lifetime

ECL" are recognised for the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
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(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. These are the expected shortfalls in
contractual cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience and external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the
ECL rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for the contract assets.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other receivables equal to
12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increase in the likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial
recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial assets at the reporting date with the risk of default occurring
on the financial assets at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
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(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory, business,
financial, economic conditions, or technological environment that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations; and

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 180 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the end of each
reporting period. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if it has a low risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when (i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral held
by the Group); or (ii) the financial asset is more than three years past due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

(iii) ~ Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation ; or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties; or

the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables,
contract assets and other financial assets measured at amortised
cost are set out in note 4.1{ii).

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue (see
note 2.21) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.11 and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2.10).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue (see note 2.21). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 2.10).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and other financial
institutions and in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank deposits which are
restricted are included in “Restricted cash” of the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.14 Leases

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract,
that conveys the right to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition, the
Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which
are whether:

e the contracts contain an identified asset, which is either explicitly
identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at
the time the asset is made available to the Group;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract; and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use. The Group assess whether it has
the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

Allocation of consideration to components of contract

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability on the consolidated statement of financial position.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of
the lease commencement date (net of any lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from
the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. The
Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicator exists.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are
made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments based on an
index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payment of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for lease
payments made and increased for interest cost on the lease liability. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the
period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is
already reduced to zero.

Short-term lease

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 month or less.

The Group presents the right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

(b)

The Group as a lessor
As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as either operating or finance
leases.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, and
classified as an operating lease if it does not.

The Group sub-leases some of its properties and the sub-lease contracts
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

2.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.16 Contingent liabilities
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A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events but
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the part
of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties is treated as
a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be
required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a
provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs, except in the
extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is recognised at the
amount of consideration of shares issued, after deducting any transaction
costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.

2.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19 Accounting for income taxes
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to,
or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated according
to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to be carried forward as well
as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if they relate
to items that are charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
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When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of the periods in
which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an estimation of (1)
when the existing temporary differences will reverse and (2) the amount of
future taxable profit in those years. The estimate of future taxable profit
includes:

—  income or loss excluding reversals of temporary differences; and

—  reversals of existing temporary differences

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if, and
only if,

a.  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and

b.  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in net
if, and only if,

a.  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities; and

b.  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

ii.  different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
relevant income and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make contribution
to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed in the central pension scheme. The
Group has no forfeiture of pension scheme contributions (i.e. contributions
processed by the employer on behalf of the employee who has exited the
scheme prior to vesting of such contributions). As at 31 December 2022, no
forfeited contribution under the pension scheme of the Group is available
for deduction of contribution payable in coming years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
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Short-term employee benefits
Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises
costs for any related restructuring.

Equity-settled share-based compensation benefits
The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation plans for
remuneration of its directors and employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share-
based compensation are measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments awarded. Their value
is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss
over the vesting period if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity instruments granted vest
immediately unless the compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in the “Share option reserve” in equity.
If vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting
period, based on the best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of equity instruments that are expected
to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of equity instruments expected to vest differs from previous
estimates.



214

R B ERAR TR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. EXEFBEREE »)

220 EEER (&)

DURESEERO W EEERN (@)
ITERBAER - AR B E]
ERNTERBREEBA] - N8
FHIR - MEREABRERERER
Wkt fEm B BRI ARTTHE - RSBAER
(B  ERNSERERE
[REE&BF] o

S ONSIEEPLE 2P gl
RERBRERTE - WREIRRERS
EANHEARINEER TRETA
(Bl -

SAATES R B RIS AR M EIRE
ERBREN AT EDER /X -

FEANETHNBERIES
ZORONBRENAFEEE - &
P BREAI RS RIS RIR RS
FFEE - NERERY - AKH
BRI ABERREESRBNELE
TR B E B MBI AR RO fERT
mER A BB MEMEmKERA
ERETREETHEE(WA) X
L4 T 5 B HAR 2R B BRCR ORI
TRREREE

2.21 R

(i) W=
REEREMEEERY - X
AT RER R - RIS ER
R AB R R T RRT o IBH
AR 7% B9 W 2= AN FR AR AR 15 = 51 T
IR o

EIKEXHFEBBPR/AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

Equity-settled share-hased compensation henefits (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in “Share option reserve” will be transferred to “Share capital”.
After vesting date, when the vested share options are later forfeited or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
“Share option reserve” will be transferred to “Retained earnings”.

The ultimate holding company, Kaisa Holdings, also operates equity-
settled share option schemes and grants equity instruments (“option”) to
employees of its subsidiaries within the group of Kaisa Holdings.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of options of Kaisa Holdings is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions. At each reporting date, the
Group revises the estimates of the number of options and awarded shares
of Kaisa Holdings that are expected to ultimately vest. They recognise
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Group,
with a corresponding adjustment made to contribution from shareholder
over the remaining vesting period.

2.21 Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue
The Group provides property management services, pre-delivery
and consulting services, community value-added services and smart
solution services. Revenue from providing services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Revenue (Continued)
To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a
b-step process:

1. ldentifying the contract with a customer
2. ldentifying the performance obligations
3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations;
and

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are
satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated
amongst the various performance obligations based on their relative
stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not
directly observable, they are estimated based on expected cost plus
a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on
the availability of observable information. The transaction price for a
contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group presents
the contract in the consolidated statement of financial position as a
contract asset or a contract liahility, depending on the relationship
between the Group’s performance and the customer’s payment.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or
as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the
promised goods or services to its customers.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Revenue (Continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

Property management services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed amount for
services provided on a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds
directly with the value of performance completed.

For property management services income from properties managed
under lump-sum basis, where the Group acts as a principal and is primary
responsible for providing the property management services to the property
owners, the Group recognises the fee received or receivable from property
owners as its revenue and all related property management costs as its
direct operating expenses.

For property management services income from properties managed
under commission basis, the Group recognises the commission, which
is calculated by certain percentage of the total property management
fee received or receivable from the property units, or total property
management cost incurred or accrual by the property units, as its revenue
for arranging and monitoring the services as provided by other suppliers to
the property owners.

Pre-delivery and consulting services

Pre-delivery and consulting services to non-property owners mainly
includes fees for construction sites management, display units and
property sales venues management and consulting services to property
developers at the pre-delivery stage, and property management consulting
services provided to other property management companies which are
billed based on actual level of services provided at pre-determined price
and revenue is recognised when such services are provided.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Revenue (Continued)

Community value-added services

Community value-added services include mainly i) value-added services,
which mainly include a K Life mobile app to consolidate the Group's
previous platforms to offer an upgraded one-stop service for all of the
residential communities, is recognised when the services are rendered; ii)
fees generated from our car parking and space leasing, which is recognised
over the time when such services are rendered; iii) commission income
from real estate brokerage and asset management services is recognised
at the point in time when the services are rendered and accepted by
the customers; and iv) revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on the acceptance of the goods by the customer. Payment of the
transaction is due immediately when the community value-added services
are rendered to the customer.

Smart solution services

For smart solution services, the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset or work in progress that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual costs incurred up
to the reporting date as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is
a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under “Other
gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

2.23 Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) s a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group.

(b)  the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group.

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.23 Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (continued)

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

2.24 Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group's business components and for their
review of the performance of those components. The business components
in the internal financial information reported to the CODM are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENT TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS"”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to contracts and related
Amendment

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling

a contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The adoption of the amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior years have been prepared and
presented.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENT TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendment to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October
2020 and February 2022)

Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
z Effective date not yet determined

R Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

The directors anticipate that applicable pronouncements will be adopted in
the Group's accounting policy for the first period beginning on or after the
effective date of the pronouncement and do not expect the pronouncement will
have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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4. BIERARER 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
4.1 BIEEBEZ 4.1 Financial risk factors

AEEEBHBRZ BT ERR - MX
R - EERE - REIERER - SNE
[ K A E AR R - ANEEAERE
b BT EEE SR TIHH AR
A - WRSKFEFFEE AR E R
REWBERE

ERMEERSERR

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest
rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and other price
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

20224 20214F
p1177) 2021

AR®T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

REBERANERMEE Financial assets at amortised cost:

FEWE S8R Trade receivables 828,845 738,521

H e EIE (B IETEREIE)  Other receivables (excluding prepayments) 55,520 60,297

REEFMARK Payments on behalf of residents 79,192 52,992

FEU RSB A T FE Amounts due from related parties 3,963 1,088

SERHIIRE Restricted cash 491 517

B4 RIS EEER Cash and cash equivalents 241,320 357,995

BATVELHMEEWKEZ AN  Financial assets at FVOCI:

SREE

FEEMRAIRE Unlisted equity investment 15,000 15,000

BRATVELEEZAEBENESHMEE © Financial assets at FVTPL:

Hih & ph & &= Other financial assets 327,731 328,946
1,558,062 1,555,356

REBHEANEREE

AN LA

HAb 7R (MBI EAM
FENTIR)

PSR AL F0R

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Trade payables 190,992 247,820
Other payables (excluding other tax payables)

335,256 384,009
Amounts due to related parties 9,629 6,939

535,877 638,768
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, lease liabilities and
loan to a third party. Restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Lease liabilities and loan to a third party at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group closely monitors
trend of interest rate and its impact on the Group's interest rate risk
exposure. The Group currently has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging interest rate risk should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s exposure to interest
rate is considered immaterial.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group. The
Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit
to customers in the ordinary course of its operations and from its
investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components
of the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December
2022 and 2021 is the carrying amount as disclosed in as above.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has a large number of customers and there was no
concentration of credit risk. The Group has monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Internal risk control assesses the credit quality of the customers,
taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverahility
of these receivables at each reporting date based on historical
settlements records and experience and adjusts for forward-looking
information, to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irecoverable amounts.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables and contract assets.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the past due
status. The ECL also incorporate forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group considered that there was
an increase in credit risk of trade receivables from related parties
having considered the COVID pandemic in the PRC and the
economic environment in which property developers in the PRC
operate. An ECL amounts of approximately RMB118,990,000 (2021:
RMB129,403,000) was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022.

The contract assets in relation to smart solution services primarily
relate to the Group's rights to consideration for work completed but
not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred
to receivables when the rights become unconditional. The Group
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables in relation to customers from smart solution services are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group considered that there was an
increase in credit risk of contract assets from related parties having
considered the COVID pandemic in the PRC and the economic
environment in which property developers in the PRC operate. An ECL
amounts of approximately R\MB4,089,000 (2021: RMB11,921,000)
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

For cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, the Group has
assessed that they were placed at state-owned banks and other
medium or large size listed banks and other financial institutions
with high credit rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The risk of default is low based on market information and
the Group considers the credit risk to be insignificant.

Amounts due from related parties

As at 31 December 2022, the Group considered that there was an
increase in credit risk of amounts due from related parties having
considered the COVID pandemic in the PRC and the economic
environment in which property developers in the PRC operate. An ECL
amounts of approximately RMB104,507,000 (2021: RMB124,447,000)
for amounts due from related parties, was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Deposits, other receivables other than those from related parties and
payments on behalf of residents

The Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverability of these receivables at the reporting date to ensure
that adequate ECL are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group
considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis at the end of each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.



226

R B ERAR TR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. BEEMEE )
41 BIEEBEE(E)

(i)

FEREE)

Bz ~ BN E (EREZE

A LB KRR A FAE P T 55
S (#)
EHEEEEEAR SRR T
BF - AEBEETELMED
b 2 B AR EEERRNE
Ef%%miﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl
% HNEEA Ao AE kA
EHREEEN -  LHEES
THIFEIR -

NEME AR AR
o SINEMEERTAR

o X MBHLEBILE
AERHEREATHE
BU FFHEHRERAEE
BN ELBAE

o ERIEEIRERAHER
SIS EEETEBA
Bt

o ARIEERKE—ERAL
Esm T EEERRA
el

o [BERRATBHARIA RITAZE
HEERE( BEAES
HNERARTRIE R E
MERALEEENE

EIREEFEBAR AR KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% ANNUAL REPORT 2022

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Deposits, other receivables other than those from related parties and
payments on behalf of residents (Continued)

Forward-looking information is incorporated in the ECL model. The
Group has performed historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL. It also considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating

e  external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations

e Qactual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of individual property owner or the borrower

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the individual property owner or the same
borrower

e significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the Group and changes in the operating
results of the borrower.
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4. MIEEARER . 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continsed)
41 BIHEBBEEGE) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) EERER(E) (ii)  Credit risk (Continued)
20224 ]2 202112 B31H @ & As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance provision was
BEBREETNT determined as follows:

2% 20015
2022 2021
B BB BB
BEEX  REAE  EREEE RRRE  EREEE
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected carrying  allowance carrying allowance

|oss rate amount provision amount provision

AR®TR AR®TR ARWTT ARETR
RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

EWRE SRR (FEE  Trade receivables (excluding
EWEEALES trade receivables from

BX) related parties)
Ri::Sep: e s ST E] Neither past due nor impaired 0%/0% 9,533 - 10,867 -
BH-FR Overdue within 1 year 5%/5% 262,819 1314 203,320 10,166
BE—EME QOverdue 1to 2 years 25%/25% 68,471 17,118 35,274 8,819
BERME=F Overdue 2 to 3 years 35%/35% 17,882 6,259 11,842 4,145
WA= Overdue over 3 years 60%/60% 10,842 6,505 9,016 5410
369,547 43,023 270,319 28,540

EKEZEX Trade receivables

(BEATL) (related parties)
WA R E T RE Neither past due nor impaired 0%/0% .13 = 29,809 -
BR-FR Overdue within 1 year 28.40%/20.58% 397,595 112,908 566,364 116,555
BHE-ZWE QOverdue 1to 2 years 34.85%/29.50% 318,342 110,928 23562 6,952
WEME=F QOverdue 2 to 3 years 67.12%/64.70% 1,625 5118 1,454 940
131,275 228,954 621,189 124,447

s Total 1,100,622 2N.911 891,508 152,987
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4. BIEER &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
41 BEERBEEREE) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) FE@EREGE

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

22F 20214
2022 2021
B R B
BEX  REAE - EERE 2 RREE  EEEE

Gross Loss Gross Loss

Expected carrying  allowance carrying allowance
|oss rate amount provision amount provision
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTT ARETRT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

#®e  HMEWSIE  Deposits, other receivables

RAREFAR and payments on behalf
(FEERANE) of residents (excluding
prepayments)

b Deposits 1%/15.4% 26,004 260 26,515 4,090
HiEYFUB R A% Other receivables and payments

ESSINEN on behalf of residents
BH-FR Overdue within 1 year 5%/5% 86,073 4,304 83,484 4,174
BH-EWE Overdue 1 to 2 years 25%/25% 32,216 8,069 11,992 2,998
AHME=F Overdue 2 to 3 years 35%/35% 2510 878 2,948 1,032
BEER=F Overdue over 3 years 60%/60% 3,403 2,043 1,611 967

150,266 15,554 126,550 13261

AEBEEE2EREIRE
ABE (Pl AEBEBAB
EEORRBE - BRERRE
E R g MORRATHEEE R A
EERHAEEX REREH
R-AEBEREEHEHF
HRERABE  YEEET
BHEEENGABERLTR
ERESRIL -

The management of the Group determines the expected loss rate
by reference to several key inputs such as the Group's historical
probabilities of the default risk of debtors, the credit risk exposure
of the receivables and forward-looking information. At the end of
each reporting period, the management of the Group reassesses
these inputs regularly and considers whether the input used in the
determination of the expected loss rate significantly improved or
deteriorated.
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4. BIEEER &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
41 BEERBEEZEE) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) EERER(E) (ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance provision
for trade and other receivables, deposits and payments on behalf
of residents (excluding prepayments) reconciles to the opening loss
allowance for that provision as follows:

20226 ] 20214612 A31H - J&
U ' 5 B R e At R LKA
BeRhRREPNHR(TBIEE
MR EiREERERFIH
ZEBEEERERLROT

el #7e - Hit
B 2R EKFER
(T EEEK KREREF
BEAL AR(FEHE
EZEN) BAAME)
Deposits,
Trade other
receivables receivables
(excluding and payments
trade Trade  on behalf of
receivables  receivables residents
fromrelated  from related (excluding Contract
parties) parties  prepayments) assets Total
ARETR AR%Tn AR¥Tn AR%Tz AR¥Tn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RNF1A18 As at T January 2021 20,806 - 11,902 - 32,708
BN Acquisition of a subsidiary 2778 - 242 - 3,020
RN Provision for loss allowance
BREERRE recognised in profit or loss
(F35E10) (note 10) 4956 124,447 1117 11,921 142,401
2021512318 K% Asat31 December 2021 and
02251718 1 January 2022 28,540 124,447 13,261 11,921 178,169
RIBRP RN Provision for loss allowance
BIREERE recognised in profit or loss
(F¥3E10) (note 10) 14,483 104,507 2,293 4,089 125,372
R2022512831H As at 31 December 2022 43,023 228,954 15,554 16,010 303,541




230 EIk ¥ EFEBARAT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED  E3R ANNUAL REPORT 2022

R B ERAR TR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. BIEEMEE &)
41 MERBEZEE)
(iii) RENEEEE
TRENE BB P R A £ B MK
ERHEsRABREHANEKT
MER  ZESRMABEHRIN
RedZ—SmMEELN - K
SERREASENENE SHK
K HaEARIECH B EEAA
JERTIE) - BERNBEEATRK
H HEBE UKBRERE
EEBHENREERERE - A&
He B EEERENE E R
HERAEEEFTEEE KT
NENEHERANRESES

BK e

T XA T AN & B F20224F K2 2021
FNRAVNENCRBERTA
WRNEH - InERATEESR
BEREERME  AEERER
SEAEHEEREIRNETH
HAARR - tnBaEUS AR E
E - ASHBNRORER
SEEAFEFNRTHE -

BRIHMEIMNEREEZ
ARMRBASRERER

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables,
other payables (excluding other tax payables), amounts due to
related parties, lease liabilities and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group's objective is to maintain an appropriate
level of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual maturities for
its financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. When the
creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled, the liahility
is included on the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in
instalments, each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in
which the Group is committed to pay.

The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

—FRZ KB
RER -EME BBLE HeNE4E REE
Within Total

1yearor Between Between Over undiscounted Carrying
ondemand 1and2years  2and5years 5years cash flow amount
AR¥TT AREBTT ARETR AR%Tr ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R02E12ANA  Asat31 December 2022
ERE 5% Trade payables 190,992 = - - 190,992 190,992
AR Other payables

(TBEEM [excluding other

TETE) tax payables| 316,708 18492 56 - 335,256 335,256
ENBEALIE  Amounts due to related parties 9629 - - - 9629 9629
EERE Lease liabilities 5,974 4,904 512 - 16,590 15413

523,303 23,396 5,768 - 552,467 551,290

RNE128318  Asat31 December 2021
EREHER Trade payables 24780 - - - 247800 247820
AthERFIE Other payables

(TRfEEM [excluding other

JERTFIE) tax payables) 352,281 18,262 13470 - 384,009 384,009
ENBEALIIE  Amounts due to related parties 6,939 - - - 6,939 6,930
BELE Lease liailes 6877 4855 850 g 20219 18519

613873 23107 1910 31 658,987 657,287
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4. BIEER &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 BIEREMREZEE) 4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) ShEEE B (iv) Foreign currency risk
SINEREBESR T A AFE Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
o R RIR S 2 A YNE E K g cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
BmMEE Bk o REBEAT changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposures to
ZHNERE R EESREE (A currency risk arise from its financial assets which are denominated
EBT((BT ) EET(IER]) in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") and United States Dollar (“USD"). They
FHE) c BLRELTIIEEERE are not the functional currencies of the group entities to which these
BN ES S AR I E - transactions relate.
NETHHEZEREENT USD denominated financial assets, translated into RMB at the
PERE A AR 7150 - closing rates, are as follows:
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARBTF T N
RMB'000 RMB'000
RekBReFEAR Cash and cash equivalents 2,407 79,348
TRINRANEBRANFEZRA The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit after income
BHER&EANRESAHERE tax for the year and equity in regards to an appreciation in the group entities’
BT R B H T AHE MUK functional currencies against USD. These sensitivity rates are the rates used
o QURELEDRAETEE when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
B A BEAEB S INE BB and represents management's best assessment of the possible change in foreign
KA AEREYERgE exchange rates.
B2 BRAEIEET ©
it
BRELEZE B R
Sensitivity Decrease in Decrease in
rate profit or loss equity
AR¥T T ARMT T
RMB'000 RMB’000
20224 2022
ETT usb 50{EE 2
50 basis point 120 120
20214 2021
ETT usb HOfEIE2h

50 basis point 3,967 3,967
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4. BIEEBRETE 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued

41 BEERBEEZEE)

(iv) SPEEEBR(4)
LUBTEHE 2 & R & B AT
[ERpEBARE ZIERNT

RekHeFHEERR

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

HKD denominated financial assets, translated into RMB at the

closing rates, are as follows:

20225
2022

AR®TR
RMB’000

Cash and cash equivalents 8,455

20214F

2021
ARETIT
RMB'000

8,571

TRINRASE B A F ERRA
BREMN R ESAHEEE
BRI ER BT EMNER
B RELERIIRAEIRE
B A B EA BB & SN LR B
RE - REEEYHEXRER

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit
after income tax for the year and equity in regards to an appreciation
in the group entities” functional currencies against HKD. These
sensitivity rates are the rates used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change in foreign

8 & EME - exchange rates.
A
BREL =R BRI ERED
Sensitivity Decrease in Decrease in
rate profit or loss equity
ARBT T AR®T T
RMB'000 RMB'000
20225 2022
BT HKD 501E & 2
50 basis point 423 423
20214F 2021
BT HKD SOfEE B,
50 basis point 429 429
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B REMER )

41 BEEBEZEE)

(v)

H A EKERE
7N 8 BN E 22021 € ]2 2022412
A3NBIEFELEEAEER

B o

42 ATEEH
ST A B DTN FHKER
580 AR AR A T ESIRE © T
REROTENT :

HREEXBEEERT SR
B CRERAR) (F1ER) -

BEIBRNBEINEELRE
MR BRBARE  RERAD
B skEE (BNREER) X
TMERBEXRTAIBRE ARE
(2B »

BEXBELIFAREATER
mIZEENEABE(BIERT
AERBARR) (FIER) -
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(v)  Other price risk
The Group did not expose to material price risk for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2022.

4.2 Fair value estimation
Financial instruments carried at fair value, by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liahilities (level 1).

e |nputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and not using significant
unobservable inputs (level 2).

e |nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, significant unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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DR EER
REBEARKAFE DR R BRE

REE 20225 1202112 A31H [EF
BB F2REBIF A EE
% REBNBRENAFEERZ
R B A F RS B HRE B T UARE

7
o ©

R2022F12A31H

AT ELEM
ZE W AR

BN EL BT
ABEREREE

As at 31 December 2022
Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Fair value hierarchy

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no
transfers between level 1, 2 and 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the reporting date in
which they occur.

F18R 28R 3 wet
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARBETRT ARBTRT AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

AR®T T
RMB'000

= = 15,000 15,000

= = 327,131 327,131

= = 342,131 342,731

R2021412 A31H

BATELEA
ENENLE YN Y

BAFELER
AENEREE

As at 31 December 2021
Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

- - 15,000 15,000

- - 328,946 328,946

- - 343,946 343,946

SMITEANATFETE
PMEETAFER - REBER A REFE B
ABEMISEE - RAKEZEATE
AELEARIANESRITANS -
AEESLX2EEREETERMISN
WE - BEATABRBAZBEA
MAFEFESEASEILNITAM
T ARBEREBIAERGHER
HEITHE - TREREENAETZ
LTEMEEMAFENER

Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. For the Group's financial instruments with fair value
measurement that are categorised under Level 1, the Group reference
to the quoted market price in active markets for identified assets. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs and hence the fair
value measurement are categorised under Level 3, the Group engages
independent qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined.
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4. BIERARERE s
4.3 DAREEBEHE)
SRMIANATENES)

Fair value at

WMmE

RMB1000

15,000

it REEENDTE
Description
pily7k:3
2022
ARBTT
RMB'000
BROPEEANEE 15,000
s G REE

Financial asset at
F/TOC

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments (Continued)

ftERT

Valuation technique

WNE-RRAARERELES
RESEMAXRALEER
ROBRAREENENRE -

Income approach - Discount cash flow
method was used to capture the
present value of the expected future
economic benefits to be derived from
the asset with suitable discount rate.

EXATURRBARE

Significant unobservable inputs

WEERENTEHEN% - EF
TRERENERTZZEY
SARMBERHRTIETR
e

Revenue growth rate ranged from
25% to 30%, taking into account
the management's experience with
reference to the independent qualified
valuer's knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industries.

TRE3S% - ERHRRREAR
BETERYERNIETY
BARA -

Discount rate of 13.5%, taking into
account weighted average cost of
capital determined using a Capital
Asset Pricing Model.

FIREGARE
BATENBE
Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

BREED SHAELNTE

Higher the revenue growth rate would
increase the fair value of financial
assets

TREHE  SRAELTE
B

Lower the discount rate would increase
the fair value of the financial assets
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4. BIERARER s
4.3 DAFEEBEHRE)
SRMIANATENES)

i REFENATE

Fair value at
plI7k:3 WE
am m
ARETT  ARETR
RMB000 RMB00

Description

RAFESEEAEY
tHEE

21731 32894

Financial asset at
FVTRL

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments (Continued)

B

Valuation technique

WNE-BRFRRERELES

REQEMAERALEER
FOERAREENENRE -

Income approach - Discount cash flow
method was used to capture the
present value of the expected future
economic benefits to be derived from
the asset with suitable discount rate.

EATURRBALE

Significant unobservable inputs

FEENFENTEFE
(20015 - 3%Z5%) B ANE R
kifHER EPHRERE
NSRS LB A ERIEE
ERETETANAA -

Estimation selling price with expected
growth rate for non-residential
properties ranged from 2% to 5%
(2021: 3% to 5%), p.a. taking into

account the management’'s experience

with reference to the independent

qualified valuer's knowledge of market

conditions of the specific industries.

FERI05%(201 £ 105%) &

P RRREREEREER
BTNMETIERNA «
Discount rate of 10.5% (2021: 10.5%),

taking into account weighted average

cost of capital determined using a
Capital Asset Pricing Model.

FIREAAYE
RATENEE
Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

EREREHE SRAELTH

R

Higher the selling price growth rate
would increase the fair value of the
financial assets

FREHE ARHARTE
g

Lower the discount rate would increase
the fair value of the financial assets
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4.4 EBEXREKRER
AEEEREANEEAREREE
FEL BB BIRERERE R X
BEMBNERHIZ  @EREE
REENE IR B AR o

REEETEE N E it s R E AN
WHELERFEBEEL AR - BER
HABRLE - NEE A RERBE
TRENKREEE - BEITHRMHHD
EEERKET

EXE AT R

REBERRAE L AR RRE - R HR
o HEENE AR G EEER
MERGERER - T —FRFREER
BEMNRHEEELERAENEARARDY
fET RBRRAIHAT

5.1 EEMAERE
REBERBEMT290 TR -
FRABEERHREMRE  Re
ELEMNA LR eRIZEREEE
E o RNETT ERET B R ARG
B BRER A R 2REREFIBIM
AE1THEER o

5.2 FEMEE(FERNRE

K& B NREFHEFA TR
BE(FEUIN) EEBERIRED
R - EARRKRARLVEEREREE
B ZEFeRMEESETRENR
Ao BREXREELEUMEREE
HBE R E SR (BNE A FER T
ERAMEREERETNEAE)
B - RIFRIE - D ERH ERA
ERBEAFRETERHORNNE
HUBELER S AEHNEIEN A BR
MSERRELEEENEERAMN
tE - BEFfEEREER - BEEL
AEFTEMARKREEESREESL
BUMNBELRE  FREBEENA
REFEZFHRLRENERE -
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

44

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

5.1

5.2

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.9, where the
recoverable amounts of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates. Details of
impairment assessment and key assumptions are disclosed in note 17.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwiill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets (other than goodwill) at the reporting date. These
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value-in-use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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5. EXERMEEHRHE )

5.2

5.3

FERMEE (BERIN AR

MR2022512A318 - W% - BE M&&
% EBREEE  FTREBERNEE
RRAIZEENEREES N AARE
23,559,0007T * A R¥31,456,0007T A
R #5200,566,000 7T K2 A B #553,233,000
JC(20214F + AR#25,131,0000C + A
R #36,942,0007T + A R #217,306,000
7T M A R #537,803,0007T) °

REXEGHERIANEFBENGS
T A F R
REUREE B (M 7E32) 327546 DFBr
HRNERFHERERAEREE (M
FE17) ° BR2022F 12 A318 - Rz lk
BRHRANETFEERNEEEAA
R # 31,456,000 T (2021 F : AR
36,942,0007T) - B EIE X E BRI
BHEBRWEANIRBENERE -
WEHHIRB ARSI ELBE
H EBEONEGH0OHRAE—ZEH
F o RBBALR - BYEREEL
X¥FLZEGRITEEMESES
HBTER - RIEBEMEEERELN
RITERTE W EAMR - ANEEGET AIE A
FHUIETEFBRERMNBHBATE
104F ©

A - BERAMERFHRERERAE
AR e TIBORR BT B
BRESEEYEFAEBNEHRER
HEETLTEREEANMEES o
ERAOBRARNRIaET - A6
ERBHEFPRENBILEEREE
RARBGTELZERRNHEHER
EETE -
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5.2

5.3

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets and investment in
associates are RMB23,559,000, RMB31,456,000, RMB200,566,000 and
RMB53,233,000 (2021: RMB25,131,000, RMB36,942,000, RMB217,306,000
and RMB37,803,000) respectively.

Estimation of the useful life of customer relationship
identified in business combination

Customer relationship identified in the business combination on
respective acquisition date (note 32) is recognised as intangible assets
(note 17). As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the customer
relationship identified in the acquisition was RMB31,456,000 (2021:
RMB36,942,000). Customer relationship primarily related to the existing
contracts of acquirees on the acquisition date. A large portion of the
existing contracts of acquirees are with no specific expiration date and the
remaining contracts are with contract periods of one to five years. Based
on past experience, termination or non-renewal of property management
contracts with the property developers or property owners” association are
uncommon. The Group thus estimates the useful life and determines the
amortisation period of the customer relationship to be 7 to 10 years based
on the expected contract duration of the property management contracts.

However, the actual useful life may be shorter or longer than estimate,
depending on acquirees” ability to secure its contracts and relationships
with property developers or renew the contracts with property owners’
associations in the future. Where the actual contract duration is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of the intangible asset of customer relationship and the amortisation
expenses in the periods in which such estimate has been changed.
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5. EXEHEFTRAE

54 HEERMBHELEANEIRETH

HEEBRERARKEZREARK
ftb I8 B B9RE fhET
AEEENBREORR RBEHER
EMRRUELTRREEEHENIER
(BRI E 5 RN H YRR
(TBREBMFR) - KREPMH
JEW R AT RIBER A NEE)FH
R o ERAKEBRENESE - BRE
BT 0L R 0 % i o B R A AR M A
it ARERERERZEFRR SR ER
BFFENEAZRBR S ER I -

fiwWTE BRER R SEMART B PR - RIB
=R ET RO ENERE
SRR N BB B HRE ERIEITRTE
BEEEESEANMNEMIEE MR
B LARTEHEEREEE - BEE
AMNEEZREFTHAZBIBNFS - B
B ESTHIREAAG) ©

R2022F 128318 - BKE ZERF KL
HEAEUWGRE TR EEMFIE) ~ R
KEFHMK - EREEALRERES
& E MR {E 5 A K 884,365,000
7T~ AR#79192000T © AR
3,963,000 7T & A R " 113,636,000 7T
(20214F + AR#798,818,0007C * AR
#552,992,0007T - A R %1,088,0007T &
AR #112,934,0007T) © FEUE FERFX
N E A EWGRIE MR IETE FIE)
REFPHIR - BREEATFIER
ABREENTEREERBEEBNERE
B BISFMIEE21 ~ 22+ 24%23 °
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5.4 Estimation of impairment of trade receivables and other

items within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL (including trade
and other receivables (excluding prepayments), payments on behalf of
residents, amounts due from related parties and contract assets) based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
used judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of trade receivables and other
items within the scope of ECL of HKFRS 9 and ECL allowances in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed. For details of the key
assumptions and inputs used, see note 4.1(ii) above.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments), payments on behalf of
residents, amounts due from related parties and contract assets are
RMBB884,365,000, RMB79,192,000, RMB3,963,000 and RMB113,636,000
(2021: RMB798,818,000, RMB52,992,000, RMB1,088,000 and
RMB112,934,000), respectively. Details of the provision for ECL allowance
of trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments), payments on
behalf of residents, amounts due from related parties and contract assets
are set out in notes 21, 22, 24 and 23 respectively.
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6. WESsRkoEER 6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
6.1 Uz 6.1 Revenue
(a) WHEIEBFIEEWESER (a)  Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from provision of property
o RN FT BB RS - HE management services, pre-delivery and consulting services,
e (E AR TS N 5 Be R R Ty 2= AR5 community value-added services and smart solution services. An
PSS IE - NEBNE E2022 analysis of the Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December
FERNEFNANBIEEERK 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
@AW
2022 02145
2022 2021
Wz EBEEEERX fam BEERLERX
Direct Direct
operating operating
Revenue expenses Revenue EINEY
AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TRT ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B3 38 5 Type of services
MEEERRS Property management services 1,248,191 964,885 1,196,469 893,109
A B M B RS Pre-delivery and consulting services 239,941 182,324 1,072,147 752,538
tHEREERS Community value-added services 155,495 51,946 182,164 90,211
B ERR T R Smart solution services 140,256 113,621 215,660 141,683
1,783,883 1,312,776 2,666,440 1,877,541
20225 20214
p1177 2021
ARBF T AREBTFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
T SRk 5 B S Timing of revenue recognition
BiE 5 R ERR Recognise over time 1,740,812 2,614,169
R R2ER Recognise at a point in time 43,01 52,271

1,783,883 2,666,440
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6. WMERDEBBER 2

6.1 Wz=(4)

(a) (&)
HE202F12ANBILFE - #
ERETREEMB AR ([E
KEEE]) MEBERRRE
EEMESWRGEAREERRK
2519% (20214 : 45%) ° BRE2(E
KESBEREBRERRREE
TENRZIN  REBHEA KR
EXRFPMESEHMELAERR
HE20229F 2021512 318 1
FEUEE10%EA £ o

BRNEERENAEFBRM
T34 R -

(b) REMNENEE
SR B IR R A K A A MR
RlREME  EERFAAESRE

EPMEEEXYER K&
B W s R AR E RN B R
HEZNSHE - FRERER
Tk REBBREEBETIREZ
EFRLAHZRBBEHNEE -

RAERERBEME - ZER
BRERBERRER  BRFXR

Wi RBITHRHEE -

(a)

(b)

EIKEXHFEBBPR/AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2022

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
6.1 Revenue (Continued)

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from Kaisa Holdings
and its subsidiaries (the "Kaisa Group”) and its associates and joint
ventures contributed 19% (2021: 45%) of the Group's revenue. Other
than the transactions with Kaisa Group and its associates and joint
ventures, the Group had a large number of customers and none of
whom contributed 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The details of contract assets and contract liabilities were disclosed
in note 23.

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services and pre-delivery and consulting
services, the Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to
the right to invoice which corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group's performance to date. The Group has elected
the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts.

For community value-added services, they are rendered in a short
period of time and there is no unsatisfied performance obligation at
the end of the year.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
6.1 Revenue (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
For smart solution services, the transaction price allocated to the
remaining unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

EBNZSEROT
20224F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 123,073 131,126
BiE—F More than one year 104,748 130,773
221,821 261,899

EXHENZSLEIERED
DEEBOEBHNIHERE
ZEXZHEREKENEHR
A EBRR B R R o

6.2 DEEFR
BEECREIRZERRACERH
MIEETELEDEL - NEBMHTT
EFECRRBERBAEDEER LS
REDHRRNEBLERRA °

BHE 20224 R20214512 A31 8 1EF
B AEEXEETREYEREDE
EERKG - AT MEBERERS -
ERS DR SRR - B8
BYERARERAKRAM » REHE
By R R S -
It ARFEBLBERRARSH
LAEL R 2R EhER —1E -

AEBMBOFBEEERUNAPE -
I AR E B R E 220224 K% 2021412
ANBIFEMAE RS REPE -

20226 2021 F12 A3 E » B 3E
TENVEESNAPE -

These amounts disclosed above do not include transaction price allocated to
performance obligations which have been satisfied but not yet recognised due to
variable consideration constraint.

6.2 Segment information
Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the CODM. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segment, has been
identified as the executive directors of the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group engaged
mainly in the provision of the provision of property management services,
pre-delivery and consulting services, community value-added services and
smart solution services in the PRC. Management reviews the operating
results of the business as one operating segment to make decisions about
resources allocations. Therefore, the CODM of the Company regards that
there is only one segment which is used to make strategic decisions.

The major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the PRC.
Accordingly, all the Group's revenue were derived in the PRC for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the non-current assets were
located in the PRC.
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7. HYes5 7. OTHER GAINS, NET
20225 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBTIT
RMB'000 RMB000
EIEHBUTRRI WA (FiEE) Unconditional government subsidy income (note) 21,234 8,937
HEMZE - BER&EESE Net losses on disposal of property, plant and

JRER equipment (1,035) (123)
W [e (#188) AR U Bl A Trade and other receivables and payment

FEUWE 5 BR 7k N2 Hofih fE UL on behalf of residents recovery (written off)

FIEARRKEPR as uncollectible 2,652 (423)
SNEU 2R (18 ) HEE Exchange gains/(losses), net 254 (4,426)
Efth Others 1,286 925

24,391 4,890
MisE : 22 REIRUER AR B P R i 5 BT #BPI A0 4 Note: The amount represented subsidy received from the local government bureau in the PRC
Bf o 4 B U EN 5% 47 B 1 BT A 8 SR RK AY There was no unfulfilled condition and other contingency attached to the receipt of

R R A RAREIR - subsidy.
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8. EERTAX(BRESMHME) 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2022 202145
2022 2021
AR¥T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
TE& - % R EmET] Wages, salaries and other benefits 762,813 1,188,945
ARG RE 4 E I (D ST A Y B 52 Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
(Ff$7E31) (note 31) 5,789 13,757
FEABSHN Contributions to housing provident funds 17,622 20,243
REMRITCEARGT 2R Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 72,775 91,778
858,999 1,314,723
FRENEAFMES JIEH B S TETR The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of a retirement benefits
SZBRRENEE 2K E o BURIETE scheme operated by the government of the respective cities in the PRC. The only
EME  AEBEMNE—EEAELIEEMH obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
Koo make the specified contributions.
HE02F K2021F12ANALFE - # During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there is no forfeited
BAEMZ BN (BEZRERTEABH contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior
REHEBAR L Z T ENEE EL A to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the
FO AR B AR BERIR R UK o existing level of contributions.
9. BMBERAK) WAREE 9. FINANCE (COST)/INCOME, NET
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
REW A Finance income
BTE=FEFFEWA Interest income from loans to third parties = 1,041
RER Finance expenses
HEAGEN B Interest expense of lease liabilities (770) (813)

BE(RRA), WA EEE Finance (cost)/income, net (770) 228
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10. BREFSHATEFI 10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
20224 20214
2022 2021

ARBTT
RMB'000

AR®TR
RMB’000

KR TSR AT A& T 51 Profit before income tax has been arrived at after

FIRBER charging:
IZEANEN & Auditor's remunerations 1,500 1,500
BINRA-BIEEEHE Staff costs — including directors’ emoluments
(P E8) (note 8)
— T ABEBELERAKR — Included in direct operating expenses 691,959 1,120,644
—FT AT — Included in administrative expenses 167,040 194,079
BHRESeRR T ZRAEAALZA  Costin relation to smart solution services 113,621 140,677
HEER - Lease charges:
—HHEERAEFHIN — Short term leases and leases with lease term
128 AR E shorter than 12 months 15,975 53,028
HEmEiIE Other taxes 8,238 12,433
EBBEFE Business entertainment expenses 7,632 8,795
e Depreciation
— W BB RERME(MIEE15)  — Property, plant and equipment (note 15) 6,876 6,819
—fFAEEE(ME19) — Right-of-use assets (note 19) 19,925 6,630
mR A EREE(FsE17) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 17) 5,486 5,487
FENEXEER Legal and professional fees 5,210 6,458
IR R S EE (FisE) Loss on termination of an acquisition transaction (Note) = 63,920
PAEFRE Office expenses 16,636 17,018
BAFELERARD Change in fair value on financial assets at fair value
TREEATFEED through profit or loss 1,215 53,549
HEZATFELEZARY Loss on disposal of financial asset at fair value
STREEEE through profit or loss = 159,301
[EriE Provision for loss allowance
— R E Z R (FI7E41) — Trade receivables (note 4.1) 118,990 129,403
—&e - HMERFIER — Deposits, other receivables and payments
REEFPHR(TBIE on behalf of residents (excluding
TR FIR) (M EE41) prepayments) (note 4.1) 2,293 1,117
— & E M) — Contract assets (note 4.1) 4,089 11,921
(B4, 58 B U E A Trade and other receivables and payments
FEUE 5 B8R T H A e Uk on behalf of residents (recovered)/written off
HBEURREKEP R as uncollectible (2,652) 423
EIRE Travelling 3,851 4,862

M AHSEARIEWEITIESHERETE
BRAR(DTLEEBEDNRZZNEES -

Note: The amount represented compensation for termination of acquisition transaction of Hebei
Changrunda Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd (/e[ 4t £ BERIE TR EGR A A"
("Hebei Changrunda”).

R2NF8A2TH - REBEMBELE =5
Wi 4k B E70% M e R L B E ek -
REAAREBICESETT °

R211F12A218 - BTN REHRILEE
Ene - BAFBERE2HARE A A2021
FNARZAMAE - At - AEEGERE
AR #10,0000007T © WAEHZFARE
63,920,000 T1E AR E® © ANEE E 18742022
F1AREIRK -

On 27 August 2021, the Group entered into a sales and purchase agreement with
independent third parties for the acquisition of 70% equity interest in Hebei Changrunda
at a consideration of RMB369.6 million.

On 21 December 2021, all parties agreed to terminate the sales and purchase agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22 December 2021 for details.
Accordingly, RMB10,000,000 will be refunded to the Group and RMB63,920,000 was
treated as compensation to the vendors. The Group has received the refund in January
2022 subsequently.
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1. hiSHAX 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB000
BIERFTIS AL Current income tax
— R EMETR —PRC Corporate Income Tax 65,334 117,277
IRFER A (PFEE29) Deferred tax (note 29) (33,019) (50,348)
32,315 66,929
TRIBM S SR E AR R E S5 R T 8 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax
HER - rates:
202245 20214F
2022 2021
ARMT T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
M FTIS R RT A Profit before income tax 138,910 135,050
BRETSF AT & A AT IS Tax on profit before income tax calculated at
IR E CGEBRAITS & the rates applicable to profit in the tax
RIS e AR AEF)) jurisdictions concerned 34,728 33,763
—EATRARNESR — preferential income tax rates of certain
Fiefi = companies (4,890) (11,014)
— AR — non-deductible expenses 4,662 48,267
— R E N B EEE — share of results of associates (2,633) (4,711)
— AR TERHIEEE —tax loss not recognised 696 723
—FRBERE AN — utilisation of previously unutilised
MIAEE tax losses (248) (99)

g Income tax expenses 32,315 66,929




248

R B ERAR TR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11.

PR )

RE S

R BB B P RS FT SR - T
BBEBRITAD - RRRIEN - HZE
O [ AT R FIRE B KA E -

PRI RFTS R E — MR RB25% o AKEB
MEKREMEESEERAR  EEMEK
EMEETEERARIRUIMEREDEE
AR QA FRE E20224F K 2021412 A 31
B (M EF S 1 TS R B B TR RS
FHERTUR T 2 15%FTE - ZFERRFE
FEIESFAFAETHNEERAR @ J=E
BFISRIE15% °

FYITHERMS BERHE B R A B R2017F
ARG SR JEE - WK
2017 =2019F 1) = F AR 15% BIE B R
TR - R2020E 128 - HEKTERI S
i ik eE - BRI AR 20204 220224
§) = F HAR IR 15% BUR B BB R AR

RETHEMEEERENEEER(Y
KEEREME - RETEMERELT R
WOEM - AEREDEEIMEXEETEIR
RFEHmyE  HENEEEEBNET
HYFREEEREMESHEENLREN
Y RESRTS M MR RH A o AT
BRARY  AEER SRS AEBRLRN
MISER - BEURES & THIARE -
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

PRC Corporate Income Tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in Mainland China has
been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits
for the years, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

The general corporate income tax rate in the PRC is 25%. Provision for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax for Kaisa Property Management (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.* (“fX
EMEKEYEEIRBRAF)"), Kaisa Property Management (Chongging)
Co., Ltd.* ("EEMEKEMEEIEEMRAAF]") and Kaisa Property
Management (Liuzhou) Co., Ltd.* (“#INEIRE W EEIEERAF]") are
calculated at 15% of the estimated assessable profits for both years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. Those companies are qualified as the company under
the development strategy of the PRC’s western region and are able to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15%.

Shenzhen Jiake Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd.* (&I ERIEZ e R A
R 72 A]") has obtained the certificate of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
("HNTE") in December 2017, and it is subject to a reduced preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% for 3-years period from 2017 to 2019. In December 2020,
it has extended the status of HNTE and subjected to a reduced preferential
enterprise income tax rate of 15% for 3-years period from 2020 to 2022.

*

The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.

For certain group entities engaged in property management services (“The
PM Entities”), pursuant to relevant local tax regulations in the PRC, the Group
has elected to file consolidated tax return for the PM Entities incorporating
assessable profit and tax losses attributable to the PM Entities as well as certain
communities which are managed by the PM Entities under commission basis. As
a result of such arrangement, the Group is able to temporarily utilise tax losses
of loss making communities, resulting in deferral of payment of certain provision.
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R i AR BB B A RIRA20084F 1 A1 H AR
HEEHNAFFEREE - PEIRINEE
PR A A WU 10%TEFN R © AR IE T E
HEBOBBIEOLHE - MPENB AR
B EEZER A GER B - BIFTAEE A
EAR A% TEFNFL R o

RELE2022F B2V E12ANB IEEE
AKRBINB AR ZHRE (BE)ARAA
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11. |NCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

PRC Withholding Income Tax

According to the Corporate Income Law of the PRC, starting from 1 January 2008,
a withholding tax of 10% will be received on the immediate holding companies
outside the PRC where their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend of profits earned
after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate can be applied to the
immediate holding company of the PRC subsidiaries, which is incorporated in
Hong Kong, according to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Company's subsidiary, Profit Victor Investments (Hong Kong) Limited, is able
to apply for the 5% withholding tax rate during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Hong Kong Profit Tax

No Hong Kong Profit Tax has been provided for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 as the Group has no assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the years.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Company Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly,
is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax. The group companies
incorporated in the BVI were under the International Business Companies Act of
the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, exempted from British Virgin Islands
income tax.



250 EIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED — 4F3 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

e PR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. EEMERAEEESHEAL 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
121 B¢ 12.1 Directors’ emoluments
WIEEAN FRBREEDTHED Director’s and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
WENFEFAEENTETHAENS pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
s Ordinance, is as follows:

BRUANENANALEE
Year ended 31 December 2022

HRESS
§o 2y B8 Btixf
RENEA hiERa #Hak W3R

Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme share-based
in kind bonuses contributions payment Total
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000

HrEs: Executive directors:

BERTE(ZR) . Liao Chuangiang (Chairman) = 2004 . 119 958 3081
STBLL(ZEH) (M) Ms. Guoli(Vice Presdent] note ) = m - ) m )
KRR () M. Wo Jianxi ot ) % - - - . %
FE R () M. Li Haiming (nte (¢ % . , _ - %
EETE(MH) Mr. Nie Qiang note d) " ; i ; _ ®
ERELE (M) M. Zhao Jianhua note ) 118 , i i _ "
2gRnt () Ms. MOU Zhaohui (note (g) 13 1 - " - i
BUkunEs: Independent non-executive directors:

ey M. Liv Hongha 155 - - - U m
BAGNE Ms. Ma Xumin 155 - - - u m
iy M. Chen Bin 185 - - - U m

88 250 = 248 1202 5,261
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

HEMENRYBLER
Year ended 31 December 2021

Big7ea
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Equity-settled
and benefits Discretionary scheme share-based
in kind bonuses contributions payment Total
T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ANRBFT
RMB1000 RMBI000 RVIBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
YirEs . Executive directors:
BEREE(TERER) Mr. Liao Chuangiang (Chairman and President) - 1505 - 102 3161 4768
FERL(ElER) M. Guo L Vi President) - il - 10 98 1997
[EILE (M) M. Wo Jiansin rote [c) 90 - - - - i
PESLL(EEE) Ms. Kok Hiu Ting (Vice Chairwoman)

(K&t fnote ) 8 - - - - 8
FRB A (3t M. LiHaiming nte o) ) - - . . %
BIFYTES: Independent non-executive directors:
ey M. Liu Hongbei 163 - - - 7 W
BAgt Ms. Ma Xiumin 163 - - - 7 W
[y . Chen Bin 163 - - - 7 w

753 239 - 0 4346 76%
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12. EEMEREREEH AL 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (corinued

121 EEME(E) 12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
T - Notes:
(a) EHBEZAZ+HR200F41A8REETA (@) Ms. Kwok Hiu Ting was appointed as executive director and vice chairman of the
RNARITEENRE EFE - W R2021 Company on 8 April 2020 and resigned on 6 December 2021.

F12H6HEHT -

(b)) ZHEBELER0FIASEEZTAS (b)  Mr. Li Haiming was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 8 April
RRFHITES - 2020.

(c) REHLEEN202F6F17BBHERTT (c)  Mr. Wu Jianxin was resigned as executive director on 17 June 2022.
=

(d) ER G EN02FEB1TEEZ T AL (d) Mr. Nie Qiang was appionted as executive director on 17 June 2022.
TESE -

(e) HEELALENFIANAREZITA (e)  Mr. Zhao Jianhua was appionted as executive director on 22 August 2022.
WITES ©

(f) SMEE AT A2022F9 B 16 B BE T3 172 () Ms. Guo Li was resigned as executive director on 16 September 2022.
$ °

(o) EHELLTR02FIA6EERIA (g)  Ms. MOU Zhaohui was appionted as executive director and chief executive officer

HITEENITHAE - on 16 September 2022.
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12. EEMEREREEH AL  12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (ontinued

12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

121 EEM < (8)

EXFROMITEEME RRERE
BARRN B RAEEEBREH R
e -

EIOIREBIFRITEEHE R
FERANR A E SR M a0 B
'VZ_E o

FAMBEERESHAERTHRABR
BRI BREREAFMA L -

VAR 4 E A0 S A5 9 el ST IR AR BT 7
N9 EEFTBORAE - ARF R&
ARIER A RIRIB AR R B AR 811X
TEENBBIENFBENME -

EXRE BESREE202F K
0211F12ANAIEFEAEEARE
EREMNFMHRRERNEEET
RNAIBZFMHRBAEENBE -

122 5EEESHAL

FR - AEENAETRSTALERE
MA (20214 - WE)ES - Eifex
MU SRR « BN - RER R
T=&20214F « =& ) AAHBE a0
T

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under with a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses are measured according
to the accounting policies as set out in note 2.19. Particulars of the share
options granted to the directors under the share option scheme of the
Company by the Company and the ultimate holding company are set out in
note 31.

The emoluments shown above represents emoluments received from the
Group by the director in his capacity as employee of the Group and/or in
their capacity as director of the companies comprising the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

12.2 Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year included two (2021: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining three (2021 three) individuals during the year are as follows:

20225 20214F

2022 2021

AR%ET T ARBT T

RMB'000 RMB000

e ENREYET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,213 2,421
IEIEAT Discretionary bonuses = -
VA RS #e 45 & I 2 AR FR0E Equity-settled share-based payment 857 1,553
BRIRETEI R Retirement scheme contributions 358 307

3,428 4,281
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

122 5BESHALT(E) 12.2 Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

it ATEHE N TLAT &R : The above individuals” emoluments are within the following bands:
2022F 202148
2022 2021
1,000,001% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000 3 2
2,000,001 7T 2£3,000,0007% 7T HKD2,000,001 to HKD3,000,000 - 1
3,000,0017% 7T 24,000,000 7T HKD3,000,001 to HKD4,000,000 - -
3 3

HE202F K201 F12 31 B IHF
B BEEERAERe T ATRA
S EWEE RIS E ARSI AL S
Bl AR R RE B E - B E
2022F K2021F 1231 HIEFE -
BEESAARSFTATHEXRAE
MEEABE o

13. BIRZF

(a)

BRELXEF

FRREAR BT TR 8, E 20224 K 2021
F1283N B IEFEARRER AEMNL
S PR DA B B T B AR N A9 2ET
ﬁo

No directors or the five highest paid individuals received any emoluments
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021. No directors or the five highest paid individuals have waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

20224F 202148
2022 2021
KATIER AFEMRFE T Total profit for the year attributable to owners
BEARET T of the Company (in RMB'000) 93,385 56,806
O3 TEBRINEEE Weighted average number of ordinary share
SEHER in issue 154,110,000 154,075,000
SRERZF(ARET) Basic earnings per share (in RMB) 0.61 0.37
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

BREBEER (b) Diluted earnings per share
20224F 20214F
2022 2021
FREEZEITE B INE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
FHE in issue during the year
154,110,000 154,075,000
TREB NIRRT B TR Effect of issue of shares under adjustment
BITRGO R Z (FI5E) for share option scheme (note) - 1,719,000
ETEERESE BTN Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TR AR A INAE S 8 for the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share 154,110,000 155,794,000
SREERT(ARKET) Diluted earnings per share (in RMB) 0.61 0.36
BfaE - Note:

HEWRF12ANALEFE  ARBROHTFE
B ERRZERRE 2 S ARITEE
I B FE NGRS EATE - WEBERAR
RAIA2019F7 R19R KR H 2 RITEBIRIED &

HZE2021F128318ILEFE - BARRMHEF
HMESRZEBRE Z CHBETER -
I B ERGREEATE - BREAQAR
0197 ANB R 2 RITHEERED EE
}g °

14. IR 8
FEEGEFATEIREE20224F &20214F
1ANBEIEFEARAKE -

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the computation of diluted earnings per share for
the year does not assume the conversion of the Company's outstanding share options
granted on 19 July 2019 because the average market price of the shares is lower than the
adjusted exercise price of those share options.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the computation of diluted earnings per share for
the year assume the conversion of the Company's outstanding share options granted on
19 July 2019 because the average market price of the shares is higher than the adjusted
exercise price of those share options.

14. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has resolved not to declare a final dividend for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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15. 9% - RER®RE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B BE
HEWE £ER
Furniture,
fittings
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings  improvement equipment vehicles Total
ARETRE AR¥TR AR%®Tx AR%TR AR%¥T:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R Cost
R2021E1 A1H As at 1 January 2021 1,246 - 38,263 3,194 42703
NE Additions - 17 7.8% - 7911
WEHB AR (H532)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32) - 49 1862 447 6,708
HeE Disposals - - (2,589) (490) (3,079)
R0215F12 4318 ] As at 31 December 2021 and
202F1A18 1 January 2022 1,246 446 45,430 12 54,243
INE Additions - - 6,721 158 6,879
HE Disposals - - (6,704) (1,021) (7,725)
R2022512 8318 As at 31 December 2022 1,246 446 45,441 6,258 53,397
REHE Accumulated depreciation
R2021E1 A1H As at 1 January 2021 110 - 21472 2,233 23815
FEZ M (ME0) Charge for the year (note 10) 82 275 5,678 784 619
HERED Written back on disposals - - [1.221) (301) (1522)
R021F12A318 & As at 31 December 2021 and
202F1 818 1 January 2022 192 275 25,929 2,116 29,112
FEX M (MEE0) Charge for the year (note 10) 83 130 5,791 872 6,876
HEREE Written back on disposals - - (5,775) (375) (6,150)
R2025128318 As at 31 December 2022 275 405 25,945 3213 29,838
BREFE Net book amount
R202512831H As at 31 December 2022 m | 19,502 3,045 23,559
R021F12A318 As at 31 December 2021 1,054 1 19,501 4,405 25,131
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16. REtE AR ZIRE 16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

202245 20214F

2022 2021

ARET T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

REE AR Z KB Cost of investment in associates 23,182 18,282
R SR R e Share of post-acquisition profit and other

Was - MEREWARE comprehensive income, net of dividends received 30,051 19,521

53,233 37,803

20225 M201E12 A3 H - NEE 2 3E
EWBE AR (REIWEMBRE - BER
L£HHAI2ZANR)FENT

Name of associates

FEM AL R
e

Place of
incorporation

BfER

Particulars of
registered

ARAREE

HyfE R LL I

Proportion of
interest

held by the

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, particulars of the Group's unlisted associates,
whose quote market price is not available and having a reporting date of 31
December, are as follows:

ARIEREREEEBRAT]
(MEKEME])

RYNERER R ERER AT
(“Kaisa Technology Group Co., Ltd.")*
(“Kaisa Technology”)

B =R RS AR AR ([ E )

BBy T =R T AR IS B IR A F)
("Yancheng Tingyuan City Service Co., Ltd.")*
(“Yancheng”)

AT BB EREER AR ([#&%])
(“Zhejiang Derui Urban Operation Service
Co., Ltd.")* ("Derui”)

and operation

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

capital
AR
16,327,0007T

RMB16,327,000

ARE
30,000,0007C

RMB30,000,000

ARE
10,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000

Company

45.20%
(20214 -
45.20%)

45.20%

(2021: 45.20%)

49.00%
(20214 -
49.00%)
49.00%

(2021: 49.00%)

49.00%
(20214 -
TEA)
49.00%
(2021: N/A)

Principal activities

Development and sales of
computer network

Environmental and public
facility management

WEREE

Property management

The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.
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16. REFZE QAR 21RE (») 16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
PATE IR A AN E AR S A7 8 Set out below are the summarised financial information of a material associate,
W7 AR E Yancheng, which is accounted for using the equity method:
B B
2022F 20214F
Yancheng Yancheng
2022 2021
AR%T T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB000
MBNEE Current assets 32,838 22,426
EMENEE Non-current assets 29,787 22,109
mEEE Current liabilities (19,547) (13,791)
BEFE Net assets 43,078 30,744
Was Revenue 87,842 73,408
F R Profit for the year 12,333 744
FAEMEERE Other comprehensive income for the year = -
FAREAEWELRTE Total comprehensive income for the year 12,333 744
LB E R E RS A ﬂ EE 4 1% A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
BRI REERLERESIAT amount of investment in an associate, Yancheng, is set out below:
B Bk
20224 20214
Yancheng Yancheng
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
B2 NRNEE FEER Total net assets of associate 43,078 30,744
AEBIFTISEA EERLLT Proportion of ownership interests held
by the Group 49% 49%

HZAPBEARRANNREE Carrying amount in the consolidated statements of
financial position 21,108 15,065
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16. %Hﬁ%ﬁaZ?ﬁﬁ(%) 16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
AT ES IR EABENE KBS A F/E Set out below are the summarised financial information of a material associate,
JER 2 ERERIE - Kaisa Technology, which is accounted for using the equity method:
FEIRERH FIRFERE
20224 20214F
Kaisa Kaisa
Technology Technology
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
MEVEE Current assets 47,542 536,458
EMENEE Non-current assets 20,591 20,650
mEaE Current liabilities (16,526) (513,593)
BEFE Net assets 51,607 43,515
Wz Revenue 1,374 69,198
FRRF Profit for the year 8,091 40,887
FREM AR E Other comprehensive income for the year = -
FREEKESEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 8,091 40,887
LR E R 2 BN A R E IR ER A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
R ERBREERN RSN T - amount of investment in an associate, Kaisa Technology, is set out below:
FEIRERH ERFERE
202F 20214F
Kaisa Kaisa
Technology Technology
2022 2021
AR%ET T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
P& N RN EEFERTE Total net assets of associate 51,607 43,5515
AEBPTISEA EERLL T Proportion of ownership interests held
by the Group 45.20% 45.20%
KERmEE Carrying amount of the investment 23,326 19,669
Bk Goodwill 3,069 3,069

SZAPBEARRERANNREE Carrying amount in the consolidated statements of
financial position 26,395 22,738

AEEWEFENBEE AR REMESE The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other commitments
FR A B ERHMARIE o relating to its investment in associates.
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16. REEE DT ZIRE »)
PATNE YIRS E AR E RIS A a)E
Iz i ERE -

16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information of a material associate,
Derui, which is accounted for using the equity method:

Eis

2022F

Derui

2022

AR¥T T

RMB'000

MBEE Current assets 15,912
EMENEE Non-current assets 1,680
mEaE Current liabilities (5,900)
BEFE Net assets 11,692
Wz Revenue 19,016
A4 ) Profit for the period 1,692
B E b 2 A Other comprehensive income for the period =
AN R ER AR Total comprehensive income for the period 1,692

EE AR R BN A QR IR R
ERREEMNEREFEINOT -

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
amount of investment in an associate, Derui, is set out below:

Ein

20224

Derui

2022

AR%ET T

RMB'000

B N RN EEFERE Total net assets of associate 11,692

AEBPTISEA EEE LT Proportion of ownership interests held by the Group 49%
LA BSIAR R AR EREE Carrying amount in the consolidated statements of

financial position 5,729

758 B3 AR BT 2 MO M T
(AR E Al

o

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other commitments
relating to its investment in associates.
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17. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

i) BILEE
Goodwill Intangible assets
MEEE
BRI 2 I EFB%
Property
management
services Customer
segment relationships
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2% Cost
R2021F1 A18 As at 1 January 2021 67,222 28,187 95,409
W BB A A1 (MI3E32) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32) 93,606 18,000 111,606
20215128318 - As at 31 December 2021,
2021 A1E & 1 January 2022 and
20224F12A31H 31 December 2022 160,828 46,187 207,015
S £ Accumulated amortisation
R202151 518 As at 1 January 2021 - 3,758 3,758
By Amortisation - 5,487 5,487
20214128318 & As at 31 December 2021 and
2022F1 A1H 1 January 2022 - 9,245 9,245
5y Amortisation - 5,486 5,486
20225128318 As at 31 December 2022 - 14,731 14,731
BREFEE Net hook amount
202212 H318 As at 31 December 2022 160,828 31,456 192,284
HR2021512 A31H As at 31 December 2021 160,828 36,942 197,770

REE2021F12ANHILEE - REEIK
BT IR R60% AR 1 (FT3E32) - BREA
AR #107,706,0007C © HAUEE B ATUR B AY
ZEBHAHEEFEEEAARE
23,500,0007C  BIEASEERM A HEIE
FRE AR #18,000,0007T °

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired 60% of the
equity interests in the Zhejiang Ruiyuan (note 32) at a total consideration of
RMB107,706,000. Total identifiable net assets of this entity acquired as at
the acquisition date were amounted to RMB23,500,000, including identified
customer relationships of RMB18,000,000 recognised by the Group.
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17. BEREBHTEE »)
Freg 2R E RPN IET R ER NS5
BHPTR B R EEFEAFENITY
ABRAEE(ME2) -

REBAHHERNETPRIETIRNKE
BHIN QP ERR - ANEFHEERR
HEE A E RS AIRAASE R AT #E 3H7
R o BTN R SR AT E R BT E104F
BEOERTE -

B HETI B EFTRDETT - UEEA
SEN AU B ERN BB EARER
REPREFA

SURERARNE  ReELBEMAIKES
BREEFANTFREAENEREE
A8 WIRNATERERREHRERRESR -
VB HEETHRERAARES]
o BRERRREMBARHHORERFH
R - RERRRIRSE S BLREEN

TREINEEEERN2022F KX 2021F12
A3 BETEERENANRES =T
HEMNTETB/HEK

17. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of the non-
controlling interests in the acquires over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (note 32).

Customer relationships acquired in business combinations are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the expected life of 7 to 10 years.

Independent valuations were performed by independent valuers to determine the
amount of the mobile application and customer relationships recognised by the
Group as at respective acquisition dates.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amounts for the cash
generating unit was determined based on value-in-use calculations covering a
detailed five-year budget plan followed by an extrapolation of expected cash
flows at the growth rates stated below and the valuation conducted by an
independent valuer and approved by the directors of the Company. The growth
rates reflect the long-term average growth rates for the service lines of the cash
generating unit.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill as at
31 December 2022 and 2021:

202F 20214

2022 2021

RFEARER R Growth rate within the five-year period 2-14% 3-12%
RATRLER & Pre-tax discount rate 20% 19-229%
KA KR Terminal growth rate 2% 3%

Y2 1B ARG 5 SR AT UR BB B0 BT BB R B A AT
WeEleHEzERABEE(EREE]TE
(FEEAMSRB L BRI (B ) © 720224F 20214
12 A3 B BB IRRE R -

AEBERERE  FREEFETER
BETEA SRR EE TS E YT
BEEHE KRS -

The recoverable amounts of the subsidiaries acquired under property
management service segment are calculated based on value in use (“VIU")
exceeded its carrying value. No impairment provision was considered necessary
to be provided as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably possible changes in
the key estimation of the VIU calculations would not cause the carrying amounts
to exceed its recoverable amounts.
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18. T EMIB A TS 18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
FEWE R T R20224 K 2021912 A31H Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as
HEEBINT - follows:

HRRL/RL/ ih/ERTR ADTIRERE
BERERAH EEEREN BRRE RREAAML
Place and date
of incorporation/ Percentage of
establishment/ Registered/Issued  ownership interests
Name of company operations Type of legal entity and fully paid capital ~ held bythe Company  Principal activities
wmE  WE
22 Yl
RLAREREE
Directly held by the Company
HERREBRAT RERAEE BREEAT IE 100% 0% REAZR
Xie Mao Investment Company Limited 00757 A%6H Limited liability company Usn2 Investment holding
BVI,
26 July 2007
AAREERE
Indirectly held by the Company
HHRE(ER)ARAT B F4AIR BREMAR 10,0007 7T 100% 0% REER
Profit Victor Investments (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability company HKD10,000 Investment holding
2 April 2012
ERRNZEEERAT hE EREEAF AR E5723,0007 100% 0% HEER
Kaisa Property Group Company Limited* WENANA Limited liability company RMBE5,723,000 Property management
The PRC,
21 December 2012
EEFER(RIERAT hE EREEAA AR 3100000007 100% 0% HEER
Kaisa Property Management (Shenzhen) Co., Limited.* 19910 A 208 Limited liability company RIMB310,000,000 Property management
The PRC,
20 October 1999
Tk ERENEERERAR WE N3ERABH BREMAF ARE50,000,0007 100% 0%  DEEE
Kaisa Commercial Property Management The PRC, Limited liability company RIMB50,000,000 Property management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* 8 May 2013
AT ENE R RERAT hE ERELEAA ARE00000007 100% 0% REZE
Shenzhen Jiake Intelligence Technology Co., Limited™ 013F128238 Limited liability company RB20,000,000 Equipment installation
The PRC,

23 December 2013
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18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

18. T EMB A TFE »

iR/ R/
BewURAH
Place and date

of incorporation/
establishment/
operations

it/ BRGR

EEERER HRRE

Registered/lssued
and fully paid capital

Name of company

Type of legal entity Principal activities

MITAEE TREERBERAA
Shenzhen Dapengche Engineering Maintenance
Senice Co., Ltd*

REMEARNFERARAT
Kaisa Property Management (Dongguan)
Co., Ltd.

RATERENEERERAR
Kaisa Property Management (Chengdu) Co,, Ltd.*

ERMEAENFERARAA
Kaisa Property Management (Chongging)
Co. Ltd.*

BNERENEERERAA
Kaisa Property Management (Huizhou) Co., Ltd.*

DN ENEERER AR
Kaisa Property Management (Liuzhou) Co,, Ltd.*

M ERE A RRERARAT
Hebei Changrunda Environmental Engingering
Co., Limited”

AREXRNFERARLA

Taiyuan Kaisa Property Management Co,, Ltd.*

EREAENERBERAA
Ningbo Kaisa Property Service Co., Ltd.*

e
WUENATIA
The PRC,
27 November 2014

thE - 20017 A18H
The PRC,
18 July 2007

e - 200851 A0
The PR,
30 January 2008

el 03ET AR
The PRC,
1July 2013

e 201357 A16H
The PRC,
16.July 2013

il 0174 A7 E
The PRC,
27 April 2017

el - 00E10E 288
The PRC,
28 October 2020

wE - 0186 AYE
The PRC,
27 June 2018

thiEl 018511 A6H
The PRC,
6 November 2018

BREFAR
Limited liability company

EREAAE
Limited liability company

ARAERARA
Limited liability company

AREFAA
Limited liability company

EREAAT
Limited liability company

BRERAR
Limited liability company

BREFARA
Limited liability company

EREAAE
Limited liability company

ARAERARA
Limited liability company

ARH500000007T
RIB50,00,000

ARH10000,0007
RMB10,000,000

ARE30,0000007T
R\B30,000,000

AR 30000007
RIIB3,000,000

NERRES00 0007
RMBS00,000

ARHE5000007
RMB500,000

AEE100000007
RIB10,000,000

AERHES00 0007
RMBS00,000

ARHE000007
R\B500,000

ARRRERE
BEZAM
Percentage of

ownership interests

held by the Company
unE  WF
2022 pivil
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
60% 60%
51% 5%
51% 51%

BERRE

Maintenance and repairing

mxER

Property management

mxEE

Property management

nxEE

Property management

nxER

Property management

mxEE

Property management

NEEREERHS
Property management
related business

nxER

Property management

mxER

Property management
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Name of company

FEAENFERARAR(FEAREE])

Jiaxing Dashu Property Management
Company Limited® (*Jiaxing Dashu Group’)

FATRHEREEARLA(FRREE

Jiaxing Rongshu Hotel Management Co, Ltd*
("Jiaxing Rongshu Group”)

THERNZERERAR(THER])
Jiangsu Hengyuan Property Management
Company Limited” (" Jiangsu Hengyuan”)

I ERREREERAT
Yancheng Hengyuan Sanitation Service
Company Limited*

ERSENRRBEER AR EREB])
Ningbo Langtong Property Service Company
Limited* ("Ningho Langtong”)

)

WIRRNFERARAADIDRR ) (M)

Zhejiang Ruiyuan Property Management
Co., Limited* (*Zhejiang Rulyuan) (note 32)

FRIHARREERRTE

a4
TE

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2022 f£Jk3=1FE@APR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED

=)
)

B RS R AR B

265

at

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

MR/ R/
BEBUREH
Place and date

of incorporation/
establishment/
operations

W 199957 A30E
The PRC,
30 July 1999

RE - N07F9ANA
The PRC,
11 September 2007

i - 200456 A9
The PRC,
29 June 2004

mE - 017E3A9A
The PRC,
9 March 2017

W - 201351 A9H
The PRC,
9 January 2013

hE - 00ETA17A

The PRC,
17July 2002

REH

FEXEIBEBRFEEERDIHART
MEAR - NRRIESRR - JIHEMH
BARFERE<IHREBANITR -

(Continued)

EERERER

Type of legal entity

ERBEAA
Limited liability company

EREAAT
Limited liability company

BREFARA
Limited liability company

ERELAA
Limited liability company

EREAAT
Limited liability company

BREFAR
Limited liability company

it/ BRTR
HREx

Registered/Issued

and fully paid capital

AERH5,0000007C
RVB5, 000,000

AKE1,0000007
RMB1,000,000

AEE100000007
RMB10,000,000

ARH1,0000007
RMB,000,000

ARE20000007
RMB2,000,000

AEE100000007
RMB10,000,000

ARNAEEMNE
REZAD
Percentage of

ownership interests

held by the Company

mE  WE
22 Yl
60% 60%
60% 60%
51% 51%
51% 51%
60% 60%
60% 60%

Principal activities

mxEE

Property management

mxEE

Property management

nxEE

Property management

mxEE

Property management

PSS

Property management

nxEE

Property management

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

* The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for reference

only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.
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18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

18. T EMB A TFE »

The Group includes four subsidiaries group with material non-controlling
interests (“NCI"), the details and the summarised financial information, before
intragroup eliminations, are as follows:

AREEBENREREASHERERAM
BARIKE - FHEREERNEHTROE
AERBEEHTIT

R202512A31R8
As at 31 December 2022
IHEREE ERHE
Jiangsu
Jiaxing Hengyuan Ningho
Dashu Group Group
R2F R202% R20225 R20225
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022 2022
ARET T AR%ET T AR%T T NS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

REAHESR

AR

Zhejiang
Langtong Ruiyuan

SRR ARVEAREN,  Proportion of ownership interests and

R voting rights held by the NCI 40% 49% 40% 40%
TEEE Current assets 58,978 68,337 16,973 85,739
EREBEE Non-current assets 12,296 34,696 2970 24,162
FEHAE Current liahilities (32,077) (56,754) (8,266) (56,456)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (1,945) (2.221) (483) (3.214)
BEFE Net assets 31,252 44,058 11,19 50,231
IR EEE Carrying amount of NCI 14,901 21,588 4,478 20,092
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18. EEMBATFE » 18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Ra2F12A318
As at 31 December 2022
ERAHEE TEHEREE HRRE WTERIR
Jiangsu
Jiaxing Hengyuan Ningbo Zhejiang
Dashu Group Group Langtong Ruiyuan
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T R
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Ygx Revenue 157,038 166,823 48,490 190,278
% 8 Total expenses (152,895) (155,988) (48,072) (176,258)
FEREF Profit for the year 4,143 10,835 48 14,020
FREMZEYE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - -
FNEENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 4,143 10,835 08 14,020
FEE R R R Profit attributable to NCI 1,657 5,309 167 5,608
JEMRiESE(E2E s Total comprehensive income attributable
o] to NCI 1,657 5309 167 5,608
RESEES/(FTA)34  Netcash flows from/{used in) operating
hEFE activities 3,440 2,442 834 11,690
REZBFARENE Net cash flows used in investing
B activities (308) (398) (506) (5,404)
BEEEME/(FrR) Net cash flows from/(used in) financing
BenEFH activities (6,097) 865 - (141)
BekReSEER Net increase/decrease in cash and

B/ WA EE cash equivalents (2,965) 2,909 328 6,145
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18. T EMB L EFE =)

FRBRRERENRERR

18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

REAHEE

Jiaxing
Dashu Group
ARETTT
RMB'000

Proportion of ownership interests and

20214128315

Jiangsu
Hengyuan
Group
AREFT
RMB'000

Ningbo
Langtong
ARETT
RMB'000

AR

Zhejiang
Ruiyuan
ARBETT
RMB'000

TEREL D voting rights held by the NCI 40% 49% 40% 40%
MEEE Current assets 57,036 48,126 16,336 71,789
EREEE Non-current assets 13,851 30,371 3,062 22,430
mEak Current liabilities (29,428) (42,729) (8,040) (54,151)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (2,253) (2,546) (580) (3,857)
BEFE Net assets 39,206 3,222 10,778 36,211
FERRERTE Carrying amount of NCI 15,682 16,279 431 14,484
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18. TEMBATFT 18. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

BENNF1ANALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
LEEREE B BAR iRy
Jiangsu
Jiaxing Hengyuan Ningho Zhejiang
Dashu Group Group Langtong Ruiyuan
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
25 Revenue 143,367 168,486 46,277 184,179
Y @5 Total expenses (138.828) (162.229) 42,505) (171.469)
FEREF Profit for the year 4,539 6,257 3,172 12,710
FREMZEYE Other comprehensive income
for the year - - = -
FNEENELEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 4539 6,257 3772 12,710
JEIERE RS R (R T Profit attributable to NCI 1816 3,066 1,509 5,084
JEfMRiESE(E2E s Total comprehensive income attributable
Ex to NCI 1816 3,066 1509 5,084
ESTEIFTE /(FTF)3E 4 Netcash flows from/{used in) operating
MEFHE activities 3,756 2974 (2,786) 16,030
REZBFARENE Net cash flows used in investing
P activities (381) (1,002) (274) (629)
RETBMBRENE Net cash flows used in financing
ek activities (192) - 2) (160)
RekHR2FEEE Net increase/decrease in cash and

B/ EE cash equivalents 3,183 1972 (3,062) 15,241
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19. EHEEE 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

XTXER RUmxEE
HEEE REEEEE

Leased assets
Leased assets for provision
for owners- of properties
occupied management
purpose services Total
AR®T R ARET R AR%T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Bif=E)
(Note)
R20215F1 A1 H As at 1 January 2021 5938 - 5938
R Additions 16,853 200,000 216,853
W iEkT B A~ B (MiFE32) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 1,145 - 1,145
e Depreciation (6,630 - (6,630
2021512318 & As at 31 December 2021 and
20221718 as at 1 January 2022 17,306 200,000 217,306
IR Additions 4,254 - 4,254
BIFHE Termination of leases (1,069) - (1,069)
WE Depreciation (6,592) (13,333) (19,925)
R20225128318 As at 31 December 2022 13,899 186,667 200,566
MisE  RBASE—RMBARIMRLE B IE = Note: Pursuant to certain leasing agreements entered by a subsidiary of the Group with a
FREE201F12A3NB IEFEARNTLE number of independent third parties during the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
ETHEWRS  AEEEEERNB2024 was granted the rights to use of certain non-residential properties in the PRC for 15
TRATRRBEBFRFERE THREEEED years commencing from 1 January 2022, including but not limited to the right to provide
¥ AEETRAEHVEEERBES property management services and sublease the non-residential properties for rental
THIFEEMEAWEE S WA - HEWH income. The leasing agreements were non-cancellable and the Group has paid total
ATIFE  AEEEZNBREARE considerations of RMB200,000,000 and no further obligation to pay for the use of the
200,000,0007C - W — S EEREAEE leased assets. These right-of-use assets are carried at costs less impairment loss, if any.
BEYNRE ZSERAEEERKAN No depreciation had been provided for the year ended 31 December 2021 as the leasing
BOREEE (208 )FER - BREIZE2021412 period had yet to commence as at 31 December 2021.

ANBE MM RS - BB E20214128
SN B LIEFEIWEIRITE -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS

BEATER BATEE
BER AR HtzEKS
SRMEE AENSREE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair value
at fair value through other
through profit ~ comprehensive
or loss income Total
AR%T R AR¥T R AR®T R
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20225128318 As at 31 December 2022
FmE Non-current
FE EMRRAIRE (Fi3E(a) Unlisted equity investment (Note (a)) = 15,000 15,000
HAn o B & E (FiE) Other financial assets (Note (b)) 321,731 = 321,731
R202F128318H Total financial assets at
CREELE 31 December 2022 342,731
R2021512A318 As at 31 December 2021
FEMED Non-current
I TR AR & (7)) Unlisted equity investment (Note (a)) - 15,000 15,000
Hib&ph &2 (H3Hb) Other financial assets (Note (b)) 328,946 - 328,946
20215F12A31HH Total financial assets at
CREERHE 31 December 2021 343,946
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20. ERMEE )

BiazE -

(a)

(b)

ZeRERAENRPEKZIAE ETEENR

REMIRE - ZERIENFRITHITHE
BV R ARTS o SANR EE43R I - FE TR
BAKREN R TFEFEDERABEIRATE
B4R -

HZE2021F12A3BILFE - AEE—RK
%@7ﬂ$ﬂﬁt®7hﬁ%h@mﬁ*”
FEIN AR - AEBEERBRER X
H&@AE%%M%MEUEQDM%%
NRFENSETEFEDE(WE]) - AH
AF - RIBAEBAEOLTE - HBAREED
HEEBBRAEANTHNRSHF TN
EEBROEHNTI0% - BTN EEE
AT AR ENTASRA - EERA
B REER T 55 (BN 8 & RS )

PRASEE —RREB— 7D
AANMBRA A HRPERTFL - A EAIT R E

REEFAZAOZRE R FIARE -

HREHLTHR FASEWER Eil &R ¢
W& KRR - REERR AR ATAELIER
AENESBEE - AFEERAATEEBER
AR #1,215,0007T (20214 AR #53,549,000
J0) ° fAMIEEA3FTIHL - A EFTENEAES
MNFEER -

20. FlNANClAL ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The amount represents an investment in equity shares in an unlisted entity established in
the PRC, which is mainly engaged in providing internet insurance services of car industry.
The fair value measurement of unlisted equity investment is classified as Level 3 fair
value hierarchy as described in note 4.3.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a subsidiary of the Group entered into
contractual arrangements with independent third parties of which the parent of
the Company was a 5% registered shareholder, and the Group paid a deposit of
RMB382,495,000 (the "Deposit”) for an exclusive right to sell certain non-residential
properties in the PRC (the “Properties”) for a five-year period. Pursuant to the relevant
contractual arrangements, the subsidiary is entitled to 70% of the excess of the
selling price over the agreed minimum price with the counterparties to the contractual
arrangements. The subsidiary also has the right to receive rental income arising from
the Properties prior the Properties are sold. The directors considered that the operations
under the abovementioned exclusive right namely, the provision of sale services, form
part of the Group’s ordinary course of business.

The Deposit paid by the Group during the year is refundable in case of any shortfall as
stipulated in details in the related contractual arrangements.

Since the contractual arrangements give the Group a contractual right to receive cash
which are variable as described above, the asset is considered as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss. A fair value loss of RMB1,215,000 (2021: RMB53,549,000)
has been recognised during the current year. The fair value measurement is classified as
Level 3 fair value hierarchy as described in note 4.3.



¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2022

21. BN E 5 BRF I E At FE UK IE

EIREEFEBAR LT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED

=)
o)

273

EA SRR PRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20224F 20214F
2022 2021
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI
— Third parties —F=x 369,547 270,319
— Related parties (note 24) —EiE AT (M5E24) 731,275 621,189
1,100,822 891,508
Less: loss allowance for trade receivables B RE SRS R ER
(note 4.1) (FF5E4.1) (21,977 (152,987)
828,845 738,521
Other receivables HibEWFRIE
Other deposits Hibize 26,004 26,515
Prepayments SEUNECE] 17,748 16,052
Payments on behalf of staff RERBINMAK 9,474 12,431
Payments on behalf of residents under lump-sum basis 1B &SI =T P2k 22,394 16,356
Other receivable in relation to termination of 4RI EURBE R 5 R E At fE U 5k TS
acquisition transaction (note 10) (FF5E10) - 10,000
Others Hi 2,525 2,746
Less: loss allowance for other receivables SR B E U IR SR YA
(note 4.1) (Mg7E4.1) (4.877) (7,751)
Total other receivables H e GRIE 4R 5 73,268 76,349
Less: other receivables under W SER BN Y E M e
non-current portion I sRIE (6,440) (14,839)
Current portion mEE D 66,828 61,510
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21. BEWESRAREMEYFIE 21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(%)

MeE Notes:

(a) R202E12A318 - XEBFREEKEZE S (a) Al of the Group's trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2022 are denominated
BE 30 K E b e Uk 3R 1B 15 LA A R M EHE (2021 in RMB (2021: all RMB). The directors consider that the fair values of trade and other
F 2 UARKESE) c EERARH receivables under current portion are not materially different from their carrying amounts
BB FEUE 5 BRI b JE AR A F because these balances have short maturity periods on their inception.
EEARHEYEERER - WHIHARZSE
REERRER D B FRIAEERT RIBA R EE -

b)  EZIEREWKATIRIERBIREHENIE (b)  Property management services income is received in accordance with the terms of the
RUTER - WA B PR AR BT o relevant service agreements and due for payment upon the issuance of demand note. Pre-
AT R B ARG LA IR 25 BE R R T R ARTG U delivery and consulting services and smart solution services are received in accordance
AJREE RIS B IR EY - A EE with the terms of the relevant service agreements, and the Group normally allows an
BE—RaEEEFHEHEESENTRE average credit period ranged from 0 days to 90 days to its customers.
90H °

R202F K2021E12A31H » FEWE 58 The ageing analysis of the trade receivables before loss allowances as at 31

K GHEEREER)IREZ [ HMERR D December 2022 and 2021 based on the invoice date is as follows:

DiECANE

2022 20214F

2022 2021

ARBTT AREET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

180H X Within 180 days 431,383 644,208
1812365H 181-365 days 246,279 171,038
15824 1-2 years 386,813 55,364
22 3F 2-3 years 25,507 12,711
3E QOver 3 years 10,840 8,187

1,100,822 891,508
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22. RRIEF TR 22. PAYMENTS ON BEHALF OF RESIDENTS
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB000
REEPHK Payments on behalf of residents 89,869 58,502
W REREPNFORELER Less: allowance for impairment of payments on
(FFzE4.1) behalf of residents (note 4.1) (10,677) (5,510)
79,192 52,992
HASEIZRMNEHEEEFETROEE The balances with the property management offices of residential communities
BWEENEREASERRESHES managed by the Group under the terms of commission basis represents
MBS BASZEEHEBREF I E expenditures paid by the Group on behalf of the residential community in excess
BEEENE S - of the property management fees collected from the residents of that residential
community.
R202F R2021F 128318 - RREFH As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the payments on behalf of residents were
KTIAAREETE - denominated in RMB.
23. EEE BB 23. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES
20224F 202148
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB000
EHEE Contract assets
BEDRERR T SRR B R Contract assets related to smart solution services
BREE 129,646 124,855
W BB EEBERERS Less: loss allowance for contract assets (16,010) (11,921)
113,636 112,934
EHEE Contract liabilities
BB RRA T ERIEA R Contract liabilities related to smart solution services
anasE (39,335) (29,612)
mYEEERFEBENEG L Contract liabilities related to property management
aE services (166,791) (137,360)

(206,126) (166,972)
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23. BB E A 23. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

BRNEETREAKEEREZENHREA
HHAAENE TR IENREESHE - &
MEERERENKSEGITRERER
WroR - X B AT 2 EH AR AR
BmakEFPRERR - KE-REELD
AR - BAEERBBRANKEXGE
Mg o

FFABEATHNENEERGHNEBED
Bl A AR #73,190,0007T (20214 : AR
73,254,000 7T ) & A R # 22,056,000 7t ( 2021
& AFR¥20,135,000T) °

TRIVRA AR E IR R K S
BRABEMNHERML

FURIAR B EGRD
ERERU

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights to consideration for
work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are
transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. The contract
liabilities primarily relate to the advanced consideration received from customers
while the underlying services are yet to be provided. Considerations are usually
received in advance of the performance under the contracts. Such assets and
liabilities increased as a result of the growth of the Group’s business.

The contract assets and contract liabilities included the related parties with
amount RMB73,190,000 (2021: RMB73,254,000) and RMB22,056,000 (2021:
RMB20,135,000) respectively.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current
reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

20224 20214F
p1177) 2021

ARETTT

AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning
of the year

118,214 69,199

BHMARNEERABRR —EMFR
Yeml, RS o

All contract assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered/settled within
one to two years.
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24. FEUWEHE AT FRIE 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
20224F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
KRB A BFRIE Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
—EB51E — Trade nature 448,075 500,459
—JEESME — Non-trade nature 2,768 777
450,843 501,236
EBYRZMEBARGELE Amounts due from joint ventures of fellow
RIE subsidiaries
—EB51nE — Trade nature 193,312 115,768
—JEESME — Non-trade nature 1,163 307
194,475 116,075
FEW B AR IR IR A Bl Y B Amounts due from associates of ultimate
ARIFRIE holding company
B8 — Trade nature 89,888 4,962
—JFEHHE — Non-trade nature 32 4
89,920 4,966
735,238 622,277
o ZESMEEARIEIEERS  Less: loss allowance for trade nature balance (228,954) (124.447)

506,284 497,830
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24. FERBAEA T RIE ) 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

The following is the ageing analysis of amounts due from related parties (trade
nature) based on invoice date presented at each of the reporting dates.

TREHNERE AR EZAHMRZ7
EMRREALHB(ESMEE) WREKD

7 e
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
180H N Within 180 days 239,830 465,687
18123658 181-365 days 165,478 130,485
1526 1-2 years 318,342 23,562
2&E3F 2-3 years 7,625 1,455
731,275 621,189

20224 K 2021F12A31H » IFE S HEE
MEKFRZMBAR - ARRMBARNEG
BE LRI A RIS A RFIA S
EIR - REWAREREE -

20224 K 2021F12 A31H - EURESE A
THRIBEUARBEE -

AEEGTREARNEERELERY
RENMBATERFEABE(BRBHE
N ARRLER) ETTHIRHS -

AEBECERABEBVHBREERNEIRR
EMBEIDEF RE B E AR TRHE
BEE -

The non-trade nature of amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures of
fellow subsidiaries and associate of ultimate holding company are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable on demand as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, amounts due from related parties were
denominated in RMB.

The Group's credit limits offered to related companies are based on assessment
of their financial viability and reputation in the industry, including historical
payment records.

The Group applied simplified approach to provide the expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9 for the trade nature balance.
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25. ZRFIRENRFENFALEE 25. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH

15H

Be MERTNEMG S BEBNESRIAT

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions are denominated

H|EHEEHE - in the following currencies:
20224F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB000
FHE— AR Denominated in — RMB 236,949 270,593
HE— AT Denominated in — HKD 8,455 8,571
sHE—MNUETT Denominated in — USD 2,407 79,348
247,811 358,512
B ZIREIIR S (M) Less: Restricted cash (note) (491) (517)
BekReSHEIER Cash and cash equivalents 247,320 357,995
MIEE © M2022F12A318 - ZRFIBEEBIERE Note: As at 31 December 2022, restricted cash mainly represents the maintenance fund held

FEHERNEERES ARKL28,0007T(2021
& AR5395,0007T ) LA K BL4E F R B 3ESM
SRITRBMIELOERER  DRAAR
#63,00070(20214F = AR¥122,0007T) °

AFARSERNBR e RIERITMEM S H
HENEGRHUARBENRITES
B ANRM236,949,0007T (20214 : AR
270,593,0007C) THIFERF EMIRIT - AR
AT BRLENER - RIEPRBEINE
EBEOIRINELE - HE RARERE
Bl REEREFRERERARBINEZEL
RIERITHE A RIS S BINE -

on behalf of the residents amounting to RMB428,000 (2021: RMB395,000) and guarantee
deposits for the use of bank service outside mainland China amounting to RMB63,000
(2021: RMB122,000) respectively.

Included in cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions of the Group is
RMB236,949,000 (2021: RMB270,593,000) of bank balances denominated in RMB placed
with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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26. B E 5 IR R E At B FRIE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20224
2022

AR®TR
RMB’000

20214F

2021
ARBT T
RMB’000

EHES RN Trade payables

—E=5 — Third parties 182,681 236,635

— B AT (F5E27) — Related parties (note 27) 8,311 11,185

190,992 247,820

HAib TR\ Other payables
U BB B A ml FERT B Consideration payables for acquisition of subsidiaries 26,941 45,536
FEETE TR Accrued staff costs 87,423 106,861
HibEA I Other tax payables 1,665 5,754
Bl Deposits received 74,486 76,555
REEFUK Receipt on behalf of residents 126,938 134,137
Efb e FIA R ERTE R Others payables and accruals 19,468 20,920
HAib R RIEERE Total other payables 342,921 389,763
W FERENES S Less: non-current portion
HAbFERFIE Other payables (5,077) (4,781)
WM B A TIENRE Consideration payables for acquisition of subsidiaries (13,471) (26,941)
JEM BN A E b FE A BB Total other payables under non-current portion

pERE] (18,548) (31,722)
RENER D Current portion 324,373 358,041
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BNESEFBRERENASEEHRERRK
He REELEHAESIHEE  EEHN
F30E180H < RIEZEZAE - 1KR2022F &
202112 B 31 B ERT B SR BREE D AT
wm
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Included in trade payables were amounts due to the Group's suppliers. The
outstanding balances were trading in nature and credit periods ranging from 30-
180 days were granted. Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

PHA Within 90 days
912180H 91-180 days
1812270H 181-270 days
2712365H 271-365 days
B 3B365H Over 365 days

20225 20214F

2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
98,512 178,472
40,832 39,766
20,509 17,511
10,644 7,742
20,495 4,329

190,992 247,820
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27. B{TEAEANLTFIE 27. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARKET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB000
FERTRRE A L RUB Amounts due to related parties
—E54E — Trade nature 8311 11,185
—JEESME — Non-trade nature 9,629 6,939
17,940 18,124
TREFIRHE B PIEEZ ARS8 The following is the ageing analysis of amounts due to related parties (trade
JERTREE A TFHIA(E S IHE) BRI - nature) based on invoice date presented the reporting date:
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
PHEA Within 90 days 3,391 6,879
912180H 91-180 days 1,168 3,494
1812270H 181-270 days 1,113 252
271%365H 271-365 days 1,545 299
5365 H Over 365 days 1,094 261
8,311 11,185
JESEAE A TFRIBAEER - R EW AR The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

TRIEE o on demand.
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The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s

lease liabilities:
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20225
128318
As at

31 December
2022

AR®TR
RMB'000

7202148
12H31H
As at

31 December
2021
ARETT
RMB'000

=K S4B Total minimum lease payments:

—FRE|H Due within one year 5,974 6,827

E_FERFEH Due in the second to fifth years 10,616 13,392
16,590 20,219

HEABENARREER Future finance charges on leases liabilities (1177) (1,700)

HEAENRE Present value of leases liabilities 15,413 18,519

20225
128318
As at

31 December
2022

AR®TR
RMB’000

7202148
12H31H
As at

31 December
2021
AREFIT
RMB'000

HEASHIRE - Present value of minimum lease payments:
—FREH Due within one year 5,362 6,089
E-FERFHH Due in the second to fifth years 10,051 12,430
15,413 18,519
W Less:
R—FREIEAEE D Portion due within one year included under
(FIRREIEERN) current liabilities (5,362) (6,089)

R—F &I
GIRIERBAER)

Portion due after one year included under
non-current liabilities 10,051 12,430
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28. HE A& »)
HETBHHE
REE202F12ANBILEE » KEREE]
STEEONS D (20214F - 1810 ) FiFA E Wtk
WAERE  FHENTFT—Z=2R2F - 1A
HEXNEABRERAS

NEERAZEHET ETMEMENK I
REE o

REE202F12831BIEFE » AR
&R EE A AR 23,061,000 (2021
£ AR#59,531,0007T) °

29 REMIEBE BE

28. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
Details of the lease activities
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into additional 5
(2021: 18) new lease agreements for office uses for one to five years. All leases
are subjected to monthly fixed rental payment.

The Group considered these leases do not have any extension or termination
options.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total cash outflows for the leases
are RMB23,061,000 (2021: RMB59,531,000).

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

20224F 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB000
RERIBEE : Deferred tax assets:

FEERR Balance at beginning of year 57,929 8,177
RIS A ) Credited to profit or loss (note 11) 31,647 48,997
U BE B B8~ A (B RE32) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 32) - 755
FaREEER Balance at end of year 89,576 57,929

EEBESE : Deferred tax liabilities:
FHEEH Balance at beginning of year (13,236) (10,107)
AEEFA ) Credited to profit or loss (note 11) 1,372 1,371
U BB P B 2 B (BT 5E32) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 32) = (4,500)

FaRaEe Balance at end of year (11,864) (13,236)
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

20224F 20214F
2022 2021
ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB000
EE Assets
EriE A Provision for loss allowance 75,385 44,542
EfemEEQAFEE Change in fair value of other financial assets 13,691 13,387
BRI & E 45 Total deferred tax assets 89,576 57,929
=L Liabilities
E & EREERS Excess of carrying amount of intangible asset over
MER B the tax bases (7,864) (9,236)
Rk s M A TE H0H Withholding tax for undistributed profits (4,000) (4,000)
FIEaERE Net tax liabilities (11,864) (13,236)

TEMSFREREERMABBEFEER
DER2008F1 A1HEELNEFNRE
FFREERARIEEEREMIRS EMN
10% B9 TE FN 86 (B B3 B8 75 {6 40 2 22 HE Rk 22
9I\) FR P N 5 [ B 2 1) A 42 [ P B Y /B
IR e ) 2 BEE M R a&&t@&
E%%iﬁﬁlJ%ﬁHWTﬁﬂ%Xﬂﬁ“/ﬁz|
THRFHREEEREEE -

REBRBLH P BB QRN BRI A
AR R B R BB PRI LRI IR &
BEHRIE -+ $26% 2 BRI KRG IETR -

N2 [ 75 AT A5 8 DA $ oK ok R RR A Uk
AR AR ERRIEE B AR 6,478,00070
(20214F : AFR#1,655,0007T) ° I EFEIE
BB 2023F = 20275 il [E v o

The EIT Law and its implementation rules impose a withholding tax at 10%,
unless reduced by a tax treaty or arrangement, for dividends distributed by the
PRC-resident enterprises to their non-PRC-resident corporate investors for profits
earned since 1 January 2008. Since the Group controls the quantum and timing
of distribution of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax
liabilities are only provided to the extent that such profits are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

A lower 5% withholding tax rate can be applied to the immediate holding
company of the PRC subsidiaries, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, according
to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of RMB6,478,000 (2021: RMB1,655,000)
to carry forward against future taxable income. These tax losses will be expired
from 2023 to 2027.
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30. IgA& 30. SHARE CAPITAL
BREEMNB TN ER KHBEE ARET T
Ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each No. of shares RMB’000
EIE Authorised:
20211 A18 ~ 20214 As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021,
128318 ~ 2022FF1 A1B & 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022
202212 A318 500,000,000 4,400
ERITRHE Issued and fully paid:
20211 A1 As at 1 January 2021 154,000,000 1,360
BT (BERT) Issue of shares (note) 110,000 1
20215128318 ~ 20224 As at 31 December 2021,
1818 %20225612831H 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 154,110,000 1,361
PIEE Notes:
REZE20211F12ANBILEFE @ BRECETE During the year ended 31 December 2021, share options were exercised to subscribe for 110,000
AREARATN0000RERE  REOAAR ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration of approximately RMB1,437,000 of which
#1,437,0007T - EHRLHOARE1,000TE AR AR approximately RMB1,000 was credited to share capital and approximately RMB2,062,000 was
A AR 2,062,000 T ABR ARG BB © 17 credited to the share premium account. As a result of the exercise of share options, share option
FRERESBEREREARKE600TEEE reserve of RMB626,000 was transferred to the share premium account.
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Share Option Scheme granted by the Company

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution passed on 18 June 2019, a share
option scheme was conditionally adopted. Pursuant to the terms of the
share option scheme, the Company may grant options at its discretion, to
any eligible person (including directors, employees, officers of any member
of the Group, advisers, consultants, suppliers, agents and customers of
any member of the Group). The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be exercised under
the share option scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from
time to time.

No options may be granted under the share option scheme after 10 years
since the adoption. The vesting periods, exercise periods and vesting
conditions may be specified by the Company at the time of the grant, and
the options expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.

The exercise price of the option under the share option scheme shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the official closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.
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31. UREEERP AR S ) 31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(a) ZAAFTHOERESTR(E) (a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)
BERCREET 2B N 2 BB RS F IS w0 Details of the movement of the share options under share option scheme
T are as follows:

SR NE
FHITEE
(A#ET5IR)
Weighted
average
exercise price
in HKD per share Number
20211 A1 8 As at 1 January 2021 15.7 10,600,000
FRITE Exercise during the year 15.7 (110,000)
FRR U Forfeited during the year 157 (440,000)
202112 A318 K As at 31 December 2021 and
R2022F1 A1H as at 1 January 2022 15.7 10,050,000
FRRI Forfeited during the year 15.7 (580,000)
A2022512 8318 As at 31 December 2022 15.7 9,470,000
201978198 » RNA G AR F] 0On 19 July 2019, the Company offered to grant to the directors of the
EERARFRENBARE TR Company and certain employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
BNRRERE(T2019F7ARE ) “July 2019 Grant") of 2,750,000 and 8,700,000 share options respectively,
2,750,000 13 Xz 8,700,000 1 A& A &) f% of HKD0.01 each in the capital of the Company. The closing price of the
R & R B 0.01 78 JT R 19 B9 BE AR shares immediately before the date of grant was HKD15.36. 8,700,000
1 o BRENBBRIROKTES share options granted to the employees and 2,750,000 share options
15.36 7% 7T ° A {& B 1% i #98,700,000 granted to the directors of the Company have a fair value under the
MERERAARREERELN binomial model of HKD62,564,000 and HKD22,241,000, respectively.

275000010 EE PR EE —EABAKX T
8 A F 1B 5 Bl A 62,564,000 7 7T &
22,241,000/ 7T °
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)
The valuations were based on the Binomial Option Pricing Model with the
following data and assumptions:

20195F7 198
19 July 2019

g

Grant

Fair value under binomial model HKD84,805,0007 7T
Closing share price at grant date HKD15.707%8 7T
Exercise price HKD15.707% 7T
Annual risk free interest rate 1.87%
Expected volatility 50.86%
Expected option life 10 years
Expected dividend yield 1.15%

TEHRIE Y AR R RIBE R LT B H]
ERHAHZELRIEMETE - £
BRAE RSN BRI AR
TURHIRN X -

“IRAHREEERAD AAGRER
Bz nVE - sHEBREATHEMA
ZABRAZMEBRIIZES 2 &EM
FHSH - Bz BERETIER
R TR R EMAFAE - B
B BB IIRIRE L BUREEE ©

REZ2002FN2ANBILERE - &3
AR¥5789,000 R ERMERZER
B MR (20214 « AR #13,414,000
J0) - MEMRESREE T Al BRER
%] - BEERERD RS mERE
A afE -

720224512 A318 - 5,970,000 B&
RS EITE T8 A 8 R 1 T {5 BE AR A
Al F17{F (20214F : 4,020,00015 ) °

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company's share price from the listing date to the grant date. The risk free
interest rate is equal to HKD swap rate over the exercise period at the
grant date.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the Directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Expected dividend yield are based on historical data.

In total, RMB5,789,000 of employee compensation expense has been
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB13,414,000) and the corresponding amount of which has been credited
to “Share option reserve”. No liabilities were recognized for the share-
based payment transactions.

As at 31 December 2022, 5,970,000 of the outstanding options granted
under the share option scheme were exercisable (2021: 4,020,000).
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31. UREEERP AR S ) 31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(a) AATEHWBRESE(8) (a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)
P EE - Note:
AR A BRI BEISRE (ST ¢ Terms of share options at the reporting date were as follows:
R2A31 B RITREMERERR

Number of share
options outstanding
as at 31 December

Exercise period BRITEE
Exercise
price per share
BT
HKD
202057 A19H 2202947 A18H 19/7/2020-18/7/2029 15.70 2,010,000 2,010,000
202147 198 £202947 A 18H 19/7/2021-18/7/2029 15.70 2,010,000 2,010,000
202247 198 =202947 4188 19/7/2022-18/7/2029 15.70 1,950,000 2,010,000
202347 A198 2202947 A18H 19/7/2023-18/7/2029 15.70 3,500,000 4,020,000
9,470,000 10,050,000
(b) BARERAFRHNERESE (b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding
company
IRIR AR A4 AR A R IR FE 42 AR 722009 The share option scheme of its ultimate holding company, Kaisa Holdings
FUNRANEBB 2 RFESR  BRE was adopted pursuant to its resolution passed on 22 November 2009 and
FrEIE ERMAIN2019F 11 5218 expired on 21 November 2019. Pursuant to the terms of the share option
[Em o ARIRREARERT & 2 R - K scheme, the board of directors of Kaisa Holdings may, at its discretion,
¥TEREESANBREMEERA grant options to any eligible person (including directors, employees,
T (BEEKREZERERKE QRN officers of any member of Kaisa Holdings, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
% EE =2fBE - BH - %7 agents and customers of any member of Kaisa Holdings).

A HER  REARER)RLE
Rt o
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3. UREEERP TS ) 31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(b) BRARERATEHNBRESTE(H) (b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding

BEH - TEHRBBRM AT AEK
FEERR LR IEE - MBS
EERIR H B HRI10FEW - AR
RETEIE T 2B 2 TTERE TSR
RUATZ&®E « (1EREERZ K
R BB R P 3 h 2 B A R
ERMAMZ IERKHE - (i)EREE
Pz B A 1 R R ) B A TG X2
PR ARBIMELZ BAMER
P FHg IEA M (E 5 (i) ER
PR 2 E1E ©

AT EIIE T 2 B E B 15
T

company (Continued)

The vesting periods, exercise periods and vesting conditions may be
specified by Kaisa Holdings at the time of the grant, and the options expire
no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant. The exercise price of
the option under the share option scheme shall be no less than the highest
of (i) the official closing price of Kaisa Holdings" shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average of the official closing price of Kaisa Holdings’ shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
Stock Exchange business days immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii)
the nominal value of a share of Kaisa Holdings.

Details of the movement of the share options under share option scheme
are as follows:

2025 202145
2022 2021
SRME Sz 0
THTEE FHEE
(UABTHR) (B TTHIR)

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price in HKD price in HKD
per share Number per share Number

MA1E As at 1 January
FREK Lapsed during the year

TRREITARE Effect of completion of right issue

3.35 4,336,193 345 4,200,000
145 (206,485) - _
- = - 136,193

3.4 4,129,708 335 4,336,193
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding

31. URESERAZMNNRS )

(b) BARZERDFRHBRER B (4)

—IB S R SRR P DA R B AR
W2 ATE © 3t H AR AT B
T ASEERBREEE Y B
FHEH - BREZ MERE T EEE
5 FRARERET A -

2022512 A31 8 - 4,129,70817 B &
HEETRIE TR A M AR TR RS AR HE AT
F171E (20214F : 4,336,193(7 ) °

P aE -

company (Continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

As at 31 December 2022, 4,129,708 of the outstanding options granted
under the share option scheme were exercisable (2021: 4,336,193).

Note:

RIRE QEIR ISR T ¢ Terms of share options at the reporting date were as follows:

BRERE

Number of share options*

Exercise period BRITEE"

Exercise

price

per share*

BT

HKD
201546 A6 H 22022476 A5 F 6/6/2015-5/6/2022 145 = 53,686
2017476 A6 A E2022476 A5 H 6/6/2017-5/6/2022 1.45 - 152,799
2018577 A19A £=2027477 188 19/7/2018-18/7/2027 344 825,942 825,942
2019477 R19A £=20274°7 188 19/7/2019-18/7/2027 3.44 825,942 825,942
20204F7 B19A £202747 181 19/7/2020-18/7/2027 3.44 825,942 825,942
20215F7 R19R &20274F7 R 181 19/7/2021-18/7/2027 344 1,651,882 1,651,882
4,129,708 4,336,193

AEFREHE202F12A83NBIEFEE
ERERERZAZTQ2F : AR
#343,0007T) °

The Group recognised a share option expense of Nil (2021: RMB343,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

* BIREEE RITEERREER AT *
2021455 A7 8 e AR & F LAFAZE -

The number of options and exercise price was adjusted upon the ultimate holding
company’s completion of right issue on 7 May 2021.
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32. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Acquisition of Zhejiang Ruiyuan

On 27 December 2020, the Group entered into a sales and purchase agreement
with independent third parties for the acquisition of 60% of equity interests in
Zhejiang Ruiyuan Property Management Co., Ltd.* (T TimR I EE R AR
A 7]") ("Zhejiang Ruiyuan”), a company whose principal activity is provision of
property management services for residential properties, commercial properties
and other non-residential properties. The acquisition has been completed on 1
January 2021.

Goodwill of RMB93,606,000 arose from expected future development of Zhejiang
Ruiyuan’s business and improvement on market coverage. These benefits are not
recognized separately from goodwill, because they do not meet the recognition
criteria for identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill arising from the acquisition is
not expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

By execution of the sales and purchase agreement in January 2021, all of the
strategic financial and operating decisions required approval by simple majority
of the board of directors, of which two directors and one director are nominated
by the Group and the other shareholder, respectively. Since the Group obtained
effective control of voting power to govern the relevant activities of the entity,
Zhejiang Ruiyuan is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.
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32. U BB 2 T ()
BB T ER (4)
WEEEEERAANEERAGELRER
AEBOMHEMHEE - WERKWKEEEFIRIE
I BB 2E TS o

RUHE R EFIE E E R B ES A T EN
T

32. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Acquisition of Zhejiang Ruiyuan (Continued)
The acquisition was made with the aims to expand the Group's existing scale of
operation and enlarge the Group’s market presence and has been accounted for as
acquisition of business using the acquisition method.

The fair value of assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition was as
follows:

20214

2021

AR¥T T

RMB'000

Y - RE MR Property, plant and equipment 6,708
EILEE Intangible assets 18,000
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,145
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 755
EUNE SR Trade receivables 27,905
H b U R IA Other receivables 24.904
84 MIRTT4S R Cash and bank balances 16,771
ERE SRR Trade payables (5,447)
H b FIA Other payables (42,834)
AHAE Contract liabilities (16,475)
HEARRE Lease liabilities (1,315)
ELERIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities (4,500)
R TS T Income tax payables (2,117)
mAFEFENABRBEEFE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 23,500
B e R Less: non-controlling interests (9,400)
P& ml 34 51 & B )R E Identifiable net assets acquired 14,100
e Goodwill 93,606
BERERE Total purchase consideration 107,706
HEENRE Consideration transferred 107,706
ERARE Consideration payable (53,853)
UIR S & NEERE Purchase consideration settled in cash 53,853
WRER B A TIMIRS RIRITES Cash and bank balances in a subsidiary acquired (16,771)

WREHIB AR 2R

Cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary 317,082
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(i) SITERER202191 A18 22021412831 B 4
AR E B E R e A R 184,179,000 7T &
“bF AR #12,710,0007T °

(i) AEECHEREKEN TRREENE S
TREVEE & E AR #518,000,0007T °

(i) FERIR(E AR H53,853,0007T A At B FE AT L 3
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32. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Acquisition of Zhejiang Ruiyuan (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Zhejiang Ruiyuan contributed revenue of RMB184,179,000 and net profit of
RMB12,710,000 to the Group for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Intangible assets of customer relationship of RMB18,000,000 in relation to the acquisition
of Zhejiang Ruiyuan has been recognised by the Group.

The consideration payable of RMB53,853,000 is subjected to downward adjustment of
certain performance targets of Zhejiang Ruiyuan from 2020 to 2023. The directors of the
Company consider that the probability of not meeting these performance targets is low.
Accordingly, the fair value adjustment on contingent consideration payable is considered
as minimal. For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the performance targets of
Zhejiang Ruiyuan had been satisfied and total of RMB10,771,000 consideration payable
paid up during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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33. AR BRI R 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
20224F 20214F
2022 2021
B AR¥T T AREFIT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
AT B R R AAERS Interests in subsidiaries 610,529 588,450
REEE Current assets
FERZ B Dividend receivables 120,000 120,000
Be MRS EER Cash and cash equivalents 10,823 31,073
130,823 151,073
REBEE Current liability
E e IR Other payables 3,059 6,124
REEEZE Net current assets 127,764 144,949
EEABRARBAER Total assets less current liabilities 738,293 733,399
EEFRE Net assets 738,293 733,399
s EQUITY
& Share capital 30 1,361 1,361
EE (M) Reserves (note) 736,932 732,038
R Total equity 738,293 733,399
B ARZEFLH202393 724 Bt E R IRET) Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023.
?é o
BER 2 HE
Liao Chuangiang Mou Zhaohui
EFE EFE

Director Director
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33. A DA BIRRR ) 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COM PANY (Continued)
Mi3E Note:
RATEESESHWOT - The movement of the Company's reserves are as follows:
R RE BRREEE REBEF
Share
Share options Retained
premium reserve earnings
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR%ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202151 418 As at 1 January 2021 610,631 39,824 240,494 890,949
BRI R B2 TS Issue of shares under share option scheme 2,062 (626) - 1,436
FEBEMEEMAY @8 Loss and total comprehensive expenses
for the year - - (85,279) (85,279)
RAPRREEE IR D Recognition of equity-settled
SBR 5 (H7E31(a)) share-based payment transactions
(note 31(a)) - 13,414 - 13,414
BEEIRRE Dividend declared (88,482) - - (88,482)
R20214F12A31B & As at 31 December 2021 and
202261 A1H 1 January 2022 524,211 52,612 155,215 732,038
FEBENEEmRAY AR Loss and total comprehensive expenses
for the year - - (895) (895)
TR AR RELE E IR 1D Recognition of equity-settled
SRR S (H7E31(a)) share-based payment transactions
(note 31(a)) - 5,789 - 5,789

R2022512A31H As at 31 December 2022 524,211 58,401 154,320 736,932
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34. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is
as follows:

34. FERERERMEE

BREIDELNEEHROT :

EAEE
HEEE EMFRE ATRIE
Lease Dividend Amounts due to
liahilities payable related parties
AR%T R AR¥TR AR%T R
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R2021E1 818 As at 1 January 2021 6,041 - 1,664
BMERSRELD Changes from financial cash flows:
FEMR R E A TRUR Advance from related parties - - 5,275
2R E Dividend paid - (90,153) -
BERFE Interest paid (813) - -
BEHREERE Repayment of lease liabilities (5,690) - -
BMERSRESEERE Total changes from financial cash flow (462) (90,153) 6,939
Hi s Other changes:
U BE BB A 31 (PMH5E32) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 1315 - -
BEIRKE Dividend declared - 90,153 -
HEaEEMmME37) Increase in lease liabilities (note 37) 16,853 - -
AR (FEE9) Finance cost (note 9) 813 - -
RNE12A318 & As at 31 December 2021 and
2022F1 A1H 1 January 2022 18,519 - 6,939
BMERSRELD Changes from financial cash flows:
e R E AT RUR Advance from related parties - = 2,690
ERRE Dividend paid - (2,797) -
2RFE Interest paid (770) - -
BEHERE Repayment of lease liabilities (6,316) - _
MERSREEERE Total changes from financial cash flow 11,433 (2,797) 9,629
HZE) Other changes:
BIEEE Termination of leases (1,044) = _
EEIRIE Dividend declared - 2,197 -
HEaBEEmHEET) Increase in lease liabilities (note 37) 4,254 - _
BERA (M) Finance cost (note 9) 770 _ _
M20225128318 As at 31 December 2022 15413 = 9,629
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35. i 35. COMMITMENTS
HEEE Lease commitments
NEBAEEA The Group as lessee
NREFHE - SRS ERENT At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-term leases are as
follows:
2022F 20214
2022 2021
ARBT T AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
NBiE—F Within one year 3,717 2,959
F_ERF In the second to fifth years - -
317 2,959

R202F12831H - AEBEBMNET
BEMRAENRY A —Z=+=_@A
(2021 : —&=+—={@AR) -

20225128318 - AEEEAFBRE
IEEMAZE(EEHARRAR) - ZEH
EMARBSRLLEAT(2021F : A
R #1,705,0000T) * EFFAER ©

AEEAHEAA

R202F K201 F12 A3 H » REERIE
A REHE SR EREF U Z KRR FIE
femmEnT

As at 31 December 2022, the Group leases staff quarters and offices with a
lease period of one to twelve months (2021: one to twelve months).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had committed to leases for staff quarters
and offices in which the leases had not yet commenced. The total future cash
outflows for these leases amounting to Nil (2021: RMB1,705,000) in aggregate
which are included in the table above.

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of buildings as
follows:

20224F 20214F

2022 2021

AR¥T T ARETIT

RMB'000 RMB'000

TR —F Within one year 3,650 3,319
F_ERF In the second to fifth years 246 10,944
3,896 14,263

BHOMER/B—E2RF - WRfEH AR
AEEREHFPHEHBENRHAEES
BHEMA FFRERHIEK - HOBMTEEX

The lease run for an initial period of one to five years, with an option to renew
the lease and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date or at dates mutually
agreed between the Group and respective tenants. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.
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36. BEALRS 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
MEMSBENFTIEE YN - NEE LR E A Except as disclosed in elsewhere, the Group entered into the following
TETHRZHT transactions with related parties as follows:

(a) XEZEEHM (a) Key management compensation
2022F 20214F
2022 2021
AR%T T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB000
=ik Directors’ fee 887 753
HehEMEHESRF Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 5,688 4,684
EIETEAT Discretionary bonuses - -
RRET BB Retirement scheme contributions 846 582
DAISREAE B R ST HIFI S Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 1,894 5,651

9,315 11,670
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

20225
2022

ARBTR
RMB000

202148

2021
ARET T
RMB'000

R EEERK Provision of property management

services
AEENREKE AR Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (i) 67,604 83,791
RZEMBATIHSSME  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (ii) 6,507 1,242
BRI ARIMEE & AT Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (ii) 4,776 -
R AT AT 2 B R A% Provision of pre-delivery and

consulting services
KEEMRZRMB AR Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (i1) 92,696 763,713
REMBARIRAZ{E  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (i) 80,334 251,668
SEERATIREGZ AT Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (i) 30,581 11,378
REHERER Provision of community value-added

BRERR A RIRY and smart solution services

REBERRZKB QA Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), i) 18,918 88,475
RAZAMBATNEZNE  Jointventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (ii) 24,977 9,179
RIZIERR A RIS 2 A |]  Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (i) 5,070 85
HERX Lease expenses
REERERK B AR Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (i) 8,532 39,972
REMBATIRASSME  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (ii) = 2,044
EIEFMAX Staff welfare expenses
REEMNRRME AR Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i) 45 101
BEZMBATIHALEE  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (iii) = 7
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36. EAEALTR S &)

(b) EEIEATHRS(H)
G

(b)

il VEEERBEA - M5 MERR
B - BEEBRT RIRE R ES
R AEREFIATNER A EH R
B0 =77 PTURER I KR RT RV B AR K
TERUHR ©

BEBREATRIEEREOBEAT
T 5E ANRM13750007T (20214F : A
R #1,903,0007C) (R RIETE) I - H
bR E A TR ZHEA _ETTRAIZE 14AE
FAEMNBERSRIFEBERS
WAEBT EMRAIEUAZTEBE THEA
i FEER - AF RSB IER
TERSARRILE (B A ) RE -

(ii)

ZEREALRHBR EWHANAE
FIAENMERIIFERERS -
R REXFHEHRET TR
FUABTIETHRE R FEF
Bl DER/RBUIFRTEEIR
RHUAERTE  TRARZERHE R
PR RN EERFETT - AU EIR
B LR RSB 14A 0GR AL EE E(E
IR -

(iii)

37. FRERXH
AEE THHRSRARBEED |
HYRFERE RS MERT

REZE202F12A3NBILEFE - AEBEE
YAEBFREEEMMEAGENETHE
%) B A AREEL2540007T(20214F + A
R#16,853,00070) - BN EF A B EiRE

7
s ©

HEAHESIR
BARE BT R E R AN - ARE
R BERE L B AE -

38. 38.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Property management services income, pre-delivery and consulting services
income, smart solution services and rental expenses for car parks and office
are charged at prices and terms no less favourable than those charged to and
contracted with other third parties of the Group.

Except for related party transactions related to the provision of community
value-added services amounting to RMB1,375,000 (2021: RMB1,903,000) which
are exempted from disclosure, the other related party transactions constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or independent non-executive director or shareholder’s
approval (where applicable) requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure, reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or independent non-executive director or shareholder’s
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
conducted on normal commercial terms or better and not secured by the assets of
the Group under Rule 14A.90.

The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for
reference only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.

37. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-cash investing and financing activities
which are not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into certain
lease contracts in which additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
amounting to RMB4,254,000 (2021: RMB16,853,000) was recognised at the lease
commencement date.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Apart from the events disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had no
significant events after the reporting date.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeRmREtEERER

HELANALEE
Year ended 31 December
186 019F
2018 2019
ARETFT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
g Revenue 895,768 1,261,909 1,730,149 2,666,440 1,783,883
ETdER Direct operating expenses (618,730) (883,498) (1,202510) (1,877541) (1,312,776)
E | Gross profit 277,038 37841 521,639 788,899 naor
(B8R Rika 58 Other (losses) and gains, net (3,645) 590 (73%9) 4890 24,391
HERTHHEERY Selling and marketing expenses 5,160) (9.172) (8,595) (13,243) (10,395)
ABRFEY Administrative expenses (152,188) (155,850) (185,293) (245,359) (229,366)
SRBERANEE Provision for loss allowance on
ERERRE financial assets and contract assets 4,235) (4,831) 10,986) (142,441) (125,372)
oyl Operating profit 111,810 209,148 315,442 392,746 130,365
[ERBENRER Share of results of associates - - 675 18,846 10,530
BATELEZAER Change in fair value on financial assets at
tRHEELTERS fair value through profit or loss - (2,089) (7,150) (53,549) (1,215)
BENERBRRNRE Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary - - 1192 - =
HERATELBEAR (Loss)/gain on disposal of financial assets at
SREE(EER) Mz fair value through profit o loss - - 1202 159,301) =
IR IFIBES SRR Loss on termination of an acquisition transaction - - - (63,920) -
BEWA/ (BR)3E Finance incomey(expenses|, net (1,175) 3235 1223 228 (170)
BRATSH ADGRR Profit hefore income tax 110635 210,294 312,584 135,050 138,910
FERmEY Income tax expenses (57,125) (43,225) (83,059) (66,929) (32.315)
FREFRZEYES Profit and total comprehensive
Fek] income for the year 53510 167,069 229525 68,121 106,595
AT ATEEERR Profit and total comprehensive income
FEBEHE . attributable to:
AREBEEA Owners of the Company 54,056 163,898 221951 56,806 93,385
RS Non-controlling interests (546) 3171 7,574 11315 13,210
53510 167,069 229,525 68,121 106,595
ARRBEBEARLER Eamings per share attributable to
BAUERARYT owners of the Company (expressed
5I7R) in RMB per share)
B Basic 050 117 151 037 061
#E Diluted 050 117 148 036 061
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CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES

MM2A31H
As at 31 December

20184 20194 20204F 20214 20225
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Assets

EREEE Non-current assets 23,319 140,717 145,237 894,724 908,389
AR Current assets 1,030,942 1,152,867 1,829,995 1,325,557 1,340,275
EEAE Total assets 1,054,261 1,293,584 1,975,232 2,220,281 2,248,664

EEREE Equity and Liabilities
b Total equity 506,170 668,848 1.283,168 1,286,930 1,396,762
ERBEE Non-current liabilities 25,126 25,890 32,643 57,388 40,463
THAE Current liabilities 522,965 578,846 659,421 875,963 811,439
BEHHE Total Liabilities 548,091 604,736 692,064 933,351 851,902
EEREEEE Total equity and liabilities 1,054,261 1,293,584 1,975,232 2,220,281 2,248,664
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